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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings
Company Limited, | am pleased to present the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2023 to all the Shareholders.

In 2023, economic movement remained relatively stable in China,
although there were still challenges such as insufficient confidence
in the private sector economy, rising debt risks and the continued
downturn in the real estate industry. A series of domestic real
estate control policies have been introduced one after another,
aiming at facilitating the stable, healthy and high-quality
development of the real estate market. Although the lenient
policies and the relaxing environment continued to exist, their
effect was not distinct as the market was still sliding, deeply
affecting the Group’s property investment business.

The Group’'s revenue for the 2023 Financial Year was
RMB1,498,000 (2022: RMB29,427,000), representing a decrease
of approximately 94.91% compared to the 2022 Corresponding
Period. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in revenue
generated from infrastructure construction and property
development in China.

Looking forward, the Group expects that continued introduction of
supportive policies by the government and the gradual recovery of
the economy would inject new vitality and confidence into the real
estate market, after several years of policy refinement and market
adjustment. The Board remains determined in exploring different
investment opportunities, actively looking for stable investment
channels. Taking into account the changes in economic situation
and the overall development strategy, the Company shall deeply
devoted itself to the Group’s existing business, by making more
effort to establish the Shennongjia Hotel and speeding up the one-
by-one resolution to the problems on property right of the
Fangshan Project. In addition to maintaining its core business, the
Group shall also gradually get involved in businesses in different
fields to expand its development room, to effectively diversify its
operating risks and to realise the complementary benefits, with
obtaining projects that could bring better returns to the Group as
its goal so as to enhance its overall strength for long-term, stable
and positive return to its Shareholders.
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Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all the Shareholders and partners for their continued
support and trust over the years. Concurrently, | would like to
thank all the employees for their diligence during the year. In face
of difficulties and challenges of different kinds, the Group shall
continue to uphold its philosophy of making progress with stability,
and shall bravely advance amid the difficulties, with a view to
staying calm and rational despite the adversity and thus seeking
steady growth to create huge value for Shareholders!

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

25 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year amounted to
RMB1,498,000 (2022 Corresponding Period: RMB29,427,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 94.91% as compared
with the 2022 Corresponding Period. The decrease in revenue is
mainly due to a decrease in the revenue generated from the
construction of infrastructure and the development of properties in
the PRC.

During the 2023 Financial Year, no revenue has recorded by the
Group from infrastructure construction business (2022
Corresponding Period: the acceptance and delivery of Xinxing Road
of the Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project and
the transfer of the remaining communication tubes in the park, and
recorded a revenue of RMB27,959,000). For the 2023 Financial
Year, the Group recognised revenue from property leasing business
of RMB1,498,000 (2022 Corresponding Period: RMB1,468,000),
representing an increase of approximately 2.04% as compared to
the 2022 Corresponding Period.

Loss before tax of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year amounted
to RMB146,593,000 comparing with loss of RMB75,824,000 for
the 2022 Corresponding Period.

Impairment assessment under Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") model
on trade receivables is performed. The Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment assessment on trade receivable under ECL
model. Impairment of RMB10,937,000 (2022 Corresponding
Period: RMB26,000) is recognised during the 2023 Financial Year.
For deposits and other receivables, the Directors make periodic
individual assessment on their recoverability based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The Group reversed the impairment losses on
deposits and other receivables, net of impairment, under the ECL
model of approximately RMB4,046,000 (2022 Corresponding
Period: impairment loss of approximately RMB36,886,000) during
the 2023 Financial Year.

As housing prices went weak in the PRC for the 2023 Financial
Year, the transactions of similar properties surrounding the Beijing
Property have continued to decline and have not yet stabilized. The
management of the Company assessed that the recoverable
amount of deposit paid for the acquisition of the Beijing Property is
lower than its carrying amount, an impairment loss on deposit paid
of approximately RMB11,802,000 (2022 Corresponding Period:
RMB11,406,000) was recognised for the 2023 Financial Year.
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Management Discussion an

EEENWRED

Impairment Losses on Properties under Development

The carrying amount of the Shennongjia Hotel, a construction
project of the Group which is still under construction, was
approximately RMB207,220,000. Affected by the previous epidemic
control and the continued deterioration of the existing real estate
market, the Group expects the completion time of the project to be
delayed to 31 October 2024. The management has confirmed that
the real estate market and the delay in construction progress
inflicted an impairment risk on the properties under development,
and the Group has engaged an independent professional valuer to
evaluate the net realisable value of the properties under
development and made an impairment provision of approximately
RMB16,470,000 for it. At the same time, the management has
confirmed that the construction costs and the estimated total
development costs of the properties under construction were all
within the budget, and the construction was expected to be
completed within the total development costs as budgeted.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year were
approximately RMB37,000, representing an increase of 100%
compared with the 2022 Corresponding Period, mainly owing to
the increase in the current tax expenses of RMB6,000 and the
reversal of deferred tax assets of RMB37,000.

Loss Per Share

The basic loss per Share attributable to owners of the Company
during the 2023 Financial Year was approximately RMB9.33 cents,
representing an increase of approximately 86.6% as compared
with the loss per Share for the 2022 Corresponding Period of
RMB5.00 cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Construction of Infrastructure and Development of Properties
(i) Infrastructure Construction Business

The infrastructure construction business is one of the principal
businesses of the Group. Zhongfang Chaozhou, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, principally engages in
infrastructure construction in the PRC. Conventionally, the
Group, being a contractor, will be responsible for (i) raising
and financing the development cost of the construction
projects; (ii) launching construction; and (iii) supervising the
construction procedures and quality control. Upon completion
of the construction project, the infrastructure will be
repurchased by the government department or private
company such that revenue can be recognised in this regard.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWREADN

The settlement of the overall construction of Zhongfang
Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project (the “Project”) has
not been completed during the 2023 Financial Year, since a
new review authority under the finance department of
Chaozhou government has reviewed the assessment data
issued by a third-party review agency. During the 2023
Financial Year, no revenue was recorded by the Group from
infrastructure construction business.

Since there was a change of the management in Chaozhou
Jinshan in February 2021, the new management of Chaozhou
Jinshan needed to take additional time to take over the
settlement proceeding of the Project. In terms of the project
volumes and amounts, there are some discrepancies of
opinion between the third-party review agency and
Zhongfang Chaozhou. As such, Zhongfang Chaozhou has
been providing supplemental information to demonstrate the
progress and work done for further discussion to minimise
such discrepancies. Zhongfang Chaozhou has conducted
several discussions and data verification with the third-party
review agency and other relevant parties in relation to the
settlement of the main portion of the Project for the parties
to reach an agreement on the review data successively issued
by the third-party review agency. During the year ended 31
December 2022, after three communication and coordination
meetings and several rounds of data supplement, all parties
basically reached a consensus on other evaluation data except
for disputes over fixed labor and material pricing. On 9
December 2022, Zhongfang Chaozhou issued a consultation
letter to Guangdong Provincial Construction Engineering
Standard Quota Station* (ER A ER L2 IZEF L)
regarding the labor and material pricing dispute caused by
different locations of the Project. On 9 March 2023,
Zhongfang Chaozhou received the reply from Guangdong
Provincial Construction Engineering Standard Quota Station
which suggested that Zhongfang Chaozhou and Chaozhou
Jinshan sign a supplementary agreement to clarify how to
determine labor and material prices. For 2023 Financial Year
and as at 16 January 2024, the third-party review agency
issued 3 sets of evaluation data consecutively. At present, all
parties have reached agreement on the main issues regarding
project settlement, but some operational and technical details
still need to be resolved to ensure the smooth completion of
settlement.
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(i)

iscus

*‘J‘ m 52 73 4

In summary, after verification by a third-party review agency,
the impairment on the Group’s contract costs was mainly due
to (i) the discovery of errors in the construction drawings and
technologies of some concealed works during the
construction, resulting in repeated construction in some
projects; (ii) the difference between the actual construction
labor costs and the fixed labor and material costs as
recognised by the government. Therefore, the Company has
written down the contract costs based on the verification
results of the third-party review agency, the letters issued by
relevant government departments and the evaluation and
analysis report by an independent third-party appraisal
agency appointed by us.

Development of Properties

Shennongjia Hotel, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, principally engages in the development of
properties, tourism and hotel services.

Shennongjia Hotel holds the land use rights of two parcels of
adjoining land, with a total site area of approximately 35,506
sg.m. located in Ping Qian Ancient Town, Da Jiu Hu,
Shennongjia Forestry District, Hubei Province, PRC* (# B#
b & R EME K ST BT & #1) for commercial hotel

service use.

Due to the booming tourism in various regions after the
lifting of pandemic control measures, local governments have
imposed restrictions on the transportation of construction
materials during the peak travel season, leading to a slight
delay in the construction progress of the Shennongjia Hotel.
However, the management is striving to optimize the project
plan and allocate various resources of the Group to expedite
the construction progress.

As at 31 December 2023, the properties are under
construction and it is expected that all construction will be
completed and the renovation will begin in 2024.

The Group is from time to time searching for opportunities to
reinforce its financial strength. It will explore suitable
investment and construction projects through strong
connections of the management and public and private
tenders.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

Property Investment Business

The Group’s property investment business is mainly distributed in
the cities such as Guangzhou, Beijing and Sanhe. The Company
identifies potential properties for investment purposes from time to
time to receive rental income and may enjoy potential property
appreciation income in the future. The Group currently owns 125
offices located in the Zhiying Commercial Center in Liangxiang
Higher Education Park, Fangshan, Beijing (the “Fangshan
Project”), 11 shop units and 60 car parking spaces located in
Sanhe, a shop unit in Guangzhou and a commercial property in
Shunyi, Beijing, the construction of which is completed.

During the 2023 Financial Year, certain properties of the Group
have generated rental income and recorded rental income of
RMB 1,498,000 (2022 Corresponding Period: RMB1,468,000).

The business model in the property investment business is
acquisition for selling and/or leasing, which the Company acquires
suitable and potential properties which are ready for selling and
leasing. As such, revenue can be recognised through earning the
price difference between the buying and selling price. The Group
can also record rental incomes from the leasing of the properties.
The Group will continue to identify potential property investment
projects.

The Group has equipped a professional team in property leasing
and property management for the Fangshan Project during the
2023 Financial Year. According to the current market conditions,
the Group plans to lease out part of the properties of the Fangshan
Project for operations, and the remaining properties will be put on
the market at an opportunity according to the operation situation.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Confronted with multiple risks, the pace of global economic
recovery has slowed down. Confronted with challenges such as
weak exports and investment, as well as insufficient demand, the
domestic economic recovery has been lower than expected. The
Group will continue to firmly pursue its goal of steady development
and promote existing infrastructure projects while actively
responding to national policies and exploring other infrastructure
projects with potential; at the same time, it will integrate the
Group's resources to promote the construction and operation of
various property projects to achieve profitability as soon as possible.
Taking into account the change in the property market
environment and consumption trend from time to time, the Group
also proactively explores development opportunities in various
formats within the property investment sector, such as the
operation and management of commercial properties, as well as
sports and cultural venues. Meanwhile, the Board is actively
expanding investment and development opportunities in other
areas, and strives to find and screen out projects that are in line
with the Group’s overall development strategy to enhance the
Group's overall business strength.

The Work of Old Area Renovation has been a hot topic recently in
the PRC, which focuses on improving support facilities for housing
estates and government services, and beefing up services for elderly
residents, medical services and others. In order to renovate the old
urban residential areas, reconstruction of infrastructures and
properties must be involved. As such, the Directors are of the view
that there will be more tenders offered by county government of
the PRC, or more contractors searching for investments or sub-
contractors for the construction of properties. Other than
renovating old urban residential areas, some projects may involve
rural area development. Opportunities for acquiring land for
construction will also be increased. Also, with the strong
connection of the management of the Company, the Directors
believe that there will be more opportunities for investment or
construction in the future. In addition, the Board will continue to
devote efforts to exploring various investment opportunities and
enhancing the Group’s market competitiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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For the 2023 Financial Year, the Group won the bidding the rental
right of a 3,000-square-meter vacant land in the Shenyun Cultural
and Sports Park* (RZESCEE A E) in Shenzhen for operating an
entertainment project in the cultural and sports park, including
indoor skiing, indoor surfing and children’s entertainment. The
venue is currently under renovation and is expected to begin its
operation officially in the second half of 2024.

The Group plans to launch alcohol sales business in 2024, mainly
selling a particular brand of high-end white wine to ultimate
consumers in the Shenzhen area. Concurrently, the Group is
actively developing its hotel business with plans to develop tourism-
related hotel and catering business in Dongchong, Shenzhen. As of
the date of this report, the Group has obtained cooperation
intentions with relevant partners and is discussing the terms of
agreement.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total assets amounted to
RMB632,689,000 (31 December 2022: RMB748,981,000),
representing a decrease of 15.53%. Non-current assets and current
assets as at 31 December 2023 were RMB344,283,000 (31
December 2022: RMB395,292,000) and RMB288,406,000 (31
December 2022: RMB353,689,000) respectively.

With a prudent financial management policy and a solid financial
position, the working capital of the Group is usually financed by its
internally generated resources. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had net current assets of approximately RMB79,002,000 (31
December 2022: RMB178,344,000), including cash and cash
equivalents of RMB3,741,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB6,557,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no bank borrowings, but
had other borrowings of RMB7,215,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB5,415,000). The Group's current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) and gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) was 1.38
times (31 December 2022: 2.02 times) and 0.33 times (31
December 2022: 0.23 times), respectively.

*  For identification purpose only
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Pre-acquisition of property in Beijing PRC

On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang, the subscriber, entered
into a pre-acquisition agreement with Beijing Zhong Tou, pursuant
to which Beijing Zhong Tou agreed to sell and Beijing Shen Shang
agreed to acquire a property at a total consideration of
RMB152,800,000. The property is a commercial premise with the
construction area of 2,800 sg.m., with the right to use its car parks
of 5,000 sg.m. at the basement level two, being part of Phase 3 of
the ancillary facility project of Beijing International Zone Convention
Center* (It R BB EREE) to be constructed in Beijing
Shunyi District Tianzhu Airport Commercial Zone* (1t R EZ &
K725 R) (the “Beijing Property”). Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 November 2016 for
details.

On 26 March 2018, Beijing Shen Shang and Beijing Zhong Tou
entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the pre-
acquisition agreement to postpone the date of the acceptance and
transfer of the Beijing Property to 31 December 2019. The pre-sale
permit for the project has been obtained on 17 August 2018.

However, due to multiple factors, including the 70th anniversary of
the National Day, important meetings and the haze days, the
construction was suspended at the request of the government,
resulting in the postponement of the completion. Coupling with
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in 2020, the progress of
subsequent construction has been affected, resulting in the
completion of construction and delivery of the Beijing Property has
not yet been completed.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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On 20 May 2020, Beijing Shen Shang and Beijing Zhong Tou
entered into a supplemental agreement to further postpone the
date of the completion of construction and delivery of the Beijing
Property to 30 June 2021 due to the outbreak of the Covid-19
pandemic, and Beijing Shen Shang agreed to waive the penalty of
Beijing Zhong Tou for the delay of the completion of construction.
On 20 March 2022, Beijing Shen Shang received a further notice of
extension of completion from Beijing Zhong Tou, stating that due
to the impact of an important event and the Covid-19 pandemic,
the completion date of the Beijing Property is expected to be
extended to 31 December 2022. On 6 March 2023, Beijing Shen
Shang received a third notice of completion delay from Beijing
Zhong Tou. In 2022, due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic
and the major meetings of the 20th National Congress, the
construction progress of the Beijing Property was slowed down,
and the completion date is expected to be delayed to 31 December
2023. For the time being, the construction of Beijing Property has
completed, when its completion registration is in progress.

As at the date hereof, the transaction is still in progress.

Disposal of 0.19% of the Total Issued Share Capital of
Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank (“Sale Shares”)

On 14 June 2023, Zhongfang Chaozhou, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the share transfer
agreements with an Independent Third Party, (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which Zhongfang Chaozhou agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser has agreed to purchase, 5,000,000 shares of Chaozhou
Rural Commercial Bank for a consideration of RMB12,000,000. The
Sale Shares represent approximately 0.19% of the total issued
share capital of Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank as at the date of
the share transfer agreements.

The share disposal represents a good opportunity for the Group to
realise its investment. As the COVID-19 pandemic impacted the
global economy and financial markets for the past years, the
Directors consider that the share disposal allows the Group to
strengthen its cash position and thus to utilise the net proceeds for
general working capital including business development during the
economic recovery period.

The Directors are of the view that the share disposal is in the
interest of the Group and the terms and conditions of the share
transfer agreements are on normal commercial terms, which are
fair and reasonable, and are in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.
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Upon further negotiation between Zhongfang Chaozhou and the
Purchaser (collectively, the “Parties”), on 14 December 2023, the
Parties entered into a second supplemental agreement (the
“Second Supplemental Agreement”) to the share transfer
agreements, pursuant to which:

(1) the Parties agreed to extend the deadline for the completion
to 31 March 2024. The Purchaser shall pay liquidated
damages for the late payment in accordance with the share
transfer agreements. The liquidated damages shall be
calculated from 25 October 2023 until the payment is made;
and

(2)  Zhongfang Chaozhou shall have the right to terminate the
share transfer agreements if the Purchaser fails to pay the
remaining amount of RMB4,700,000 and the corresponding
liquidated damages in accordance with the share transfer
agreements before 31 March 2024.

The disposal was completed on 22 March 2024.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 June
2023 and 14 December 2023 for details.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the 2023 Financial Year, save as disclosed above, the
Company did not have any significant investments.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, EMOLUMENTS,
TRAINING SCHEMES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 48
employees (31 December 2022: 49). The Group has entered into
employment contracts with all employees, and offered employment
packages according to their positions, qualifications, experience
and abilities. During the 2023 Financial Year, the aggregate salaries
and emoluments amounted to RMB6,167,000 (2022
Corresponding Period: RMB6,845,000). The Group also provides
benefits to employees, such as contributions to endowment
insurance, basic medical insurance and housing reserve in
accordance with the relevant laws of the PRC. The Group has not
adopted any share option scheme for any of its senior management
or employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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ASSETS SECURED/PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2023, no asset of the Group was secured or
pledged (31 December 2022: Nil).

CURRENCY RISKS

Other than a subsidiary established in Hong Kong, the revenue and
expenses of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions denominated in
currencies other than the functional and reporting currency of the
Group, which is RMB. The changes in the exchange rate of Hong
Kong Dollar against RMB will affect the results of the Group. An
exchange gain of RMB3,000 was recorded in the results for the
2023 Financial Year (2022 Corresponding Period: gain of
RMB17,000). The Group currently does not have a hedging policy
against foreign exchange risk. The management of the Company
will consider hedging significant currency exposure in the future
should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2022: Nil).

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the 2023 Financial Year (2022 Corresponding Period: Nil).

DONATIONS

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Group made a charity donation
of RMB100,000 (2022 Corresponding Period: RMB29,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the total capital commitments of the
Group amounted to RMB62,163,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB45,522,000).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events from the end of the 2023 Financial
Year to the date hereof.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 66, is the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director since 4 June 2015. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Shantou Business School. Since 1986, Mr. Zhang has successively
worked as the deputy manager of Guangdong Haining Paper
Packing Company Limited* (E R /8% 4 o2& FR A 7)), the
vice president of Hong Kong Hai Yuan Industry Group lelted and
chairman of Beijing Zhongjin Chuangzhan Real Estate Development
Company Limited* (It R B8R EHERZGR A F]). Mr.
Zhang has extensive experience in business management, corporate
culture and project and operational planning.

Mr. Huang Chunfeng, aged 47, is an executive Director since 5
November 2021. Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree from the
School of Finance of Zhengzhou University in 2002, a master’s
degree in business administration from the Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 2013 and a master’s degree
in EMBA from China Europe International Business School (CEIBS)
in 2017. From 1998 to 2010, he successively worked in the
sub-branch directly under Henan Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited (stock code: 601398) and the
Zhengzhou Branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 600000). From 2010 to 2013, he successively
served as vice president of the Xueyuan South Road Sub-branch
under Beijing Branch of Bank of Shanghai Co., Ltd. (stock code:
601229) and Beijing Dongzhimen Sub-branch of Bank of Jiangsu.
From 2014 to 2016, he was the general manager of Beijing Guo
Tai Zhong Tou Investment Funds Management Co., Ltd.* (BIZ=
BUAER)HREESERBR DA From 2016 to 2019, he has
been the chairman of Gong Chuang Xing Yuan Asset Management
Co., Ltd* (HKAIEREEEZE AR A A). Since March 2019, Mr.
Huang has been serving as a chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Huang has extensive experience in the areas of
finance, investment and corporate management.

*  For identification purpose only
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE ESEREREEENA

Mr. Leng Xiao Rong, aged 57, is an executive Director since 28
June 2018. Mr. Leng graduated from the Department of Economics
of Jiangxi University in 1989 majoring in accounting. He qualified
as an accountant through the national uniform examination in
1998. He was the financial manager of Xiushui County Forestry
Industrial Company in Jiangxi Province* (JT 704 (&K &% T %
A A]) from 1989 to 1999, audit officer of Shenzhen Petrochemical
(Holding) Co., Ltd.* CRINA L EEREHBR2AF]) from 1999 to
2004, financial director of China South City Nanning (% %8 %= & %)
and China South City Harbin* (" 88 /& £ & %) which are the
branches of China South City Holdings Limited (% & 3 15 % 5 B2
‘A Al) (stock code: 1668) from 2004 to 2014 and investment
director of Guangdong Yueshang High-Tech Holdings Co., Ltd.*
(EREBmSRHER B R 2 a]) from 2014 to 2018. Mr. Leng has
extensive experience in various aspects including corporate finance,
audit and investment.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Chau Ting Yan, aged 65, is a non-executive Director since 5
November 2021. Mr. Chau graduated from Nanjing
Communication Engineering Institute* (B R 15 T2 2 Ft) in
1982. After his graduation, he had successively served as an
assistant engineer and the engineer of the 54th Research Institute*
(2 R+ FFT) from 1983 to 1993; from 1993 to 2005, he
successively served as a general manager of Fine Lee Industries,
Limited* (ZFI & % £ R 2 @) and chairman of the board of
directors of China Hani Group* (#F BI1EF|££&); he has served as
chairman of Zhongjin Fuhua (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (Ff &
BEULR)IRE AR A A from 2005 to 2017; and he has been
serving as a director of Zhong Rong Jin Kong Capital Management
Co., Ltd* (h RS EEAREEFMRAF]) from 2018 to 2019. Mr.
Chau has extensive experience in finance, investment and corporate
management.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang, aged 44, is an independent non-executive
Director since 12 November 2020. Mr. Luo is a certified public
accountant in the PRC. He graduated from Wuhan Finance
College* (B )£ & @t = % &5 & 2 ) majoring in accounting in
2001, and from 2017 to 2019, he completed a law degree
programme at University of South China; from 2003 to 2019, Mr.
Luo successively served as an audit manager of Baker Tilly China
Certified Public Accountants* (X & B[R & 51 Al 5 7 A7 )(Shenzhen
Branch), an executive director of Shenzhen Guanghua Yongzhuo
Financial Consultancy Co., Ltd.* GRIIIT Y ok S B 5 EERS B R
A a)), a department head of Asia Pacific CPA (Group) (Shenzhen
Branch); from 2019 to present, Mr. Luo has been an executive
director of Guangdong Tianjian Consulting Co., Ltd.* (/&5 X £ k8
fABR A E]). Mr. Luo has been in charge of the audit of a number
of listed companies in the PRC and the listing and financing
consultancy services for a number of domestic private enterprises in
the PRC, proving his extensive experience in audit, financing and
the operation of listed companies.

*  For identification purpose only
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Ms. Jiang Hai Ling, aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director since 30 January 2024. Ms. Jiang is the bachelor of Laws
from Northwest University of Political Science and Law and master
of Laws from University of Leeds in the UK. Ms. Jiang worked in the
Justice Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality in Guangdong Province
and served as a civil servant in the Bureau of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation in 1987. From 2004 to 2008, she studied at
the University of Leeds in the UK and worked in Stephenson
Harwood in the UK as a business consultant as to the PRC laws.
She was a fulltime lawyer at SD & Partners in Guangdong Province
in 2008. She currently is a consultant of Shenzhen Hua Rui
Investment Co., Ltd.* CRIITTER IR EBRAA).

Mr. Mao Hai Bin, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
Director since 30 January 2024. Mr. Mao graduated from the
undergraduate department of mathematics of Jiangxi Normal
University in 1983 and qualified as a professional economist. Mr.
Mao worked in the Longhui Town Government of Nankang
County, Jiangxi Province* (T 78 %& M B % %€ [ 4B B fF) and the
Organization Department of the Ganzhou Prefectural Committee
of Jiangxi Province of the Chinese Communist Party* (FF 384
2N Z 4044 36) in 1983. Mr. Mao has more than thirty years of
extensive experience in finance. Mr. Mao was deputy director of
the business department of Ji‘an Branch of China Construction
Bank* (R R7TH L HL R 9 77) and vice president of Ji'an
Railway Special Branch of China Construction Bank* (2% IR17T5
% B EH % % 17) in 1987. He was the director of Changchun
Zhaohua Urban Credit Union* (&M IKER T A 4) in 1994.
He was the general manager of Jilin International Trust and
Investment Company* (& M & B E 55 E 2 F]) in 1995. He
was the general manager of Beijing Oriental Hotel Management
Co, Ltd* Gt REFBEBEE AR A F) in 2008 and has been
the chairman of Hohhot Quanxiang Small Loan Co., Ltd.* (FEAIE
BHRE/NEERERSEEARQA) for over a decade since 2012.

*  For identification purpose only
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SUPERVISORS:

Mr. Wang Xing Ye, aged 46, is the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee and the shareholder’s representative Supervisor. Mr.
Wang holds a master postgraduate degree. Mr. Wang is currently
the managing director of Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd., director of Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Hebei Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Co.,
Ltd.) (stock code: 002960. SZ), director of Enraytek Optoelectronics
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., director of Ningbo Jade Bird
Zhengyuan Equity Interest Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (%
WERBETREREEIEGMRAF]), director of Ningbo Jade Bird
Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., executive director/general
manager of Ningbo Liyuantai Venture Capital Investment
Management Co., Ltd., executive director/vice president/compliance
officer/secretary to the board of director of Beijing Beida Jade Bird
Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited and the chairman of the
Supervisory Committee. Since 2014, he has served as an
independent Supervisor. He has profound experience in investment
and financing, asset and business reorganisation.

Mr. Fang Wei Ran, aged 38, is the employee representative
Supervisor. Mr. Fang graduated from Guangdong Ocean University
with bachelor of science in financial management. He previously
worked in Huizhou LCY Elastomers Corp* (BMZFEREZRB AR
2 a]). Mr. Fang is currently the finance manager of Zhongfang
Chaozhou. Mr. Fang has extensive experience in accounting
practices and cost management.

Mr. Chen Bin, aged 55, is the shareholder’s representative
Supervisor. Mr. Chen graduated from the undergraduate
department of accounting of Shenzhen University in 1993 and
qualified as a professional accountant. Mr. Chen was an auditor in
the audit department of Shenzhen Wanrun (Group) Co., Ltd.* (%
I EBEEBRRMDARRAR) (“Wanrun Group”) in 2004.
Subsequently, he was the financial department manager and
general manager of Changchun Kaiyuan Group Co., Ltd.* (K&H
TTEBE AR A7), Currently, Mr. Chen is the general manager of
the audit department of Wanrun Group.

*  For identification purpose only
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES:

Ms. Qian Fang Fang, aged 40, is the joint company secretary of
the Company. Ms. Qian graduated from Northwest University
majoring in accounting with a bachelor’s degree in management in
2006, and was conferred a master’'s degree in management in
2008. Ms. Qian was appointed as the supervisor of the Company
for the period from 12 February 2012 to 3 March 2014. Ms. Qian
was appointed as the joint company secretary of the Company on
6 March 2014.

Mr. Chung Man Wai, Stephen, aged 45, was appointed as the
joint company secretary of the Company on 8 September 2020.
Mr. Chung holds a bachelor’s degree of science in applied
accountancy from Oxford Brookes University in United Kingdom,
and he has served as company secretary for various Hong Kong
listed companies. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has extensive experience as a
professional in the fields of accounting, auditing and company
secretarial matters.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the 2023 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 66 to 67.

The state of the Group'’s affairs as at 31 December 2023 is set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 68 to
69.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the 2023 Financial Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2023 Financial
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 70 to 71.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2023, calculated under the Company Law of the PRC,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was established (2022:
Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles.
Under the laws of the PRC, the Company would be obliged to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the financial information of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 225 and 226.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

For the 2023 Financial Year, the Company did not establish or
implement any share option scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the 2023 Financial Year and
up to the date hereof are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Chunfeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leng Xiao Rong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chau Ting Yan
Mr. Yin Zong Chen (retired on 30 January 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang

Ms. Jiang Hai Ling (appointed on 30 January 2024)
Mr. Mao Hai Bin (appointed on 30 January 2024)
Mr. Guo Lu Jin (retired on 30 January 2024)

Ms. Gao Hong Hong (retired on 30 January 2024)
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The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent to the Group in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in the Listing
Rules.

In accordance with Article 114 of the Articles, all the Directors shall
be appointed at the general meeting for a term of three years. A
Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiry
of the term. All Directors have been elected/re-elected at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 30 January 2024. Please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 11 January 2024 for
details.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on pages 17 to 22.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from his/her
date of appointment as a Director or Supervisor (or until the expiry
of the term of the current session of the Board or the Supervisory
Committee) and thereafter subject to termination by either party
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the Supervisors
has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
SIGNIFICANCE TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACT

Apart from the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts
disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance related to the Group’s business to which the Group
was a party, and in which a Director or Supervisor or an entity
connected with a Director or a Supervisor had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, which subsisted during or at the end of
the 2023 Financial Year.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, chief executives
and supervisors of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by the Directors as referred to in Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, save for the Directors, chief executives
and supervisors of the Company, the following corporations and
individuals had interests and/or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:

Interest owners Shares

BEFEA

V&)

1 Beijing Hua Xia Ding
Technology Company Limited*
EREERMEBERAA

2 Huang Guang Fu (Note 1)
HRERR (A77F 1)

* For identification purpose only

420,000,000 Domestic Shares
420,000,000 & R & P&

420,000,000 Domestic Shares
420,000,000 i& A& B

A4

PN

EE BRETHAEBREES
Bt & 8

= 5
7 7 5 1E 1 B8t 5% B B0 AR 1)
B R AR RS R A

v

mp

R2023F 128318 MEARAESE &
BITHA B REENAREREAMERE
(FERBHFRHEGFIEXVED) BRMD -
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BN TR RAR (BEREZESER
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BEWE=DSORE) b)) EREBEEFARBAE
16191 28 352 - ZB 78 A RZ 6191 BTt 9 & 7 11 &Y
BERBKR  R(OBIE LR B EC3AT
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MR TR SR B o
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A BN R AR AR () B AR IR 5 & AP
EIEHIEXVERE 2 B3NGB ARE
FARABIRBRAAER R SRR - IR
BEASRAEGRIIEIB6IEARRR AET
MERMATREMER R AR

Percentage of total
issued share capital
(note 5)
HEBITRAE
BYEEDL

(Ktat5)

28.58%
28.58%

28.58%
28.58%
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Notes:

*

Shares

Interest owners

BEFHEA

&)

Beijing Lichuang Future
Technology Company Limited*
ERNEIRER KB R QA

Zhai Ming Yue (Note 2)
B2 A (MiF2)

Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long
Investment Company Limited*
RERREIREARAR]

Zhang Song (Note 3)
SRAD (B 7E3)

HKSCC Nominees Limited (Note 4)
BEARREE (RIEAN)BRAF
(Hiat4)

Huang Guang Fu is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests in Beijing
Hua Xia Ding Technology Company Limited*. Pursuant to section 316 of the
SFO, Huang Guang Fu is also deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares
held by Beijing Hua Xia Ding Technology Company Limited*.

Zhai Ming Yue is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests in Beijing
Lichuang Future Technology Company Limited*. Pursuant to section 316 of the
SFO, Zhai Ming Yue is also deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares
held by Beijing Lichuang Future Technology Company Limited*.

Zhang Song is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests in Shenzhen
Wan Zhong Run Long Investment Company Limited*. Pursuant to section 316
of the SFO, Zhang Song is deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares
held by Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long Investment Company Limited*.

For identification purpose only

180,000,000 Domestic Shares
180,000,000 & A & P&

180,000,000 Domestic Shares
180,000,000 & N & &
140,000,000 Domestic Shares

140,000,000 i% A & A%

140,000,000 Domestic Shares
140,000,000 & R & &

598,977,515 H-Shares (listed Shares)

598,977,515 B H A% (/i ifn)

opsa

*

Percentage of total
issued share capital
(note 5)
HEBTRE
BYEDL

(K&t 5)

12.25%
12.25%

12.25%
12.25%

9.53%
9.53%

9.53%
9.53%

40.76%

40.76%
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4. As notified by HKSCC Nominees Limited, as at 31 December 2023, the
following participants of CCASS had interests amounting to 5.00% or more of
the total issued H-Shares as shown in the securities accounts in CCASS:

(1) The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as nominee
holds 84,734,740 H-Shares, representing approximately 14.00% of the
issued H-Shares.

2) Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee holds 77,200,000
H-Shares, representing approximately 12.75% of the issued H-Shares.

(3) Ever-long Securities Company Limited as nominee holds 64,574,000
H-Shares, representing approximately 10.66% of the issued H-Shares.

5. The percentages of total issued share capital in this table were calculated based
on the number of issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2023, being 1,469,376,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company
has not been notified of any interests and/or short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the 2023 Financial Year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 57.21%
— five largest customers combined 100%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 80.18%
— five largest suppliers combined 96.67%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers disclosed above.
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TAX RELIEF

The Board is not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

DONATIONS

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Group made a charity donation
of RMB100,000 (2022 Corresponding Period: RMB29,000).

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. Following a specific enquiry, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the 2023 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHT TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors and Supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to acquire
Shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate,
or had exercised any such right during the 2023 Financial Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the 2023 Financial Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the 2023 Financial Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group under the applicable accounting standards during the
2023 Financial Year are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the related party transactions disclosed in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in the
Listing Rules which are subject to the reporting, announcement or
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the 2023 Financial Year
and a discussion of the Group’s future prospects are set in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 12 and the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report
respectively.

Risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group have been
addressed in the Management Discussion and Analysis on page 16

of this annual report.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Likely development in the Group’s business

The likely development of the Group is shown in the Business
Prospects section in the Management Discussion and Analysis and
Chairman’s Statement in this annual report.

An analysis using financial key performance indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to the
business of the Group are set out in the Financial Review section in
the Management Discussion and Analysis and the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Environmental policies and performance

Environmental protection is critical to the long term development
of the Group. The Group places importance in the management
practice so as to minimise waste, maximise efficiencies and reduce
negative impact on the environment.

Relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and
others

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of the requirements and complaints of the
customers. The Group conducts appraisal of the performance of
the suppliers on a regular basis.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has an on-going review of the newly
enacted laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group. The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
business of the Group.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, is
interested in any business that competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, nor has
any other conflict of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the date hereof.

AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 2023
Financial Year have been audited by Asian Alliance (HK) CPA
Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. The Company will propose relevant resolutions at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “"AGM")
in this regard.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman
Shenyang, the PRC, 25 March 2024
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The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics which are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time to comply with the regulatory
requirements and to improve the corporate governance practice.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the 2023 Financial Year,
except the following:

Code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code requires that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors. The Company did not arrange such
insurance cover during the 2023 Financial Year as Directors
considered that the risk of material legal claims against Directors is
minimal. Nevertheless, the Board will review this arrangement from
time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances and arrange for
appropriate insurance coverage when necessary.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board, which currently comprises 7 Directors, including three
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jing Ming as chairman of
the Board, Mr. Huang Chunfeng as the chief executive officer of
the Company and Mr. Leng Xiao Rong; one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Chau Ting Yan; and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang, Ms. Jiang Hai Ling and Mr.
Mao Hai Bin. The Board is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy and risk management to protect Shareholders'’
interest. Daily operation and administration are delegated by the
Board to the executive Directors and the management of the
Company.

The brief biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section headed “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” of this report. All the Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. The composition of
the Board is well balanced as all the Directors have experience in
their field of expertise with a balance of skills, knowledge and
experience relevant to the operation of the Group.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the
Board.
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The Board has three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualifications. In
addition, an non-executive Director is appointed to provide
guidance to the Board.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independent of the management of the Company.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, in particular, (i)
independent non-executive Directors are encouraged to actively
participate in the Board meetings; (ii) the number of independent
non-executive Directors is in compliance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules; and (iii) independent professional advice are
obtained at the Company’s expense to ensure that the independent
non-executive Directors will have access to accurate and relevant
professional views in the performance of their responsibilities. The
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
above mechanisms on an annual basis.

The Directors believe that the objectives of corporate governance
should focus on long-term financial performance and should not
be limited to short-term returns. The Board will not take
unnecessary risks to achieve short-term gains at the expense of
long-term goals.

During the 2023 Financial Year, the chairman of the Company has
held one meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors to discuss the Company's
strategy, Director’s contributions, and their independent view.

The terms of appointment for all the executive Directors,
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are 3 years. All the Directors shall be elected or removed by the
Shareholders in general meeting according to the Articles.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The policy relating to the board diversity of the Group (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) sets up the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board in order to ensure the members of the Board have the
required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and other qualities.
In determining an optimum composition of the Board and its
committees, the Company will consider all aspects of diversity, and
take into account the Company’s business model and specific
needs from time to time. The selection of candidates is based on a
range of measurable objectives, including but not limited to
ethnicity, language, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, as well as professional experience. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
but not limited to business management, finance, audit,
investment, civil engineering and macroeconomic adjustment and
social development. They obtained degrees in various majors
including business administration, accounting, architecture and civil
engineering, finance and sociology. The Board Diversity Policy also
sets out the Board’s commitment to gender diversity and other
diversity aspects, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity
on the Board. The Company currently has one female Director, and
the Board will take opportunities to increase the proportion of
female members over time as and when selecting and making
recommendations on suitable candidates as Directors.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) is of the view that the Board has achieved the
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy and shall review the Board
Diversity Policy and measurable objectives at least annually, and as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
will discuss any or necessary amendments on the Board Diversity
Policy and propose the amendments to the Board for approval.

The Group also adhered to the diversity concept, including but not
limited to the gender perspective, in recruitment of employees. For
the 2023 Financial Year, the Group had 48 employees, of which
approximately 43.75% were female. The Company is of the view
that the current composition of employees has achieved gender
diversity.
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TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Group’s businesses and their statutory
supervision responsibilities as directors of listed companies. The
Company will update the Directors on the latest development
regarding the Group’s businesses as well as the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, where appropriate. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in training
programmes held by qualified professionals in relation to the
revised code and amendments to the relevant Listing Rules, so as to
develop and update their knowledge and skills.

During the 2023 Financial Year, all the Directors have participated
in proper continuous professional development trainings to update
their knowledge and skills by attending briefings, conferences,
programmes, workshops and seminars as well as by way of further
education and self-study, so as to understand their roles, functions
and responsibilities. All Directors provided a record of training to
the Company.

A summary of training received by the Directors is as follows:
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Training areas

B E
Listing rules Company’s
and their internal

compliance regulations
Directors 2= ETRARER RARARBRA
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SR AR S A 4 4
Mr. Huang Chunfeng EHEEREE v v/
Mr. Leng Xiao Rong RN A v v
Non-executive Directors HFHITEE
Mr. Chau Ting Yan AEMEE 4 4
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE v v
Independent Non-executive Directors 3"“7”2 FEMITEE
Mr. Guo Lu Jin BELAE v/ v
Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang é&ﬁ?@ﬁ‘ﬁi v 4
Ms. Gao Hong Hong [SHAR R dun v 4
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During the 2023 Financial Year, five Board meetings, one AGM and
one EGM were held and the attendance of each Director is set out
as follows:

R202BFHBEFE  ARABTARES
gE  —ARRBFRE R RBRR%H
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Board
meetings AGM EGM
IR =R IR

Exegea BEXRE BRIXE

Executive Directors: HITEF -
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRARER 5 A
Mr. Huang Chunfeng H5HEBEE
Mr. Leng Xiao Rong RN
Non-executive Directors: F#iTESE
Mr. Chau Ting Yan AEMREE
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE

Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIFHITESF :

Mr. Guo Lu Jin FEELE
Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang e e
Ms. Gao Hong Hong B4t

All the Directors have access to the advice and assistance of the
joint company secretaries of the Company in relation to the Board
procedures and corporate governance matters.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded all the matters
discussed by the Board and the matters resolved. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the joint company secretaries of the Company
and are available for inspection by any Director.

5/5 11 11
5/5 1M 171
5/5 171 171
5/5 171 11
5/5 11 11
5/5 171 171
5/5 171 171
5/5 171 11
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company are segregated and not exercised by the
same individual. The chairman of the Board is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming
and the chief executive officer of the Company is Mr. Huang
Chunfeng.

With the support of the joint company secretaries of the Company,
the chairman of the Board ensures all the Directors are provided
with adequate information on matters discussed at Board meetings
in a timely manner.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established on 13 February
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. At 31 December 2023, the majority of committee members
are independent non-executive Directors and the committee
chairman is Mr. Guo Lu Jin (independent non-executive Director).
Other committee members are Mr. Chau Ting Yan (non-executive
Director) and Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang (independent non-executive
Director).

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;

J to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
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to make recommendations to the Board on the specific
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment
and to make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration on non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee shall consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The Remuneration Committee shall also ensure
that the remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract
and retain directors to run the Company successfully without
paying more than necessary;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any
service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

to review from time to time as appropriate the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee and the
effectiveness of the Remuneration Committee and
recommend to the Board any necessary changes.
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Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

FHNZEEeeRNEYLEFBOT -

Attended/

Eligible to

Attend

CHiE

Members RE EEREE
Mr. Guo Lu Jin (Chairman) LBRESLA (EE) 11
Mr. Chau Ting Yan AEME A 11
Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang EEETAE 1/1

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Remuneration Committee has
considered and reviewed the existing terms of employment
contracts of the executive Directors and the non-executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee also assessed the
performance of executive Directos.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Company by
band for the 2023 Financial Year are set out in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 13
February 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. At 31 December 2023, the majority of committee
members are independent non-executive Directors and the
committee chairman is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (executive Director).
Other committee members are Mr. Guo Lu Jin and Ms. Gao Hong
Hong (both are independent non-executive Directors).

The duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

. to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience, length of service and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

o to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;
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o to identify individuals who are qualified/suitable to become a
member of the Board and to select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships. Academic and professional
qualifications, business experience, expertise, knowledge and
diversity of perspectives required from members of the Board
as well as other requirements under the Listing Rules will be
assessed to determine if the nomination is suitable;

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors to determine their eligibility;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular, the chairman and the chief executive
and the policy concerning the diversity of the Board members,
and the measurable objectives for implementing such policy;

o to review and implement the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy,
and the progress on achieving these objectives;

o to review and implement the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate. This includes the nomination procedures and the
process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship set out in the Nomination Policy; and

o other matters authorised by the Board.
NOMINATION POLICY
Selection Criteria

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”)
for Directors was formally adopted which incorporated the
nomination criteria and principles for Directors that are set out in
the Nomination Committee’s terms of reference. The Nomination
Policy applies to the Directors and where applicable, senior
management prepared for Board positions under the succession
planning of the Company.

The Nomination Policy aims to (i) set out the criteria and process of
the Company in the nomination and appointment of Directors; (ii)
ensure the Board members have the required skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that conforms to the Company’s business;
and (iii) ensure the Board continuity and maintain its leadership
role.
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In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

o character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy and diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy;

o any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board;

o requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules;

o any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

o willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and Board committee(s);
and

o such other aspects that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where necessary, may be
amended by the Nomination Committee and/or the Board.

Appointment of New Director

a.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new Director and
the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

EE KR EAREABTEES B2
BT 518

e MmIBHEWME:

o BIE BIEHEER - AL M@ LH
AARIEBRRBEEBOLER AR
BEEERBEL BRI EZ T
fEEE

s REHEFEREZIT/IEMEMNMET
AT E R

e WRELMARA EFEFEEBILIF
WITEENRTE  UAR2ELHRA
MFIBRRE AR SRR S BRI S

o REANEXRER WL &R WU
HERERNZTETHAREEEHK
M EEER

EARE N T ERIRNE RN EE
ﬁ%%i%‘ﬁkﬁ&%ﬂ%i%A%T
ZEEK

ﬂ]

s ERRARBREBHREETTENE
ﬁﬁ’iﬁl% REZEGR/RESF
SHEAREREBHREE -

ZEHNEE

a REZESRLEZGREKIZ
THEFHEZRREANEAER
(RERIFEIB) & - RIE L ERIFHAE
ZIREN NHEZEEAREEE
REEEE -

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023



o3

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them
by order of preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

c.  The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship,
where applicable.

d.  For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out above, and
make recommendations to Shareholders in relation to the
resolution on election of a Director at the general meeting,
where applicable.

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

a.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review
the overall contribution and service of the retiring Director to
the Company and the level of participation and performance
on the Board.

b.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring Director who
stands for re-election continues to meet the criteria as set out
above.

c.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendations to Shareholders in respect of the
resolution on re-election of the retiring Director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a
candidate as Director at the general meeting, the relevant
information of the candidate will be set out in the circular to
Shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the
Listing Rules and/or relevant applicable laws and regulations.

b. fHERFIR—BHZHABNEEA -
AIREZEER HEFSRRER
RANFTEREREEANEARS
() BN RF MBS RFF

¢ REZEBCEHEREBIZESBEANERE
TEF-FREFSRLER (Waf) -

d HEALHEBEREZRARTBRRK
ELERRBEFNAL RRHRZEE
%/ HEE g EIRE Lt R &
AREAN ARARRAG LERE
EMRRABCRELER (HEm) -

RRRAEGLEHEE

a REZBEgR/HEFTEERTRME
EEHARANBEERMRE - A
REEEEN2EEELRR -

b, REZBER/HEFEFERTE
ErERMRIEELTNALL
R -

¢ REZAGR/AEFUEERBE
KB LERREE RN RR AR
R o

HEFFRABRAG LREZRAFRERR
EERXATREFT  AEBRRASBEME
P BB SR Bk SRS BA B - iR IR
ETRANR, SRR AR R R B 2k #
SHREANBREE R -

2023 EWmE | BEARREROERAT

43



44

Corporate Governance Report

ERER®RSE

Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings
are as follow:

REZEBEERNEYCHFRBOT -

Attended/

Eligible to

Attend

BiHE

Members 4= BERLE
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) SREEA R & (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Guo Lu Jin BBEELE 2/2
Ms. Gao Hong Hong BA ATt 22

During the 2023 Financial Year, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the existing structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board; assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and reviewed the Nomination Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 13 February 2012 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. At 31 December 2023, the
majority of committee members are independent non-executive
Directors and the committee chairman is Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang
(independent non-executive Director). Other committee members
are Mr. Yin Zong Chen (non-executive Director) and Ms. Gao Hong
Hong (independent non-executive Director).

The major duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to handle
any problems of its resignation or dismissal;

° to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence,
objectivity, and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature, scope of the
audit, and reporting obligations before the audit commences;
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o to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports and accounts, half yearly reports
and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them;

° to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or by
the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management
and internal control system;

° to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has the appropriate standing
within the Company, and to review and monitor its
effectiveness; and

o to review the financial and accounting policies and practices
of the Group.

Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as
follow:
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Attended/

Eligible to

Attend

BHiE/

Members RE CERBEE
Mr. Luo Zhuo Qiang (Chairman) BEBLE (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE 3/3
Ms. Gao Hong Hong B4t 3/3

The Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2023, the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.
During the 2023 Financial Year, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company
over the financial reporting of the Company and reviewed the
2023 audit scope and fees.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditor without the
presence of executive Directors.

KEBREE2023F6 A308 IE518 A
RCEZPHZEE N REZ2023F12 A 31
BLFENEEZEFEECRERZES
RREASTENMEEER  YEELER
DWFE c R2023FHMFE - FREE S
BT & B AR R AN EBAZ BRAT 5T A A A B Y
FHME - BRI 2023 FBERBERE -

ERZBECHEREATESNRATER
SNEEAZ B o

2023 EWmE | BEARREROERAT

45



46

Corporate Governance Report

ERER/RRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has not established any committee responsible for
the corporate governance function of the Group, and the function
has been collectively performed by the Board. The Board
acknowledges the overseeing of the corporate governance function
by the Board collectively. The Board is responsible for the corporate
governance functions with the following duties:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations on
changes and updating;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o such other corporate governance duties and functions set out
in the CG Code (as amended from time to time) for which
the Board are responsible.

The Board has reviewed and approved the Corporate Governance
Report set out in this report. The Board has reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, and the
Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the external
auditor and shall develop and implement policies on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. During the 2023
Financial Year, the remuneration of external auditor for audit
service is RMB938,000.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. Following a specific enquiry, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
for the 2023 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements showing a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and in accordance with the statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The statement
of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibility to the Shareholders on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of
the Company and the Group with the supports of finance
department of the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has applied the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and consistently followed the appropriate accounting policies and
provisions of laws.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Supervisory Committee and the Audit Committee to maintain
adequate risk management and internal control systems, to ensure
that a review of the effectiveness of such systems has been
conducted at least annually. Such risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Directors and the Board have an oversight
role to determine that appropriate risk management processes are
in place and that these processes are adequate and effective.
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The Board has reviewed the following annually: (a) the changes,
since the last annual review, in the nature and extent of significant
risks (including ESG risks), and the Company’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment; (b) the scope
and quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks
(including ESG risks) and of the internal control systems and the
work of internal audit; (c) the extent and frequency of report by the
management of monitoring results to the Board (or board
committee(s)) which enables it to assess control of the Group and
the effectiveness of risk management; (d) significant control failings
or weaknesses that have been identified during the period. Also,
the extent to which they have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or
contingencies that have had, could have had, or may in the future
have, a material impact on the company’s financial performance or
condition; and (e) the effectiveness of the processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

The Group’s risk management process involves the identification,
evaluation, response, monitoring and reporting of risks. After risks
that may potentially affect the Group’s business and operations are
identified by the management of the Company, the Board will
perform risk assessment by prioritising the identified risks to
determine key risks exposed to the Group and discuss measures to
mitigate such key risks. Besides, existing risk mitigation measures
are subject to regular monitoring by the management of the
Company, which will review the Group’s risk management
strategies, and report such results and make appropriate
suggestions to the Board.

If material internal control defect was noted, the Company would
conduct continuous tracking for the improvement of internal
control defects, and counsel and support the persons in charge of
internal audit function to ensure good rectification results.

The main features of risk management and internal control
structure of the Company are as follows:

o The Board determines the business strategies and objectives
of the Group, and evaluates and determines the nature and
extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives of the Group and ensures that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems;
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o Heads of major operation units or departments manage risks
through identification and mitigating risks identified in
accordance with the internal guidelines approved by the
Board, the Supervisory Committee and the Audit Committee;

o The management ensures appropriate actions are taken on
major risks affecting the Group’s businesses and operations;
and

o The management is responsible for reporting the findings of
the risk management and internal control, and the Board will
follows up and reviews the same and answer the questions
raised by members of the Supervisory Committee and the
Audit Committee.

During the 2023 Financial Year, all Directors were informed about
the situation of risk management and followed up on its handling
and the internal control system was reviewed, according the
investigations made by the Supervisory Committee, the Audit
Committee and PRO-WIS Risk Advisory Services Limited. As a result
of the foregoing, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and the
Audit Committee consider that the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems were fully, appropriately and effectively
implemented. The Board, with the assistance of the Supervisory
Committee and the Audit Committee, has also reviewed and
expressed its satisfaction on the adequacy of the Company’s
resources, the qualifications and experience of its staff, the training
programmes and the relevant budgets for the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules
and is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any
inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public; and

o has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.
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MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for formulating overall corporate strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group, whereas
the management of the Company is responsible for the daily
hands-on operation.

When the Board delegates its management and administrative
functions to the management of the Company, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of the management of the Company
and in particular, the management of the Company shall obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering
into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Qian Fang Fang was appointed as the joint company secretary
of the Company on 6 March 2014. Mr. Chung Man Wai, Stephen,
engaged from external service provider, was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 8 September 2020. Mr.
Zhang Jing Ming, the chairman of the Board, is the primary contact
for external company secretary. Each of Ms. Qian and Mr. Chung
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the 2023 Financial Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) has
been adopted by the Board on 29 March 2019. The Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders to be
its goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board takes into account,
among others:

o financial performance, liquidity position, business condition
and strategies of the Group;

o actual and future operation and demands for liquidity of the
Group;

o expected future expansion plan of the Group;

o gearing ratio, credit facilities and indebtedness level of the
Group;

. gains, losses, retained profits and distributable reserves of the
Group;
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. general market condition;
o any restrictions against the declaration of dividends; and

o any other relevant factors which the Board may deem
appropriate.

In proposing or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements, future growth and its shareholding value. In
accordance with the Articles, all applicable regulations and factors
above, the Board may, from time to time, pay interim dividends or
special dividends to the Shareholders which the Board considers
reasonable after taking into account of the financial condition and
profit of the Company, and the Company may also announce final
dividends in forms of any currencies at the general meeting,
provided that any dividend must not exceed the amount proposed
by the Board.

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and for
investors to understand the Group's business performance and
strategies. The Company also recognises the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.shenyang747.com, to
provide up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, and corporate
governance practices.
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The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
the Shareholders, in particular, through the AGM or other general
meetings to communicate with the Shareholders and to encourage
their participation. The chairman of the Board as well as the
chairmen of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee will make themselves available at the
forthcoming AGM to meet with the Shareholders.

The chairman of the Board, the chairman or the representatives of
each committee together with the external auditor have attended
the AGM for the 2022 Financial Year to answer any questions
raised by the Shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM will be held in June 2024. The notice of
AGM will be sent to the Shareholders in due course.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on the Group’s business in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements. The Company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the investor communication
policy and considered it to be effective.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward proposal of general
meeting

Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10%
(inclusive) of the Shares shall have the right to propose the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting, and such proposal
shall be made by way of written request(s). The Board shall, in
accordance with the laws, administrative regulations and provisions
of the Articles, provide a written reply stating its agreement or
disagreement to the convening of the extraordinary general
meeting within ten days after receiving such proposal.
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Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 3% (inclusive)
of the Shares may submit ex tempore proposals in writing to the
convener ten days before the Shareholders’ general meeting is
convened. The contents of proposals shall be matters falling within
the functions and powers of Shareholders’ general meetings, set
out specific matters for consideration and resolution, and comply
with relevant requirements of laws, administrative regulations and
the Articles. The convener shall issue supplementary notice of the
Shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the ex
tempore proposals within two days upon receipt of such proposals.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries

Any enquiries regarding the shareholding of H-Shares, including
the transfer of Shares, change of address, loss of certificate, etc.,
should be sent to the Company’s H-Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-16, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Any enquires relating to the Company should be sent to the
Company’s business premise at Room 3802, Block N, Zhidi
Mansion, No. 55 Xinghua North Street, Tiexi District, Shenyang,
PRC for the attention of the chairman of the Board.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During 2023 Financial Year and as at the date hereof, the Company
amended and restated the Articles, among other things, to (i)
comply with the requirements set out in Appendix A1 to the Listing
Rules for listed issuers to adopt a uniform set of 14 “Core
Standards” for shareholder protections; (ii) comply with Guidelines
on Articles of Association of Listed Companies ({ £ A &l £ 72
8 51)) issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and
related guidelines in place of the Mandatory Provisions for
Companies Listing Overseas ((EI3% 40 _E TR &) Z AR WM& ) (i)
incorporate various consequential and housekeeping changes. The
amendments to the Article were considered and approved by
special resolutions passed at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 13 June 2023 and 30 January 2024. Please refer to the circulars
of the Company dated 24 May 2023 and 11 January 2024 for
details of the amendments.
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ROBMMRTE BEARERERIIEREM
AAZERRASMITEN  AERERER
AR -

REREHAESIEF

ERHBRENTHNER (BERDBS -
Faibu c BARES) BIERAQAHH
BOBEELEEEELETARAR i
ItAEBEBEFEFRNERI1SIFAMP 17
171216558 o

BEARFNTAEHERR AR EH
2h (Mhuk & R B E RS T 8 70 [ M EE 4L AT 55 5%
B NEENFEIBRE)NEESTE -

BEXMH

R2023FMBFE  RAFHRAHE - AAFA
B(EPaE) BT ERATER O
A EMRBIMEEAFTE B EMET AR
FR&—Z5) 14 TBRERR R [ 120K F (Core
Standards) ] ¢ (NFFAFEBHEEEEEE
SEMOCETRARERES) RER (R
SN ET AR ER M ERFD) BFEREIE S ¢ (i)
MASBHRENBES - 25 ERR (IBF]TA)
B 202368138 %2024 1 A30H £
THREEAE FRBFIIREREERI
o BREAFE  F2HAAFBEHA
202358248 K 20241 A 11 BHEEK ©
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
EBHEARBERROBRATE

(incorporated in People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenyang
Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 66 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

BEBARBRROARAARR
(R EARHRMEZMALHBR LA

=R

RMERNESABEEROARAR (&
AR REMEBERAR (KEIEEE]) F66
ENABEINWNERE B RE - B2IER 2023
FNRAJNENGREMBRARAREEZ
BIEFEEMGAEER KA BEZREME
AKRER SAESEIRRGEABEERE
RUNGAVMBRENT (REEE K
RERMKEMFRAER) -

BMRE ZEREVBHRERCRERES
A ((EESTMAR]) BHNEEN
B EER (BB BEREERN D MEER
AAaMRET BES£EN2023F12H31H
MZEETBRAREEZA L FENLGREH
BERBRGABERE WO HEBBEERA
BRI EEREZRRER -

RRzZEE

BFRREB ST ASEMNEBZEE
Al ([EBRBEA ) ETES - RIOREZ
SRANETFHHERRMNHRE AE A5
BB BB AENE L8 - IRIBE
BEEMAGRMOEEXEF AT TR
(T<FRD) - HFIBLRY BE&E ARME
FEITIRE ST IR E R < B AE - TPIARIE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

RREETEE

FAREAFTHSRERMANERHE - RA
HARHGREMBHRROBARAEEN SR -
BUERREHGAMBRABRBETET
YHRERNE R TETRIER - HFITY
BUEBEEHEBENER -

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEREHEE SBIRE  EIE A B b R A0

Valuation of investment properties

REYFAEE

As disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial  Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of the
statements, at 31 December 2023, investment investment properties included:
properties, which were stated at fair value, amounted ISR EMELENETRFEIE:

to approximately RMB205,500,000.

INGRE ISR FI20 T #E 58 & - M 20234 12H —  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
31H BAABEIENEREMERNARE objectivity of the independent professional valuer;
205,500,000 7T © — FHEBUEXRMGEMNED 8RBT
Loss from changes in fair value of investment properties —  Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness
of approximately RMB29,700,000 was recognised in the of the valuation methodologies; and

Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss for the — FHEBETENEEMHRAEME &

year ended 31 December 2023.

B BEEHZ2023F12A31BIEFENGEER
FHEAREVWELABEEZDEENARE
29,700,000 7T °

The management performed valuations on the fair
value of investment properties with the assistance from
an independent professional valuer.
EREEBYEXGHEMANEN THREMENR
REEETTTRHE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE®RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREETER

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

RENMENMEEE)

The fair value of certain investment properties were
determined by adopting the term and reversion analysis
of investment approach. The valuation is sensitive to
market rents with key inputs including rental in
reversionary yield and yield.
ETREMELAABEDEBRE T EZNGREE
BoTET - HEHAFHARGARBNTSES
PR BREEFKEES MREX -

The fair values of certain investment properties were
determined by adopting the direct comparison method.
The valuation is sensitive to market unit rate of
comparable properties and adjustment factors for size,
view and floor level of property and timing of the
comparable transactions.
ETREMEAABENRBERLEBIAERE ~ &
BEHALYMENTRELERYERE SBLE
& B 58 B8 PR = DA I 7T Bb 32 5 B e P &2 R UK ©

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, combined with the judgements involved in
determining the inputs used in the valuation.
BMRARREMENGERBRESEE  HER
REMEEERGEVBBRRPAENEEEKR
I b E kB PR E A 0 B A BRSO I 1 o

ERETEE %)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZHERENEREETTROMEHN

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs

used in the valuation of investment properties at
year end, including the rental in reversionary yield,
yield, market rents, market unit rate of individual
unit and adjustment factors for size, view and floor
level of property and timing of comparable
transactions against current market data and entity
specific information on a sample basis.

— RERFHEREVEGEMABRBABENS

B BRERKEES  kEX mHEES -
BESBMOMISEMRNYERE SBREE
MABEER  UEARER  BRENHSHIE
RERFEEFETAILRGNERER -
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Independent Auditor’s Repor

BB RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREETER

Impairment assessment of deposits paid for
acquisition of properties

BB 3 P73 11 5T & 1Y 8L 16 AT 1

As disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2023, deposits of
approximately RMB149,100,000 (the “Properties
Deposits”) was paid for acquisition of properties (the
“Properties Acquisition”).

WANGR A B SRR 5 24 T3 #E - 7020234512 A 31
H EEDE (MEREB]) XHNTNARE
149,100,000 7C ([ %51 £ 1) -

The management performed a valuation on the
properties with the assistance from an independent
professional valuer. With reference to the valuation, the
management concluded that an impairment loss of
approximately RMB11,802,000 was recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2023.
EREAEBYREGLEMB THYELETHE-
reEHER BERELE SEEEZE2023F12
ABMBLEFENGEERXPERAREEERENA
K #11,802,0007T °

ERETEE %)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZHERENEREETTROMEHN

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment

assessment of deposits paid for acquisition of properties

included:

BAERBY R R] ERRERHENE 285

—  Performing an independent check on the ownership

of the land in which the properties located;

— HYMERENTHEERETELASE

— Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the independent professional valuer;

— MEBUEXMGEMHNBED N REEINL

— Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness

of the valuation methodologies;

— FHEBEIENEEERAEM

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of source data of

significant inputs, including comparable market
transactions used by the valuer;

— FHEERBARBENAEN - BRMAERTA

AmERS
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BYZBE®RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) ERETEE#)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREEITER ZHERBETEREENTROMAESEHN

Impairment assessment of deposits paid for
acquisition of properties (Continued)

BKIBY AT (15T & B9 B AE 7T 1E ()

We identified the impairment assessment of the —  Obtaining an understanding from the management
Properties Deposits for the Properties Acquisition as a about the status of the construction process and
key audit matter due to the fact that management’s progress of the Properties Acquisition;
assessment of the recoverable amount of the Properties — RERETHIIREENMERBEERNIBR
Deposits involved significant judgment.
ENEEBEHMETSIRRKRESENTHEHFLEAKR —  Obtaining a confirmation from the vendor with
FIE - BPISmEREOYERT 2 ORER(GSE respect to the amount of the Properties Deposits as
BB ERT =18 - at 31 December 2023;

— BETEFN2023F12A31BMET 2 EN

HBRE

— Reviewing the relevant correspondences and
documents provided by the management to
evaluate the status and progress of the Properties
Acquisition; and

—  EHEEERHENMERE &S AT AR
BERALER &

— Discussing with the management on the timing on
when the Properties Acquisition can be finalised.
— HEBREINRVERBAKAEE -
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BB RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREETER

Assessment of net realisable value of properties
under development

B3 i Y] R o] B B R E AL

As disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2023, properties under
development (“PUD") amounted to approximately
RMB207,200,000. The carrying amounts of PUD are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV").
WANAR A S RER M S 18 AT EE - 7020234512 A 31
B READE(TREFDEI)NDARE
207,200,000 7T © F 3 1 47 5% &) B [ {8 12 A AN B2 A] &
WEE(ATEREE]) FOBREETR -

The management performed a valuation on the PUD
with the assistance from an independent professional
valuer. With reference to the valuation, the
management concluded that a write-down of
approximately RMB16,470,000 was recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2023.
EREEBECEEMERMB THRERYEET
hE -K2ELER ERELEL ES5EHZE
2023F 12 A31 B L FENFE BmR P 2 BERMR
# AR ¥ 16,470,000 7T ©

We identified the assessment of the NRV of the PUD as
a key audit matter due to the fact that management’s
assessment of the NRV of the PUD involved significant
judgment.

ERERBHRAETYEAZR FENTHIRE
RAE - AP FHE R YR A BB FEFEIIME
BREEER -

ERETEE %)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZHERENEREETTROMEHN

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the NRV of PUD included:
BPERAERYENRETEOETIEFRIE

— Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer;

— MEBUEXMGEMNBESD  EOREEINL

— Assessing the appropriateness and reasonableness
of the valuation methodologies;
— AMERERENEE LSRN

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of source data of
significant inputs, including comparable market
transactions used by the valuer;

— AMEERBARBIENSIEM  BEMEERMAA
ALEMIsER S

—  Obtaining an understanding from the management
about the status of the construction process and
progress of the PUD;

— RERETHIREENABERYELERNBR:

— Reviewing the relevant correspondences and
documents provided by the management to
evaluate the status and progress of the PUD; and

—  BHEEERMHOMEREE R R ARG E S
MEBRLER - K

—  Discussing with the management on the timing on
when the construction of PUD can be completed.
— HERENwEETYRAFAEE -
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BYZBE®RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREETER

Impairment assessment on other receivables

H fth & e 5 6 18 S F 1

As disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gross
amount of other receivables of approximately
RMB139,270,000, and an allowance of credit losses of
approximately RMB119,390,000 were included in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.
WANGR A B IS R MT E 28 T #E - 7020234712 A 31
H - B5%REH M REYRATEL AR 139,270,000
TREEBEBEN AR 119,390,0007T 2 &F
A BEEEOESHBARRNE -

Impairment losses on other receivables, net of reversal,
of approximately RMB4,046,000 was recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

H fth fE W FORE BB (OB @) 89 A K ¥ 4,046,000
TER BEREEHZE2023F12A31BIEFENGE
BERPER -

The allowance for credit loss of other receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at the end
of the reporting period of expected credit losses under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial
Instrument’s Expected Credit Loss Model, with the
assistance of an independent professional valuer.
HthE K FNEEBRBREREEERBEBLEEM
BB TREFTEMBRELAEIR : [£/
TANEHREERERA | HEREEERENREH
REVRAELET

The management assessed whether the credit risk of
other receivables have increased significantly since their
initial recognition, and apply a three-stage impairment
model to calculate their expected credit losses.

EIRE R E R E E R B 156 HE R AR
EBBEEN - WER=RBRBERE T HE AT
EEEE -

— RBEERTE

ERETEE %)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZHERENEREETPIROMEHN

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of other receivables included:

HAEBEEMEKFURENENEIRFBHE

— Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer;

— HMEBUEXMGEMNER N RFBIE

— Understanding and evaluating the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness of the
model selection and key measurement parameters
determination;

— TBRIUFGEHEEHEEERNERT L - T

BREENAREFTTIBAEL2HREARE

—  For the historical information, discussing with the

management to understand the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults and credit-impaired receivables,
corroborated management’s explanation with
supporting evidence;

HEREN®  WMATHE
BEBMNEERRBEELN  BHREEREE
WHHITE  UWEBERERENRERE
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BB RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREETER

The measurement models of expected credit losses
involves significant management judgement and
assumptions, primarily including the following:
EHMEEBFRNAERE S R EIRESE XA &R
B EERFEATEIE:

o selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters,
including probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default;

e  HEBEEMEL  WETHEBENBRIESH
EREEENBE  BOBREELORBR
[

o criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk or a default;

and
e ETEERRMECEEZLENFEHORETFTLN
T

o economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

o AR MUENKEERARKEES MiE
BEREM -

We consider impairment assessment on other
receivables as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements
and the significant estimates and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance on the
other receivables.

BPRA/EMEUKOREF ERERETFE
TR EHGEMBRRONEENARETFTAM
JEW R TR BRE & B IR B PP ) B KA 5 B 1 B
PR -

— BAEMGEMS

ERETEE %)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZHERENEREETTROMEHN

—  For forward-looking measurement, assessing the

reasonableness of economic indicator selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data;

CRHERBEREREE LS
BRESRAEAAE  WEBLLEITEEUERT
At EEAE

—  Challenging the management the sufficiency of

impairment loss based on the specific facts and
circumstances; and

— REABFERERL UREBBENTEEERE
EEE M

—  Checking major data inputs used in the expected

credit loss models on sample basis to the Group's

record.
— WA SELEHANTBREEBSERAMA
FEHERAE-

2023FEHRE | BEARARRROBRATE

61



62

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE®RE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Hftt &%

BERRESHFHEMENAR - HWEHNE
EHHERFRANER  BETEREES T
AR RBRANZEBE RS -

BPHGEMBREANBELAL TRELMBE
B BT EZEEMEMNBEREMTER

HEEE A o

BRRMEEEUBHREANET  HANE
TRMABEBEMEN  HIBREY  ZEHMD
EMEREGRAMBRRARMEETBRE
AT BN FEEREKE SR E AT FE
EREHRNEN - ERBEFIERITHITNE
MREMBREMERFEERE®R - M
FEMEZFE - UL RPIUEARESEH -

EERAEERANALIRGREY
BRRAENEFE

BERREBEFAAEREBEE BN ASHEM
MBI WS R BB R RGP MR
RERBEEMAANGAMBRSE - LY
ERRREEAVMBRROBE N FEHR
HRFF Bk R R T 2 B e B K 88 R PT 7 O PO RR 4
HEE-

ERESAVHBRRE - BERAREFAER
A BERERECENRED  TEERE
ATHRBEEBELLEBNER  URER
SERERGHER KRIF BELREERESR
B BEEEFRAFULELE  HPEEM
BERMEBRITSER -

BEEAMALTRAEEE ESENMBR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

MBS M MRAE

®E
HMEE

]
£

BFNBER  SHGAMBHRREEBRES
FHEBR ”*’Eiﬁa%&ﬁﬁ&f@lmﬁkfﬁiﬁﬁx
BERE  WHABRRMERMZEE R
T REBRFNBERRGR  RAESE2
BARREL®RE  RULASN  ARELHEE
A - AT ERARERNDTE EME A
ATHEESE LEE - AEREZSKFH
RAE - ETRARBRBREBRBCEANETH
Bi EX-EAEBMEERAEERR - &
WA LARRGF ARSI - IMRAIEEHE
P BN E MR A e BER A M MR (&
PR RREAR & B 75 MR PR VS BRE
A BB R 3 W AT AR IEE X ©

ERBEERBERETENOBES R
PERTHEXHE  RIEFETEREREE -
#AIIL

— BB A0 EEh B 50 BREE S8E AR T B BUR
EMBHRREFHEEAERNER R
AEBTEAREF AR ELRR
ARERFT R MEENETERE F
REMERNER AR BRGFAI 8
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F R o

— TREFRTHBENRBIES
HENEFRRF 1E|EE’\HI#£ ﬁ
SERIIEFNEREERER -

— FHE ERREEMERAEHERRDN
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BN -

2023FEHE | BHARAREROERAE

63



64

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBE®RE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

RBE MBS e MK RRAE
NEE @)

REERERABELERSFERD
REE RIREMERNESERE
METEFHEEFSHEKBEABHENE
ATAEEE - EMAEEHY &
BEORERERNELERRE - 11
REMRBRAEFEERNTREEN BB
VEEZBMBEPRBEAELR
RAVBRRTOHEBRE -REA
e E T RIRMAES SR
B R R o TP H0 A5 e R AR 0 AR A 3R
SFHIEARENESERRE - AWM K
KREEHIFERAATEEH BEBETRE

FERE -

— FESEMBHREROBEZ2HOA
RENAR BREEE UREAY
BHREEBAARRBBEIZMEIR -

— B EEBEARERIEKIBNONE
BEHERTE BENETRE N
BHEAUBHRRERER -HME
B ESBEEFNTE - EEMNT -
BMABFERAER2HEEL -

BREMERIN RALBEERNALRR
eI ERTHE  BETH  EXFAHR
% BRERMERE PRSI HAEES O E
[EEFNN K

BT ABEEEAMALTIRRRER  SHHBK
MEMaARBIEMNEEERERESR
WEMPIBREARAEBMERRELER
B e EREMEMEIER  URESE
FEVERT - FAERR ELE 91T B Sk SR AN A
Dr #1581 o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chung Chi Chiu

Practising Certificate Number: P06610

8/F., Catic Plaza
8 Causeway Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

25 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEeEBEEX

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2023 2022
o= = —

—_—=< — — —_—<

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Revenue g 7
Contracts with customers BE&4 = 27,959
Leases Fish= 1,498 1,468
Total revenue Pl g 1,498 29,427
Cost of sales fHE KA (85,369) (26,610)
Gross (loss) profit (E8B)EF (83,871) 2,817
Other income HAn g A 9 2,175 1,920
Impairment losses under expected TEEEEEEREE T O

credit loss model, net of reversal BEEE - kR 11 (6,890) (36,900)
Impairment loss recognised in respect Ht 215 5] & FERRE R (B &5 18

of deposits paid 24 (11,802) (11,046)
Loss from changes in fair value KEMERAAEBEEESNERS

of investment properties 20 (29,700) (18,200)
Administrative and operating expenses 77} & 4 5 5 (14,681) (13,937)
Finance costs BhE PR A 10 (1,824) (478)
Loss before tax BB A 5 18 (146,593) (75,824)
Income tax expense FTiS i X 12 (37) -
Loss for the year FRER 13 (146,630) (75,824)

Loss for the year attributable to: BT ATEMFRERS !

— Owners of the Company BYN/NETE TN (137,159) (73,521)
— Non-controlling interests — JEE iR (9,471) (2,303)
(146,630) (75,824)

Loss per share BRER 15
— Basic (RMB cents) — BER(ARESD) (9.33) (5.00)
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#E(ARED) N/A 38 A N/A 7T~ i FA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or |

ReEEkEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

FRER

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense Htt2mEAX

Items that will not be reclassified TEEH S HEEERZHAA -

to profit or loss:

Fair value loss on investments in equity & AR BE AEME2E WA
instruments at fair value through WIRATAEZENAREER
other comprehensive income B8

Items that may be reclassified subsequently B {& AlfEE 3T D M ZE 8m 2 HH -

to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

BEBIRBELEZIER R

Other comprehensive expense for the year, F R H M2 E S - KRS
net of income tax

ive Income

Total comprehensive expense FREHEMAZEE
for the year
Total comprehensive expense THEEE2EBAXERE:
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — RRFHEEA
— Non-controlling interests — RS

2023FEHRE | BEARARRROBRATE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
(146,630) (75,824)
(3,848) (3,683)
(24) (11
(3.872) (3,694)
(150,502) (79,518)
(141,031) (77,215)
(9.471) (2,303)
(150,502) (79,518)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma BRI R

At 31 December 2023
2023412 8318

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI")

Deposits paid
Deferred tax assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development
Contract costs

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Deposits and other receivables
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities — current portion
Other borrowings

Amount due to a shareholder
Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

FRBEE
W - BE k&
EREEE
BREME

BEAnEESARMEE
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Htp Z2HE WA J) H AR

IA
BEXNE]®
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REBEE
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BRI
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HRBIIRIT AR
e kReFEEHA

DERFELHEERE

RBAE

JEAS BR K

Hip B EE B
HERE — RSB
H &%

N — B IRIR IR
BIEAR

REBEEFRE
HEERRBEE

17
19
20

22
24
35

18
25
26
27
28
29
29

23

30
32
33
34
39

2023
o=

— ==

RMB’000
AR®T R

2022
= —

=

RMB'000
ARBTT

273 441

207 567
205,500 235,200
19,221 28,169
119,082 130,884
- 31
344,283 395,292
207,200 175,580
4,112 72,926
2,188 13,125

- 433
23,558 43,212
42,507 41,856
3,741 6,557
283,306 353,689
5,100 -
288,406 353,689
149,825 116,144
50,770 51,245
42 547
7,215 5,415
66 511
1,486 1,483
209,404 175,345
79,002 178,344
423,285 573,636




Consolidatedﬁ Statement of Financial

maE BRI R

At 31 December 2023
2023412 8318

2023 2022
—_Eg:2-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Other payables and accruals Hih A RIA R ERTE A 32 258 258
Lease liabilities — non-current portion & & & —IE & H 33 178 27
436 285
NET ASSETS EEFE 422,849 573,351
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR#E
Share capital % < 36 1,469,376 1,469,376
Reserves & (1,036,673) (895,642)
Equity attributable to owners RAGHER NG ERS
of the Company 432,703 573,734
Non-controlling interests IR (9,854) (383)
TOTAL EQUITY R 422,849 573,351

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 224 were 28 66 & 224 BE#J| MRS MBHME @ KFF
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 &7 2024 4 3 A 25 B ERBREZ L - I

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: BTIERERERESE
Zhang Jing Ming Leng Xiao Rong
RAEA RN
Director Director
EF BEF

2023FEHRE | BEARARRROBRATE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

At1 January 2022
Loss for the year

Qther comprehensive expense
ttems that will not be reclssified to
profitor loss:
Fair value loss on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOC]

tems that may be recssifed
subsequent)y to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreiqn operations

Other comprehensive expense
forthe year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

At 31 December 2022
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense
ttems that will not be reclssifed to
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOC]

ftems that may be redssified
subsequently to proftor oss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreiqn operations

Other comprehensive expense
forthe year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

At 31 December 2023

RIOR%1 A1
Gl

EHEERY

TEEHIRZRRLRE

BORBET AAM2E
YAMRAIAREN
LnBERR

ARTEER FZREL

B

REEENSHELL
EXZE

FREMEERR
R

FREERRAR

RunERE3E
Gl

EfRERR

TEEfIRZER 2B

RDRBESALRRE
HAMRBTAREY
L EERR
ARTEER I BEREL
B
REEENZRELL
EXzE

FRARRERL
ISR

FREERRAR

RUBENA3NE

Attributable o owners of the Company

KAEEARG
Statutory Non-
Share Share surplus FATOCl  Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve Teserve reserve losses  Subtotal interest
RAMER
FARR
EEER  2EWA
Bx  RftiEg T WRE  EXRE  ZiER Mt FERER ot
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTR ARMTr ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR  ARNT:R
(Note3)) ~ (Notea)  (Noteb)  (Noted)
(W36)  (Wida)  (Wb)  (Aid)
1469376 300476 105,028 (38285) 68 (1205714 650,949 1,920 652869
- - - - - (13521 (B3521) 2303 (75,824)
- - - (3683) - - (3683) - (3683)
) ] ; - () - (1) - (1)
- - - (3,683) m - (3,694) - (3,694)
- - - (3683) (11) (13521 (77215) 2303 (19518)
1,469,376 30476 105,028 (41,988) 5 (129235 573734 () 5B
- - - - - (137159 (137,159) (9471)  (146,630)
- - - (3,848) - - (3,848) - (3,849)
: - - - () - () - ()
- - - (3,848) (24) - (3872) - (3812)
- - - (3,848) (24)  (137,159)  (141,031) (9471 (150,502)
1,469,376 320476 105,08 (45,816) B (14630 432703 (9854) 422849
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

Share premium

Share premium comprises surplus between the value of net assets acquired and
the nominal value of domestic shares issued as a result of the incorporation of
the Company as a joint stock limited company and the share premium from
the issuance of H-shares.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required to set aside 10% of its profit after taxation prepared in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of their respective paid up
capital or registered capital, where further appropriation will be made at the
directors’ recommendation. Such reserve can be used to reduce any losses
incurred or increased the capital.

Distributable reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, distributable reserve shall be the
lower of the accumulated distributable profits determined in accordance with
PRC accounting standards and regulations as stated in the PRC statutory
audited financial statements and the accumulated distributable profits
determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The Group did not have any reserve available for distribution as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

FVTOCI reserve

The FVTOCI reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising from
revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those
equity instruments at FVTOCI are disposed of. Gains and losses arising from
revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

et -

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

BRAEE

et m B e ER RN FEEBEMARTERR
D HARA B EMKZMETHONEREEZH
R AR AR BT HIRPTE £ R B R (E

EEBBARSE

RBFEEAEIFER  AREFERRRE
FREH10% FREERHBRATES  BERZATR
SEIREZEEMCRAREMEARHI50%
E-SHBBRRESRE ZOBSUUARE
BB R R R S G INAR A

0B R

BEFRABZER AIHOR2EEABES
B @t BRI REREBETE 2 HIRFPBUEERLHFZ
M HRRZ B EIIREFEBREFTELARE
STRAIEE 2 B2 REFI M & 2 BIKE -
AR EH 20234 2022 12 A 31 H I £ {1 AT
HOE 2 EE -

BAABEFARMCZERANGGERE

BARBEFAEMBEERANRBEREEREM
2EBAERNER R BE AR 2ERAL
BATASHEENRABAREBR  HBNE
BRABEFALGEERANER TARBE
BEMHDBERENEE - BRAABEFFAELM
EEBANBATASHEEN KRG RERNE
BrHEBTEER S BEER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2023 2022
—_E_-= —EFE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Loss for the year FNEE (146,630) (75,824)
Adjustments for: HE
Income tax FriS 5t 37 -
Interest income B U A (15) (25)
Dividends from equity investments AR HE 1S &R B (1,804) (1,661)
Depreciation of property, W BERBREBETE
plant and equipment 168 165
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAREENE 555 1,135
Impairment losses (reversed) recognised &1 4 M £ /b FE U F &9
on deposits and other receivables, net BEEE (D) R (4,046) 36,886
Impairment losses reversed on contract BREERERBERD
assets (1) (12)
Impairment losses recognised on FEU BR FOR B B 1B TR
trade receivable 10,937 26
Impairment loss recognised in BENET BRI EEIE
respect of deposits paid 11,802 11,046
Impairment losses recognised in respect Bt A LI AN FERIRE E 1B
of contract costs 68,814 -
Write-down of properties under R B 25 R 4 2
developments 16,470 -
Loss from changes in fair value KEMELAABEEZHNEE
of investment properties 29,700 18,200
Finance cost BhE A AR 1,824 478
Operating cash flows before EEECERHANKERSRE
movements in working capital (12,189) (9,586)
Increase in properties under development 532 Fh B9 2£ 12 1 (48,090) (46,312)
Decrease in contract costs B WA R = 26,409
Decrease in deposits and other receivables 5] 4 K2 £ fig W RRL > 23,700 60,174
Increase in trade receivables JFE UK BR R AN - (13,151)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets BHIEERD (M) 434 (126)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables JEASTBR ZR 8 AN Ot ) 33,681 (33,116)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHBaERD - (10,488)
(Decrease) increase in other payables and  E b JE {7 & E =t &
accruals (R )& (475) 3,022
Increase in amount due to a shareholder  JE{F— & A% B I L 0 10,815 -
Cash from (used in) in operations REFBRE (A RS 7.876 (23,174)
Income tax paid ERATSHE (3) (11)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETEHEB (A RESFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,873 (23,185)
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RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flo

ws

2023

— — =

— ==

Dividends received from equity investments &% & B Uik &
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E ¥ % - BE k& E

RMB’000

2022

=
—_

RMB’000

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EEBI FTBHR & F8E

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment to a shareholder
Repayment to non-controlling interest
(Increase) decrease in restricted

bank balances
Repayment of lease liabilities
New other borrowings raised

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR,

represented by cash and cash equivalents

AR®T T ARETF T
BREEH
B UH B 15 25
1,804 1,661
- 9)
1,819 1,677
REEE
BliESEEN (11,260) (16,421)
BERZYE-Fay N - (1,621)
SR AR 1T 45 88 (35 00) k4
(651) 35,245
EBEHEaE (573) (1,210)
E5THHEMER - 5,000
(AR)REMETBHNRSFHE
(12,484) 20,993
BeERRESESEBEERL FHE
(2,792) (515)
R1A1TBNBEERESEHEER
6,557 7,083
EREEHTE FH
(24) (1)
EXRNBEESRBESESHEER
BR & RIS EEIEE 3,741 6,557

2023FEHRE | BEARARRROBRATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

74

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a joint stock limited company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The address of the principal place of business of the
Company in PRC is Room 3802, Block N, Zhidi Mansion, No.
55, Xinghua North Street, Tiexi District, Shenyang, the PRC.

The address of the registered office of the Company in PRC is
No. 1-4, 20A, Central Street, Shenyang Economic and
Technological Development Zone, the PRC.

The address of the principal place of business in Hong Kong
is Room 2507, 25/F., Tower 1, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"). Other than those subsidiaries established
in Hong Kong whose functional currencies are Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), the functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) are RMB.

The Company’s H-shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 16 December 1999.

— R

EEARERBROHARQR (TRQH])
E-REFEARLNE ((HE]D
MR BRAR -

ARRRFEMNEELE MR it
RPEILEME AR AL HSSRE
N RN EE 3802

R )R R B A S AR 2 A
R BRS B MRS RAH
20 1-45% -

ARNBREBNTELSEM I 2 it
BEBLEESIFRNEDRLE —HI25
2507 % °

AR RREERLDR - HH B A F
ITEREBERGEPBRERMEAL0-

RAEMBHRIUAARE TARE]
R BB BRI AL F W B QA A
AL (BT AEEEIN AR
RARAREMBAR (I AEEH])
HMTIBEE™ -

AANTIHHIRE 1999612 A16 B E
ERBERSFARAR ([BRAT])
£
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‘Notes to th
mEUMBRR

e Consolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

REFERFERNHITREBITE
BB REER

RAFE AEBECRERGEVB
WK BAERAUTR2023F1H1H8
Ftaz AEBFEHMBH EBANA
EAESHAAS((BEEGTWHAT))
BHRFEI REET BB BHREE
8l :

BERMBHRERANE TR R D

(B#E2020510 A K

2022F2 A2 BEMT

LR FE 172 BT

)

BEGFTERIE SR S HENTE

(1BETA)

BEREFERE 125 REE—R5

(BFTA) EHEER
BEZIET
BiA

EEGFTERIE 125 BIPR B 5 e

(1BETA) —Fo%E
# AR A

BRGERE 1% SHRERNOER

(BETAR) R BB

MEERIEDIER -

B NPTt E SN A E &R AT
RBETEEW B REERNE A EE
RAFE RIAEFEOIBHARR KK
BR/EHIIRZEGAPBHRRD
BRERUESAZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.2

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments define
accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in
financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty. In such a case, an
entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. The
amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates, and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments narrow the
scope of the recognition exemption of deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and
24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

T 94

[
—
~

[N
i

2.1

2.2
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mEVMBHRRME

Consolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction (Continued)

The application of the amendments in the current year
has had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12: International Tax Reform-Pillar Two model
Rules

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. HKAS 12 is amended to add
the exception to recognising and disclosing information
about deferred tax assets and liabilities that are related
to tax law enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (the “Pillar Two legislation”). The
amendments require that entities apply the
amendments immediately upon issuance and
retrospectively. The amendments also require that
entities to disclose separately its current tax expense/
income related to Pillar Two income taxes in periods
which the Pillar Two legislation is in effect, and the
qualitative and quantitative information about its
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which
the Pillar Two legislation is enacted or substantially
enacted but not yet in effect in annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2.3

A
£y
|

A REETNEEM
SR (EHEBMBRE
DREMEFTHRKEH

FEREBEERE 125 (BT
FELtEE-XENEERSAE
BB AN E ()

FERZFBF AHZEA W HREK
WEBAZE -

FERE BRI RS 125 (BT
) ARHBHE — BB
FHEAINE

REBRAFE B RRANE RBIE
FIAR - HEGEAF12EN
{&&] - EIN—IRBISME R - BN HE
ARBPEREEHRBREENRBEN
B MzRFEERBELER
B EAFBERRAEBM M
ME -XHEBARRA ((FE-XH
ERDMBEMIELD ERMEOH
B ZFBATAREERRN
R CHIRNERE Sy R A By
FERABRERA - ZFERT AT
REBRBDRRERE XX
REMAEES — S HA
B BN BB S B 3 A - A R
CXHEARCEMREG L
BB ARERAR R -F
T=F-A-BEZEFRNEF
EHEHME - £ - EMEHAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12: International Tax Reform-Pillar Two model
Rules (Continued)

The Group is yet to apply the temporary exception
during the current year because the Group's entities are
operating in jurisdictions which the Pillar Two legislation
has not yet been enacted or substantially enacted. The
Group will disclose known or reasonably estimable
information that helps users of financial statements to
understand the Group's exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements when the Pillar Two legislation is enacted or
substantially enacted and will disclose separately
current tax expense/income related to Pillar Two income
taxes when it is in effect.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements is amended to replace all instances
of the term “significant accounting policies” with
“material accounting policy information”. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.
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mEVMBHRRME

onsolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (Continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.
If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-
step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’'s financial positions and
performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Change in accounting policy as a result of

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP") offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong

As disclosed in Note 37, the Group has a subsidiary
operating in Hong Kong which are obliged to pay LSP
to employees under certain circumstances. Meanwhile,
the Group makes mandatory MPF contributions to the
trustee who administers the assets held in a trust solely
for the retirement benefits of each individual employee.
Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s accrued
retirement benefits derived from employers’ MPF
contributions was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the Government of
the HKSAR gazetted the Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset severance payment and LSP (the
“Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect on
1 May 2025 (the "Transition Date”). In addition,
under the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s
salary immediately preceding the Transition Date
(instead of the date of termination of employment) is
used to calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the
employment period before the Transition Date.
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onsolidated

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. RAFITIRLIETNE B
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BHREEN((EBYMBRE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ZA ) REMEFHEEH
("HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER (#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Change in accounting policy as a result of 25 HEERSHEMASREEBIVE

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP") offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance
for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and
the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this, the
Group has implemented the guidance published by the
HKICPA in connection with the LSP obligation
retrospectively so as to provide more reliable and more
relevant information about the effects of the offsetting
mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from
employer MPF contributions that have been vested with
the employee and which could be used to offset the
employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by
the employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group
has been applying the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 to account for the deemed employee
contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Change in accounting policy as a result of

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP") offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong (Continued)

Based on the HKICPA’s guidance, as a result of the
Abolition, these contributions are no longer considered
“linked solely to the employee’s service in that period”
since the mandatory employer MPF contributions after
the Transition Date can still be used to offset the pre-
transition LSP obligation. Therefore, it would not be
appropriate to view the contributions as “independent
of the number of years of service” and the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer
applicable. Instead, these deemed contributions should
be attributed to periods of service in the same manner
as the gross LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of
HKAS 19. Accordingly, the Group has recognised a
cumulative catch-up adjustment in profit or loss for the
service cost, interest expense and remeasurement effect
from changes in actuarial assumptions for the year
ended 31 December 2022, with corresponding
adjustment to the LSP obligation. The cumulative catch-
up adjustment is calculated as the difference at the
enactment date (16 June 2022) between the carrying
amount of the LSP liability calculated under paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 before the Abolition and the carrying
amount of the LSP liability calculated under paragraph
93(a) of HKAS 19 after the Abolition.

The application of the amendments did not have a
material impact on the Group’s profit or loss for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022 and the Group’s and the Company’s financial
position as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Non-current liabilities as
Covenants?
Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that
the application of all other amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Amendments to HKRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

The amendments add subsequent measurement requirements
for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments
require a seller-lessee to determine “lease payments” or
“revised lease payments” such that the seller-lessee would
not recognise a gain or loss that relates to the right of use
retained by the seller-lessee. The amendments also clarify that
applying the requirements does not prevent the seller-lessee
from recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to
subsequent partial or full termination of a lease.

As part of the amendments, Illustrative Example 25
accompanying HKFRS 16 Leases is added to illustrate the
application of the requirements in a sale and leaseback
transaction with variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early application
permitted. The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification should not
be affected by management intentions or expectations
to settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with
which an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that
right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants (the ‘2022 Amendments”)
(Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period, if an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 Amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply
the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2023, the application of the 2020 and 2022
Amendments will not result in reclassification of the Group’s
liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to HKAS 7 Cash
flow statements stating that an entity is required to disclose
information about its supplier finance arrangements that
enables users of financial statements to assess the effects of
those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows.
In addition, HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was
amended to add supplier finance arrangements as an
example within the requirements to disclose information
about an entity’s exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

The term “supplier finance arrangements” is not defined.
Instead, the amendments describe the characteristics of an
arrangement for which an entity would be required to
provide the information.

To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to
disclose in aggregate for its supplier finance arrangements:

o The terms and conditions of the arrangements;

o The carrying amount and associated line items
presented in the entity’s statement of financial position,
of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements, and
the non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of these
financial liabilities;

J The carrying amount, and associated line items for
which the suppliers have already received payment
from the finance providers;

o Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial
liabilities that are part of a supplier finance arrangement
and comparable trade payables that are not part of a
supplier finance arrangement; and liquidity risk
information.

The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for
the first annual reporting period in which an entity applies
the amendments, are applicable for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is
permitted.
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Notes

mEVMBHRRME

onsolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements (Continued)

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
but may affect the disclosures of liabilities, cash flows and the
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk related to the supplier
finance arrangements entered into by the Group. The impacts
of application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group's future
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

The amendments specify when a currency is exchangeable
into another currency and when it is not and how an entity
estimates the spot exchange rate when a currency is not
exchangeable. In addition, the amendments require disclosure
of information that enables users of its financial statements
to evaluate how a currency’s lack of exchangeability affects,
or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance,
financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with early application
permitted. The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 3.1

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or the group of cash-
generating units).
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e Consolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Contract costs
Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
construction of infrastructure and development of
properties. The Group first assesses whether these costs
qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other
relevant standards, failing which it recognises an asset
for these costs only if they meet all of the following
criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the
Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.
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Notes to the ‘-» idated
FREMBHRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEMBBREREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ESTHRERER ®)

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 32 EEETBEER(A)

Leases HE

Definition of lease HER T

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys e OES TRNE—EBRRREA

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 2 I 2 38 Bl & B A AR DA ER AR

period of time in exchange for consideration. B AlenAs—EHHExREME
g o

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the MR ERERDE B RS LER

date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from E165E Bl 2 18ET L B FT 5k

business combinations, the Group assesses whether a AEBEHMEENEGONE -

contract is or contains a lease based on the definition REBERFSG  EF] B H

under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or HEF(WER) BRERE B 5 H®

acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not HFEBFE16RIE TN ERMNEE

be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the HNEER—EHESIBREEE -

contract are subsequently changed. ZENBTEWENTM - BRIk
ZAENTHOGERRIGHEERER
@J o

The Group as a lessee KEEERATA

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract BRESEZESLNES

For a contract that contains a lease component and one REAHELO AR —IHNZIE

or more additional lease or non-lease components, the FEIHINHESFERESH»NELHM

Group allocates the consideration in the contract to TOAKRERKEOARESEES

each lease component on the basis of the relative MEHy  HERHEELHHE

stand-alone price of the lease component and the HEEBERIFBENRDOEE

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease SEE o

components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate REBEERATEESE T

non-lease components from lease component, and FEEAKE D EEEHK S

instead account for the lease component and any &5 - A E RS D =AM

associated non-lease components a single lease HERNEHEEAKRI S ERE—

component. MEBKE D AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

CHBBREREERE
SHTHERER (®)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 32 BEEETBEER(A)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rate prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. When a fair value gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit
or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rate at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserves (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants related to income are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the group entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and
when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

102  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

T EBREREERE
SHTHERER (®)

3.2 EEGEREERE)

ESEF

BIKE R A

) B 21 3 O AR R AR AU AT 8 Ko o
B A TE S AT B AN R B
BRERBM A ZEZSHRE
ERRFEX -

LT

RiIFENzZBENEEER T
BUB TR 4% (L 42 R B B B BB R R
EREBEARAER ART

ERE)HER -
KEER ST

R HIE B R A B BB AR TS By
LIRS AR A B RBE IR £ 8
R AR HREERNERA
R BRIEX—HBEYHRS
ER B AT BBENAA
BEMRA - AIfERIW

EHNBREENMERSRR
HEEERESHNEMNPINTER
¥ e FERAMRR) ERAE -



Notes to the Consolidated

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwvill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated F

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the lease
liabilities and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for
all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(@)  the same taxable entity; or

(b) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3. %
=

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2
Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties
for sale are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost
model in accordance with the accounting policies of
right-of-use assets, properties under development are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis
including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred
to properties for sale upon completion.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from change in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(a)

cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that
are subject to regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the definition of
cash; and

cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to
third party contractual restrictions are included as part
of cash unless the restrictions result in a bank balance
no longer meeting the definition of cash. Contractual
restrictions affecting use of bank balances are disclosed
in Note 29.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZREVBBRGREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ESTHERER ®)

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 EREFREERE)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
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to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

CHBBREREERE
STHERER (®)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 32 EEETBEER(A)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income
("OCl") and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line
item in profit or loss.
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Consolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, bank balances and restricted bank balances)
and other items (contract assets) which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

] existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

3.

oy
=a

MHEBREREERE

BERER ®)

3.2 EEGEREERE)

SRTHEE)
B EE &)
RIEEBY RS EDFE IR

EFFSENMEEEREMEARZ
HAE (&)

(i

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

[ b B g 0
R fE B RHERIAKRE
ERRAE BEEENE - K
SESRBEAHeRT
EBRLEDHNERER
FHERAPERTAEEE
BEHNEBEITI R - £
TRAHER - AEEEER
EEAUEENEEMNE
HER  BEREFNL TS
ZMERABIMABHK

JE 5P 8 5 M AR LB HY

KRR EEEERRL
TRERNE  EEEUT
EH -

o R T AMAINE (1N
B) IR EEFTR
MERRBHEES
t

o HNEEWISEERRIE
SBERL  fImE
ERMEANBIEM B
BANEEZRDES
i

e BHEEHEHAE
BEBRE N BB E
7 M SEEAR
3R A TR 9 T A



TS
\|

PN

P

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes-off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written-off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, contract assets
and deposits and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including (trade payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and amount due
to a shareholder and other borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract costs

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. fR
=

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract costs
(Continued)

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for
assets capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the
Group assesses and recognises any impairment loss on
other assets related to the relevant contracts in
accordance with applicable standards. Then,
impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised as contract
costs is recognised to the extent the carrying amounts
exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that
the Group expects to receive in exchange for related
goods or services less the costs which relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have not been
recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit to which they belong for
the purpose of evaluating impairment of that cash-
generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and contract costs
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3.2, the Directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. The Directors have not come across any
significant areas where critical judgement are involved in
applying the Group's accounting policies.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment loss on deposit paid for
acquisition of Properties |

The impairment loss on deposit paid for acquisition of the
Properties | (defined in Note 24) was based on the assessment
of the recoverable amount of such deposit, which requires an
estimation of the fair value of the Properties | at the date of
the acquisition. The assumptions include management’s
estimation on the market unit rate. Changes to the
assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Properties |. As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
deposit paid for acquisition of the Properties | subject to
impairment assessment were approximately RMB119,082,000
(2022: RMB130,884,000). Impairment loss of approximately
RMB11,802,000 was recognised to deposit paid for
acquisition of the Properties | (2022: approximately
RMB11,046,000). Details of the impairment testing on
deposit paid for acquisition of the Properties | are disclosed in
Note 24.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments at
FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s unlisted equity
instruments, amounting to RMB19,221,000 (2022:
RMB28,169,000) are measured at fair value with fair value
being determined based on significant unobserved inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and
the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating
to these factors could result in material adjustments to fair
value of these instruments. See Note 6(c) for further
disclosures.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. The
determination of the fair value involves certain assumptions
of market conditions which are set out in Note 20.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties (Continued)

Relying on the valuation report, the Directors have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions. In
veiw of negative impact of housing prices went weak in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2023, the
independent valuers included uncertainty clauses in the
valuation reports in respect of investment properties located
in PRC amounted to RMB205,500,000 (2022:
RMB235,200,000) as at 31 December 2023. Whilst the
Group considers valuations of the Group’s investment
properties are the best estimates, the greater market
uncertainty depending on how the properties market may
progress and evolve which have led to higher degree of
uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current year.
Changes to these assumptions, including the potential risk of
any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social changes
or other unexpected incidents as a result of change in
macroeconomic environment, travel restrictions implemented
by many countries, increased complexity in international trade
tensions geopolitics, changes in policy direction and/or
mortgage requirements, or other unexpected incidents would
result in changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties is RMB205,500,000 (2022:
RMB235,200,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties under
development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The Directors make significant
judgements in determining the net realisable value of these
properties, which involved the estimation of selling prices of
the properties based on current market prices of properties of
comparable locations and conditions, the costs necessary to
make the sales and the construction costs to complete based
on the existing development plans, the legal and regulatory
framework and general market conditions, where applicable.
Changes in the assumptions relating to these factors could
result in material adjustment to the net realisable value of the
properties under development.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables

Trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables are
assessed for ECL individually.

The Directors make periodic individual assessment on their
recoverability based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The information about the ECL for the Group's
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables are
disclosed in Notes 6(b), 26, 27 and 28.

BEAXE:
MR EERR @)

s FET R AT AR E

fhEF RHEMHN EZRR(F)

FA 5% sh ) R B9 1 5t 7T B B F (E

PR RZAKAE]ZEHFES
REEINR - EENEEXSWEN
AERFERELERNAE PR
ERNAIELBRUE LG TOENE
AImSER RIEREHFEE
ERMEEERIA R — R M5 51 (0
) 5T AK $H & P 7R A RS AT SRR
K- EAZEDNENEEBE - -BHEZS
AERZBENESH A LS HFREERY
WA ERFEERERNRE

EWRES EHNEERAMERKE
HWERBEEERREE

FEUBR R~ & #) B B N A b FE MR
ERTABRREERR -

EEREBAEERE BELHBIMN
LA A ERMELNERNEER
EMER - F B HE A Uk E & 77 @ 5
ETHG - EEAEERKER &
MEEREMERZNEHEERRE
B & BB sE6(b) ~ 26 ~ 27 K28 Y

= o

2023FEHE | BHARAREROERAE

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. However, the implementation of the tax various
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC.
There are many transactions and calculation for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses
of approximately RMB155,650,000 (2022: RMB62,973,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future, which is a key
source of estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are more than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result in revision of
future taxable profits estimation, a material recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which recognition takes place.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes lease liabilities, amount due to a shareholder and
other borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, other reserves and accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets HMBEE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRAABEFAEMEER
AR REA T A

Amortised cost B AR

Financial liabilities BKka s

Amortised cost BSEACAN
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, restricted
bank balances, trade payables, other payables and
accruals, lease liabilities, other borrowings and amount
due to a shareholder. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Company and its subsidiaries have intra-
group balances with other group entities
denominated in foreign currency which also
expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the intra-group balances
that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group
entities at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Intra-group balances
HK$ BT

EE AR FIE AR
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6. EMmIA#®

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMERBREEEEREEE)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) H 5 R R (4E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) ()  EEmEkE
Sensitivity analysis BREDH

The Company is mainly exposed to the currency
of HKS.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2022: 5%) increase and decrease in
RMB against the relevant foreign currency. 5%
(2022: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes intra-group balances
where the denomination of the intra-group
balance is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive
number below indicates a decrease in post-tax
loss for the year and a negative number indicates
an increase in post-tax loss for the year if RMB
appreciate 5% against the foreign currency.
There would be an equal and opposite impact on
post-tax loss for the year if RMB depreciates 5%
against HKS.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate other receivables
(Note 28), lease liabilities (Note 33) and fixed-rate

other borrowings (Note 34).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances as

detailed in Note 29.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should

the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk

management section of this note.

Bank balances are excluded from sensitive analysis
as the Directors consider that the exposure of
cash flow interest rate risk arising from them is

insignificant.

(iii)  Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in equity securities measured at
FVTOCI. The Group invested in unquoted equity
securities for investees operating in bank industry
sector for long term strategic purposes which had
been designated as FVTOCI. Price risk was
monitored by the management of the Group and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should

the need arise.

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

6. TWMI R %)

b.

BERABEEBEREE (&)

w5 E R (&)
(i) P E R

(ifi)

R ER B P B TE A R Y E
flb U R IR (B E 28) ~
EafE (MFE33) MEEF
KWEMER (HEE34) &
AR EENEREMR -

AEEFEZ TS RER R
B S E 29 B¢ IE B
MR RITEEBEN -

AREE B B I BT 7 R B
MR o A - EEEER
MERBRI AN A HEEE
BEIPEAN R ER -

REBE LR B BRI ERE
DEERAK TR E SR
BEIRA o

HREFRRERITHERE
EMBRSRENXRER T
R BORA BIERITHEBRR
BREDHTH -

E A (E 15 )2

AEBERERAABERA
Hip 2 WA G 28 RAE
SFREEEBERR - A&
B A e R HA R S MR & N
RITRELENRIEENKR
EHBRAES - BEREA
REEFAEBEZEEA -
AEBEREEERERAR
WA T R E B
R -



Notes

mEVMBHRRME

onsolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis for unquoted equity securities
with fair value measurement categorised within
Level 3 were disclosed in Note 6(c).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposure are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other
receivables, bank balances and restricted bank balances.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its
financial assets except that the credit risk associated
with certain other receivables is mitigated because it is
secured over a property from Shanghai Wanbang
Enterprise Group Company Limited* (“Shanghai
Wanbang”), an independent third party.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. The Group considers
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period by comparing the risk of a
default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following information is used:

— internal credit rating;

—  external credit rating;

*  For identification purpose only
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower,

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower; and

— significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers.

Information about the Group’s credit risk management,
maximum credit risk exposures and the related
impairment assessment, if applicable, are summarised
as below:

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s
established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on customers. The
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer located. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customer.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2022: 100%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Major Customer (defined in Note 7) in the
construction of infrastructure and development of
properties segment.

b.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

In addition, the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment assessment on trade receivable under
ECL model. Impairment of RMB10,937,000 (2022:
RMB26,000) is recognised during the year. Details of
the quantitative disclosures are set out below in this
note.

Bank balances and restricted bank balances

Credit risk on restricted bank balances and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed
12m ECL for restricted bank balances and bank
balances by reference to information relating to
probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12m ECL on restricted bank balances and bank
balances is considered to be insignificant and therefore
no loss allowance was recognised.

Contract assets

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

6. ®@MITHR»)

MBEREEERREE(E)

1= B B R el P 1 (%)
JEW IR ()

AN - AREEHTEHEEFIEER
TR R R FURE RS E AL
FiE e BB AR 10,937,000 7T
(2022 & + AR¥ 26,0007T) T3
RERER - BES L EENFE
BN A FET S ©

RITRERRRZRBIRTT AR

AR5 H AEBRR{EE T #
BHRTREETIR2EEERT
MEZ WG BITESRMIRITESRD
EERBRER - NEBLXEFBI
HMEEFAMERMEMASEET
BHEBEOBERENBRENE
B ZRGIRITE R RIBITA
HE 12 MAEHERER - %Eﬁ
FHEER - SR HIRITARR IR
T4 12 (A BB RE BB ER
BRATKEBE L AREREBRERE -

BHRIEE

AEE{EEER A REERIFHN
FZTETRG - REBERKE
5 HERERGTETISHM
BEFPHAKBERZERRF - It

S MR AR B FHEEIE B
$§%@EE&%E\EH[&ATK
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Contract assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as approximately 90.8% of the total
contract assets was due from a customer. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
is responsible for monitoring procedures and the review
of the recoverable amount of each material individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate provision for impairment losses is made for
irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the Group
continuously monitors its retention receivable balances
so as to ensure that the Group will not be subject to
material bad debt risk.

The Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment assessment of contract assets under ECL
model. Reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB1,000 (2022: Reversal of impairment loss of
approximately RMB13,000 and impairment loss of
approximately RMB1,000). Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Deposits and other receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
approximately 75.5% (2022: 68.0%) of the deposits
and other receivables was due from a debtor.

The Directors make periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of deposits and other receivables
based on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
For those deposits and other receivables that the
Directors believe that there is no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For
those deposits and other receivables that are past due
or there is significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Directors provide impairment based on
lifetime ECL.

6. TWMI A%

b.
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1= B /7 B K 5 8 771 (48
BHRIEE (B)

R 202212 A31H A"EEA
SHHNEERR - AAR490.8%
AUﬁE%@BEW—%Eﬁm

B - ABEERBREREK K
Elaﬁﬁﬁf%“&ﬁﬁvx
REHAEESERNEEEBHH
AR EI &5 - ARBR SR A Uk Bl
SEER ZHRRERBEE - it
O AEBERFEEITEEUUIRE K
BEH  WBRASEBTEERE
RERRR -

AEEHBEHEEHEBEATH
EHMEERBEHERBETE -
BIEE BB AR 1,000 T
(2022 F  FEBBERBHARE
13,000 T R EEELHARK
1,000 7T) © E =W EEM BRI
AARMFE T °

&l K E A JE W K

AEBABEREKN—ZBEBANZS
FEMERZFENEERBESRE
#)/5 75.5% (2022 FF : 68.0%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €RTA@®
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMERBREEEEREEE)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B B K o B 77 15 (&)
Deposits and other receivables (Continued) i R E A fEW KA ()
As at 31 December 2023, the probability of default 202312 A 318 - ERME
applied ranging from 0.36% to 100% (2022: 10.81% LIEN 0.36% £ 100%(2022
to 100%) and the loss given default was estimated F:10.81% & 100%) * 1M & &)
ranging from 62.3% to 100% (2022: 9.00% to BREMFNF 623% £ 100%
85.22%). (2022 % : 9.00% % 85.22%) °
At 31 December 2023, the allowance for credit losses MR2023F 12 A31H  sT&hE
of the deposits and other receivables of approximately hEKRIBZ EEBEREOA
RMB119,390,000 (2022: RMB123,436,000) mainly R ¥ 119,390,000 Jt (2022 4 :
include: AR¥ 123,436,000 7T) E BBHE:
() approximately RMB56,301,000 (2022: (i # A R % 56,301,000 7T
RMB68,600,000) represented the allowance for (2022 &#: AN R ¥
credit losses on the consideration receivable of 68,600,000 7t.) 1EEWE 7
approximately RMB74,080,000 (2022: (TEFID (& R M
RMB98,000,000) from a purchaser (the 28()) REZ(EEBERE
“Purchaser 1”) (as detailed in Note 28(i)). # AN R ¥ 74,080,000 JT
Affected by the continuing deterioration of (2022 #: AN R %
commercial real estate market during the 98,000,000 JT) ° & 2019 /&
COVID-19 pandemic, and together with the MEEREERERERM
existing effects on COVID lockdown, the property EMSHFESEEE Nt
development project of the Purchaser | has been R EECRER
delayed. The Purchaser | failed to make payment 2 BhHINEHEMEIR
as scheduled in the notice for deferred payment BIRIE - PRELE 2022 5 12
during year ended 31 December 2022. Therefore, A31BIEFE  BF K
considered the creditworthiness of the Purchaser BB OB AET EIE T
I, the Directors considered that such consideration R Al KEEEFHIH
receivable become credit-impaired. Hence, an A EERAZERRE
impairment loss of approximately RAEERE - Al - #2
RMB38,299,000 was made during the year ended 2022 F 12 A3 HIEFE
31 December 2022. During the year ended 31 HEREBENARE
December 2023, repayment of RMB23,920,000 38,299,000 7T ° # = 2023
has been received from the Purchaser | and so, F12A3MHLEFE B
reversal of impairment loss of approximately EAINERARE
RMB12,299,000 was recognised during the year 23,920,000 7t © EIEREZE
ended 31 December 2023; and 2023F 12 A1 BHLLEFE
EERELREBEOAR

# 12,299,000 7T : &
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERIITH @

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b.
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Deposits and other receivables (Continued)

(i) approximately RMB58,139,000 (2022:
RMB53,100,000) represented the allowance for
credit losses on the consideration receivable of
approximately RMB59,910,000 (2022:
RMB62,310,000) from a purchaser (the
“Purchaser Il"”) (as detailed in Note 28(iv)). The
Directors noted that Purchaser Il was involving in
several legal cases regarding the private lending
disputes and was affected by the deteriorated
operation during the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic since 2020. The Purchaser Il failed to
make payment as scheduled in the agreement.
Therefore, considered the creditworthiness of the
Purchaser Il, the Directors considered that such
consideration receivable was credit-impaired.
Hence, except for the balance of approximately
RMB1,771,000 (2022: RMB9,210,000) was
secured by a property of Shanghai Wanbang, full
impairment has been provided on the remaining
balance as at 31 December 2023 (2022: full
impairment).

Reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB 12,299,000 and impairment loss of approximately
RMB8,253,000 (2022: Reversal of impairment loss of
approximately RMB1,725,000 and impairment loss of
approximately RMB38,611,000) were recognised during
the year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the follow categories:

Internal

credit rating

ABEEFR  HE

Description

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of
default and does not have any
past-due amounts

ERER R 57 893E 4R K B 3 M o] ERFR IR

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due
dates but usually settle in full

BELE EBARTRIHEREFEBRZREER

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

A&t EERR B N2 MR AREREE M
(BAABIIMBEREGNER)

Loss There is evidence indicating the
asset is credit impaired

R REBBERBELREERE

Write-off There is evidence that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

s FEBBTEBARARENRAAREE

ARABBER AR A ERR

Trade receivable/
contract assets assets

not credit-impaired

g =N

b. HEEMEEASEREE(E)

1= B B R el P 1 (%)

6% B ) A BB S B R B AR B RT A
BIEATES -

Other financial

BWEN GHEE HUHKEEE

Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not credit-impaired

FHEHEERE- NREABHEEESS
EEERE

Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not credit-impaired

PHEHEEHE- NEARBEEER
EEERE

Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

not credit-impaired

FHBEHEEEE- 2HBEHEEEE-
BEERE EEERE
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
FHBEHEEEE- 2HBEHEEEE-
HREERE HREERE
Amount is Amount is

written off written off
MEEASE MHEESE

2023FEHRE | BEARARRROBRATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €T A ®)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. BHBEMEZEEERBE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) B EER B EFE(E)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the TRFMAEBIBHBEERED
Group's financial assets and contract assets, which are BEAETEREEEETGEN
subject to ECL assessment: EE RO

External Internal 2023 202
creditrating  credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount (ross carrying amount
L 2ERZZHE 2 WBFRALE 0255k

RMBO00  RMB000  RMBOOD  RMBI00
ARBTL AR®TR ARMTR ARNTR

Financial assets at

amortised costs
BRERTHENNBEE
Bank balances 29 Baal-Al N/A 12mECL 3,573 6,379
it MiEA NERBBEEER
Restricted bank balances 29 Al N/A 12mECL 42,507 41,856
FRAGTES ki EABHEEES
Trade receivables 26 NA (Note a) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) - 13,151
EYER TEA (fi#a) FHRHEERR(BRENA)
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 13,151 13,151 - 13,151
2ERBEEER(EENE)
Deposits and other receivables 28 N/A (Note b) 12mECL 79 914
e REMEYE MR (HEp) NEARHEESE
Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 100 1,103
FHRHEERR(REERA)
Credit impaired 138,921 139,815 163,760 165,777
HREERE
Qther items
EfnIER
Contract assets 27 NIA (Note a) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) - 434
AEE TR (Hiita) 2HRAEEEE (BEEHE)
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BE2023F12A31BEEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €T R ®)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMERBREEEEREEE)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) =B 7 B R E 5 (4E)

Notes: i -

(a) For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied (a) HEBERRAENEEMS K&
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss EEEAEEYBRELEREIR
allowance at lifetime ECL. ZEEBEFEREHEHEERER

FrEEEERE-
Trade receivables and contract assets with gross outstanding M2023F12A31H - REEB#
balance of approximately RMB13,151,000 and Nil as at 31 B RIH A AR 13,151,000 7T &
December 2023 (2022: RMB13,151,000 and RMB434,000) ARBETHREEARANEE
were assessed individually, respectively. (20224 : AR¥ 13,151,000 7T &

ABR¥E434,0007T) B9 R BT ©

(b) For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Group (b) HAEEERREEMS  A2E
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has FIRE AR R E SRR 87
increased significantly since initial recognition. SRR R AL

Not past due/
no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total

biE: 30V
ol EEEERM Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR¥ TR AR¥ TR

2023 2023
Other receivables E b W3k IE 139,021 794 139,815
2022 20224
Other receivables E fth FE U R IE 164,863 914 165,777
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HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for trade

receivables:

At 1 January 2022

Change due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January 2022:

New financial asset originated

At 31 December 2022
Change due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January 2023:
— Transfer to lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
— Impairment losses recognised

At 31 December 2023

R02FE1A1H

RONEIA1BRAREKIA
[k

FERMIIBEE

1202212 A31H
R03F1 A1 AEZRHBIA
[ihistikiok-d
—BE2UBEEEER
(EERE)
— BERRERE

R2023%12831A

ol = NE )

b. HEEMEEASEREE(E)

1= B /7 B K 5 8 771 (48

TRED O 5 FE WAR KR A &
BEEHER

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-

impaired)
2HRES

FEFR
(REEHE)

RMB'000
ARBFR

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)
2HES
EEER
(FEHE)
RMB'000
ARBTR

)
RMB'000
AR®TR

26 - 26
26 - 26
(26) 26 -
- 10,937 10,937
- 10,963 10,963
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mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowances for trade receivable are
mainly due to:

Further impairment made for debtor
with gross carrying amount of
RMB13,151,000

Changes in the loss allowances for trade receivable are
mainly due to:

New trade receivables with gross

carrying amount of RMB13,151,000  # UL BR X

6. TWMI R %)

b. HEEMEEASEREE(E)

1= B /7 B K 5L 1B 771 (48)

EWERNEEREZHETER
w

2023
Increase in
Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)

2HEH
FEER
(FERE)
RMB’'000
AR®TR

ERAARE A AR 13,151,000 7T
MEBAMNE—FRE

10,937

JEWR R BB EEE EEH
»o

2022
Increase in
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)

EHIES
EEERIE N
(BEERE)

RMB’000

AR®ETT

BRMEEME A AR 13,151,000 7TH)

26
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €T A ®)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. BHBEMEZEEERBE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) B EER B EFE(E)
The following table show reconciliation of loss T&RES 2B E] & & H A FE UK
allowances that has been recognised for deposits and TEMERH BB AR

other receivables:

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL

(not credit- (credit-

12m ECL impaired) impaired)
2HAE 2HRE

121843 REER FEER
BRFERR (REERE) (WREEHME) it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR ARMTn AR®TR

At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A18 - 32,037 54,513 86,550
Change due to financial instruments  H2022F 171 BBER &5 T
recognised as at 1 January 2022:  EMmLEMHE

— Transfer to lifetime ECL —REZ2HRLEERAR
(credit- impaired) (EEHAE) - (30,301) 30,301 -
— Impairment losses recognised — BRRRERE - - 38,611 38,611
— Impairment losses reversed —BEEREEE - (1,725) - (1,725)
At 31 December 2022 #2022%12 31 A - 1 123,425 123,436
Change due to financial instruments & 20234 1 A1 B 1R
recognised as at 1 January 2023: BT EMERANES
— Transfer to lifetime ECL —RE2HRAEERRE
(credit- impaired) (E&mHE) - (11) " =
— Impairment losses recognised —ERRAEEE - 15 8,235 8,250
— Impairment losses reversed —DREGEEE - - (12,299) (12,299)
New financial asset originated B ROIIEEE 3 - - 3
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A318 3 15 119,372 119,390
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €T AR #®)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥EMEZEEERBE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) =B 7 B R E 5 (4E)
Note: Miat -
Changes in the loss allowances for deposits and other receivables are Al REMBUGRESEERENZESHEE
mainly due to: HRA T SIRATE
2023
Increase (decrease) in
Lifetime ECL
2HEHEEEER
#hn G2
Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired
EIEERE EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®T T
Further impairment made for debtor BB AR — PRE 15 8,235
Settlement of other receivables EE E A U RIE - (12,299)

2022
Increase (decrease) in
Lifetime ECL
10 >
Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired
EER
RMB’000
ARETT
Further impairment made for debtor BLES AP E — 2RE - 38,611
Settlement of other receivables HEE MW RIE (1,725) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that have been recognised for contract

6.

ol = NE )

b. HEEMEEASEREE(E)

1= B /7 B K 5 8 771 (48

TEREBINCHANEERRNE
BEEHER

assets:

At 1 January 2022

Change due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January 2022:
— Impairment losses reversed

New asset originated

At 31 December 2022

Change due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January 2023:
— Impairment losses reversed

At 31 December 2023

Note:

Changes in the loss allowances for contract assets are mainly due to:

New asset originated
Settlement of contract asset

148

Lifetime ECL

(not credit

impaired)

= HAFEHA

FEEER

(BREERE)

RMB’000

AR T

M2022F1A1H 13
20221 A1 HERSMIA

iR R EE)

— BRERESE (13)
Fres M & = 1
M2022412A31H 1
E2023F 1 A1 BERSBMITEMHRL

— BERREESE (1)

720235F12831H -

BREENBRBBEHIZZAN

2023 2022

Increase Increase

(decrease) (decrease)

in lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL

(not credit- (not credit-

impaired) impaired)

2HESEE THEHEE

BREMORL) EiEEMOED)

(BiZERHE) € SORE)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

FrEse i & &= - 1
BHEEHNEE (1) (13)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F 12831 B ILEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial S

tatements

6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the Directors to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity tables

2023

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Other borrowings

Amount due to a shareholder
Lease labilites

2022

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Other borrowings

Amount due to a shareholder
Lease liabilities

0345

ETERN
EfEMFERETER
3
Bif-4RR5E
fgafk

W0 E

ERER
EHEATEREER
ERER

Bt -4RRE
fEsk

Weighted
average  On demand
interest  or within
rate  oneyear
il | REX
FaHE  AMER
% RMB'000
ARETL

ol = NE )

b.

2-5 years

RMB'000 RMB'000

MBEREEERREE(E)

REEZ R

EERRBECRERSE - A%E
ERT#BRENMESEEEAR
R—EKF - K FRESRRE
MBS AR SRE 2B IF - WHERE
MENBFTHRHTZE o

TRANAEEMBRESRTE
HIFH o xR R SR B R A B
BEMBRENKT B HNTH
BEMARMRASRERE - TK
EERRERENERAE

MEEH &

Total

Over undiscounted

Syears  cash flows
ABR

BRSE REREsE
RMB'000

AREFT

Carrying
amounts
255F REE
RMB'000

¥ ARETR AR®TT

N/A 149,825 = = 149,825 149,825

N/A 50,770 258 = 51,028 51,028

36% 1,215 = - 1,215 1,215

N/A 66 = = 66 66
4.8%-1.31% 56 15 124 295 20
207,932 313 124 208,429 208,354

A 116,144 - - 116,144 116,144

A 51,245 258 - 51,503 51,503

36% 5900 - - 5900 5415

A 51 - - 51 511
4.8%-5.5% 562 2 - 589 574
174,362 285 - 174,647 174,147
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HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €T A ®)
¢.  Fair value measurements of financial instruments ¢ TRIAZAAEBHEFE

Some of the Group's financial instruments are REEBH S F T AR W

measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. ENRANBEAE -EF58Y

The Board is responsible to determine the appropriate ETAABEERRAAEEME

valuation techniques and inputs for fair value ETEEMERIREAE-

measurement.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market- WEFTAABER  NEBNA

observable data to the extent it is available. For AENmBABEEE - HAS

instruments with significant unobservable inputs under BEZRERTAUBERHGEAENL

Level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers BEfME AEBEeZBEEF=-F4

to perform the valuation. The Board works closely with BERGEMRETEE EFE

the qualified external valuers to establish the HEERINEHEMBEAEN

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the N A (A BT R AR A & A

model. BE -

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that (i) FEFBZRELEEEUQA
are measured at fair value on a recurring BEIAEBEZHBEEZ A
basis REHE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are REREER - XEEEH S
measured at fair value at the end of each W EENIRALBAES
reporting period. The following table gives B TRMANAEETLS
information about how the fair values of these M EEz A AREBAE(LE
financial assets are determined (in particular, the EMAZEERN R A
valuation technique(s) and inputs used). HIg) o

Level 3
E=
2023 2022

— e — — s — —
_2_: —E e

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Equity instruments at FVTOCI  Z AR EBEFAHMEZ®E
WARBRATA 19,221 28,169
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at

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

6. FINANCIALI

NSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis

(Continued)

Fair value as at

tatements

6. T®MIH %

¢« EMIAZAABEFEE)

() FEBEZEEEEELURXR
BEFAEBZHBEEEZR
AEfE (B)

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
[EERITR

g

Market approach — fair value
of the private equity instruments
was determined by comparable
company’s price to book multiple,
and applying discount of lack of
marketability

Et-IEREIAZ N

Significant unobservable
input(s)

Discount of lack of marketability,
determined by reference to the
share price of listed entities in
similar industries of 2.10% (2022:
3.10%) (Note)

RHERBILRAE 22

i}

31 December 31 December  Fair value

Financial assets 2023 2022 hierarchy
RBE RANE
128318 128318

Private equity 0.71% equity 09%equity  Level3
investments at investment in investment in
FVTOC! Chaozhou Chaozhou
Rural Rural
Commercial Commercial
Bank Co., Ltd,  Bank Co, Ltd,,
which is which is
engaged in engaged in
banking banking
activities activities
in PRC in PRC
BARBEG AL Al RRElE  E=R

SENENLERE RITERM RiTEHM
k& HNENEE  HENEER
RORGBER  BORHER
DaH0.71% NE]R0.9%
RxR% FrgE

Note: An increase in discount for lack of marketability used in

There

isolation would result in a decrease in fair value
measurement of the private equity investments, and vice
versa. For the year ended 31 December 2023, a 1%
increase/decrease in discount for lack of marketability
and holding all other variables constant would decrease/
increase the carrying amount of the private equity
investments by approximately RMB243,000 (2022:
RMB291,000).

were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and

3in current and prior year.

BEDATHARATERY  BUAEITEENREET:
REHC TS RRLENE 52.10% (20224 : 3.10%)
Er (W)

Har PR RS TS AT @

BB EABEBRAERER
BONARBEFERD R
Z IR e EE2023F 12 A
NBILEE  BRZMERE
MIELEATHE1% M
FrEHMmBEHERTE - FL
HERERENEEDEMST
B,/ b F#49 N R 243,000
7 (2022 4 + AR ¥ 291,000
7T e

REAFEREFE F—
=Mz EL EEE -

2023FEHRE | BEARARRROBRATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TEITER®)
¢.  Fair value measurements of financial instruments ¢ S©MIAZAABENEGE)
(Continued)
(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (il F=ZRAAEBEAFENY
measurements -3
Assets -
Unlisted
equity
securities
at FVTOCI
BEE-RARE
Bt AHM2M|
WARIE LT
R A 3% 35
RMB’'000
AR T
At 1 January 2022 MR2022F1A1H8 31,852
Total loss in other comprehensive income HEMemBAFREEAE (3,683)
At 31 December 2022 M2022F12 A31H 28,169
Reclassified as assets classified as held for sale EF D AN B A EHEW
BE (5,100)
Total loss in other comprehensive income H2mK AP EEERE (3,848)
At 31 December 2023 72023 12H831H 19,221
Included in other comprehensive income is an Efemik A8 FEERAK
amount of approximately RMB3,848,000 fair WRERRPBEAEEAREB
value loss (2022: fair value loss of RMB3,683,000) Bt AE 2 mik A B
relating to the unlisted equity securities classified RTEMIELTRARES
as equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the end BENAAREBEBEHOA
of the current reporting period and is reported as R 3,848,000 7T (2022 4 :
changes in “FVTOCI reserve”. NAEBEEEBEBRBEBARE

3,683,0007T) © I [ R &
[EAABEFAEMEE
WAR B EE) -

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts BERA WEAUBKHRE
of other financial assets and financial liabilities MBS 2 H B
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated BEEMTKAEZERER
financial statements approximate their fair values. BHEARBEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

7. REVENUE 7. W
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () EFEHAWZEES
customers
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the years is as FAREBBRDTOT -
follows:

2023 2022

= — =
—=E-= =2

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTIT

Revenue from contracts with P&
customer
Type of services AR 725 51

Construction of infrastructure and B EER R ERRE
development of properties:

Construction of land TR - 22,952
Construction of BIEEEED

communication tube - 5,007

- 27,959

Leases HE 1,498 1,468

Total revenue 48U 2 1,498 29,427
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

7.

REVENUE (Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Construction of infrastructure and development of
properties

Construction of land

All the revenue from construction of land were
recognised at a point in time based on the contracts
entered into with a stated-owned enterprise located in
the PRC (the “Major Customer”).

The relevant land specified in the contracts are based
on the Major Customer’s specifications with no
alternative use. Taking into consideration of the
relevant contract terms, the legal environment and
relevant legal precedent, the Directors concluded that
the Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment prior to the completion of the acceptance and
transfer procedure. Revenue from construction of land
is therefore recognised at a point in time when the
completed land is transferred to the Major Customer,
being at the point that the acceptance and transfer
procedure completed and the Group has present right
of payment and collection of the consideration is
probable.

The Major Customer made advance payments to the
Group while the acceptance and transfer procedure is
still ongoing. The advance payments result in contract
liabilities being recognised throughout the construction
and development period until the completion of
acceptance and transfer procedure.

The Group considers the advance payments contain
significant financing component and applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction
price for any significant financing component as the
period between payments and transfer of the
associated infrastructure land is less than one year.

7.

Uz ()

(i)

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

EFEHNNENER

BRREERRYFZRE

TR

KE LR A W IR IE
BURPEN-—HKEBLE(TE
BEEFDIIVMAKNNE B
FERR ©

K& L ETEH/ AR LR IE
TEEPHBRMBMEL - TMEEAM
M- BEBHEBAAQGR X
BRRRRMABARTRGER
BEERTE  AKERRKRZNRE
Fr 52K 2 AT 3 48 1 3K 80 7T 98 11
TR - Eit - TR R AW
RERTELHEBRTEIEEFHN
iy 2 (BD B U 32 A5 A2 Fr 52 BB B
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

7. REVENUE (continued) 7. W= E)

(i) Performance obligations for contracts with (i) BEFANNBEHRNETAE)

customers (Continued)

Construction of infrastructure and development of ERREERRYERE ()
properties (Continued)

Construction of communication tube BIEEEZER

All the revenue from construction of communication ERBEEBEBHNBRSER

tube was recognised at a point in time based on the
contracts entered into with customer located in the
PRC.

The relevant communication tube specified in the
contracts are based on the customers’ specifications
with no alternative use. Taking into consideration of
the relevant contract terms, the legal environment and
relevant legal precedent, the Directors concluded that
the Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment prior to the completion of the acceptance and
transfer procedure. Revenue from construction of
communication tube is therefore recognised at a point
in time when the communication tube is transferred to
the customers, being at the point that the acceptance
and transfer procedure completed and the Group has
present right of payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect
liability period, are classified as contract assets, which
ranges from 30 days to 1 year from the date of the
practical completion of the construction. The relevant
amount of contract asset is reclassified to trade
receivables when the defect liability period expires. The
defect liability period serves as an assurance that the
construction services performed comply with agreed
upon specifications and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately.

B RFEEFTLA DR ERE
REFERR

ERPEENARBEEENE
REPHRIE  HYEEMERA
® o REREEE RIGER  ORE
BRERMERZERED EFEHT
7N 5% B 52 AR B W B RS B AR Al
I B AN SR 3R I BT T A
b BRBETEENKRSEBRRE
EEBREPZHHEER %
REBTRBRUMEBEREF B
AEBEENKOBRITENEE
HE AR EARRI B 2B &

MR (BB ER R 30
BEI®)EHZE  EKRER
EHMAAWEE - ANBEN
A S R R B 5
FA MR - 15 BRE T
TRBRA ST HERA Tk
ARETAEBBE -

2023FEHE | BHARAREROERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

7.

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

REVENUE (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS
15 to its revenue from the construction of land for not
disclosing the remaining performance obligations under
the Group's existing contract with the Major Customer
as the Group recognises revenue from the satisfaction
of the performance obligation in the amount to which
the Group has a right to consideration from Major
Customer that corresponds directly with the value to
the Major Customer of the entity’s performance
completed to date. In addition, for all other contracts in
which the performance obligations are expected to be
recognised as revenue with an original expected
duration of one year or less, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed
as permitted under HKFRS 15.

Leases

For operating leases: Lease
payments that are fixed (EN

7.

EEHEMS - BEM

Uz ()

(i) PEEEFEHNRTENEMEN

RBE®

AEBECD K BBV HREERNFR
155RMRIITRRE TDERAR K
BIMERMERE KM E
BEASERTIBEFPRAAAL
BAINZHBTRAORE  REA/K
SEREBREATERFPKME
BURESCRERBENZE
EXFEENKESBEEREN
BROBEEEE 2 WS- 1o 5t
RIEHHR A —FH AN B
R Sl e BOETHME
HMEHms  REFEMBR
EERNFEIS - PEEZXFRT

RE KRS EEE] TERE -

(iv) #HE

2023 2022
—E-=fF

— = — —
=
—r——

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB’000
AR®T R

1,498 1,468
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS 8.

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”), being the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focus on types of
goods or services delivered or provided. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

—  Construction of infrastructure and development of
properties

—  Property investment
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December

Segment revenue

pir L€

2023

—E-=

RMB'000
ARBTR

Construction of infrastructure and B RERRRMELE

LE 7 aR

HRERDEEDERBAFEMS - @
ApmESRe ((EEg)) (Mx2K8%
RRE((EERERRENERZE
FHEOE R AT R AT S 2 7 S RS
BHl - MIEBANEE A ®RE D AR
I OF AJE T BREIRKE TR

A fm

Bms AXEREBEEEMBRSE
AIE SR A I|ME D BT

— ERREEREMEER

— BEREE

DEUWE K RE

AT RARBIRATRE D AE D 2 W

R ERE D

BZ12A31BLEE

2023
—E-=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE AR¥TR

Segment results

BRER

2022

—F— —

2

RMB'000
ARBTT

development of properties - 27,959 (96,220) 1,423
Property investment MELRE 1,498 1,468 (40,089) (27,866)
Total @t 1,498 29,427 (136,309) (26,443)
Certain impairment losses under ~ TEHIEEFEERN THET

expected credit loss model, REEE  MkRED

net of reversal 4,046 (36,886)
Other income Hin A 2,175 1,920
Administrative and other THRAMELHT

operating expenses (14,681) (13,937)
Finance costs BEMK (1,824) (478)
Loss before tax WA B (146,593) (75,824)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) KeE D EB )
Segment revenues and results (Continued) PEK R REE(E)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the current year (2022: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment results represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of certain impairment losses
under expected credit loss model, net of reversal, other
income, depreciation, exchange gain, net, other operating
expenses, finance cost and all administrative costs including
directors’ emoluments and staff costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable segment:

A EREN D B mERBINBEFH
Yam o NG BRI SHE (2022
&)

pa

) B BRI B AR B ) & SR
A (ﬁiﬁﬁ&% ° D EPERAIERE
73 BB ERER B A AR EIE -
.%'Jr&’\ﬁa%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ*ﬁTTE’J%F
/JFMEEEHT@ (HNEREEE) EHMWA I E -
PE W e FEE - HMbAR RS - AKX
ARETRKA (BRESMENE
THRAR) © LTI E IR D BC K R IR FHE T
AEBEERBEEROTE

e

THREERER

AT RARERAmEDHEDNEE
KEENH

2023 2022
—E_=F —_E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Segment assets PWEE
Construction of infrastructure and HRRmEXR M ERR
development of properties 256,007 303,920
Property investment VL& 324,582 366,084
Total reportable segment assets ARG DA EERRE 580,589 670,004
Assets classified as held for sale DEBFBEHEENEE 5,100 -
Unallocated corporate assets ADBERAREE 47,000 78,977
Consolidated assets A BE 632,689 748,981
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities AEHEE

Construction of infrastructure and AR ERERILNELE
development of properties

Property investment WERE

Total reportable segment liabilities mESHEEERE

Unallocated corporate liabilities KOBARERE

Consolidated liabilities meaad

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deferred tax
assets, deposits and other receivables, and cash and
cash equivalents.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain other payables and accruals, other
borrowings, lease liabilities, tax liabilities and amount
due to a shareholder.

geEI @)

THEERBRE(E)

2023 2022

P — o — —
—g_: —

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T

149,825 116,144
27,919 38,735
177,744 154,879
32,096 20,751
209,840 175,630

MEERSBERBERDEERM

BYE- BELRE EREE
E BAREBEAAHMEZEK
ARBEARTA - BEERBEEE -
Al R EMBERFAA LIRS K
ReHEBRBENMIN MBEEESD

L Wi
[IREY SRk

BETHMENRALESE
B-EtEx HEAE HE
BEAREN IR RIEASN - P

ERBENREZREDH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Other segment information Hittn HER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or FFADEIERK DA EETEN DT

segment assets:

Construction of
infrastructure and
development of properties  Property investment Unallocated Total
ERRBRRRNERR NERE AAR &t
223 2023 2023 2023 2022
—7—_¢ — —7— ﬁ K —7—_¢ —7— ﬁ :?‘::/
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT  AR%Tn ARETR ARETn ARETR AR®TIn  ARETR
Loss from changes in fair value RENELABERBNER

of investment properties - - 29,700 18,200 - - 29,700 18,200
Impairment loss recognised inrespect L2 FT £ BRMHEEE

of deposits paid - - 11,802 11,046 - - 11,802 11,046
Impairment losses on trade recevables  FMERTERHEME A (E

recognised in profit or oss FiE 10937 26 - - - - 10,937 2
Reversal of impairment losses on BREMANEERE

contract assets B& (1) (12 = - = - (1) (12
Impairment losses recognised in HENNARRNRERE

respect of contract costs 68,814 - - - - - 68,814 -
Write-down of properties under R

development 16,470 - - - - - 16,470 -
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in THIRHE T I EREAFEBL EATE

the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Construction of
infrastructure and
development of properties
ERRRERRNEER

2023 2022

ZBC= i S

RVB'000

—F—=

RMB'000
N AR

Property investment

ES

2023
Zg-=

RMB'000
AE®F7

EN#BBRm D EETENDR

2022 2023

ZE-=

RMB'000
N AR

Unallocated

OB

Total
&t

2023
Z8-=

RMB'000
AE#F7

Depreciation of property, 0% BERAENE

plant and equipment 3 1 - - 165 164 168 165
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREAENE - - - - 555 1135 555 1135
Additions to non-current assets FROEERE

— right-of-use assets —fRELE - - - - 195 m 195 m

— property, plant and equipment — 0% HERERE - 9 - - - - - 9
Other income 00N (1,902) (1,682) (255) (191) (18) 47) (2,175) (1.920)
Impairment losses on deposits and other 5B & (#32) BERZT £ R 2

receivables (recognised) reversedin - H BN BT

profit or loss - - - - (4,046) 36,386 (4,046) 36,886
Finance costs EEpE - - - - 1824 478 1,824 478
Exchange gain, net EilaEg - - - - 6] (17 6) (17
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8.

Geographical information

For both year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022, all of the Group's revenue and assets are derived from
external customers and operations based in PRC and
accordingly, no further analysis of the Group’s geographical
information is disclosed.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customer of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as
follows:

Customer A — Construction of
infrastructure and development
of properties

Customer B — For operating leases

Customer C — For operating leases

BEPA —ERREERRL
MERER

EPB—KZEHE
BEPC—KZHE

* Less than 10% of the Group's total revenue.

9. OTHER INCOME 9.

RITH S UA

Bank interest income
Dividends from equity instruments at

WARBRA T ABARE
FEEUA

at the end of the reporting period
Sundry income

ERE BRI E BT
FVTOCI relating to investments held R AR BEFAEMEE

geEq @)

i & & R

B =2023F12 A31 B % 2022612 7
NHEMESE  NEEMFAA R
REEHRBEMRFBEEINEEEF K
X Al TERRBEAREMEE
FHOHE— B D4

FEEFER
HEFERBEPNNSIHAEEE
W B IB10% T ¢

2023
e T

—_—

2022
= —

=

RMB'000
ARET T

RMB’000
AR®T

- 22,952
857 N/A*
641 N/A*

* IEAREERKETE10% ©

Hft g A

2023 2022
—_E_-= —E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARET T

15 25

1,804 1,661

356 234

2,175 1,920
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. ME KK

2023 2022
—m— = — = — —

i — —_— ==

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBT T

Interest on lease liabilities HEBER

B 24 63
Interest on other borrowings EH M ERFIE 1,800 415

1,824 478

11. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 1. BEHEEEFEEEX TR E
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL B8 - HIRREE

2023 2022
o= = —

—_—=< — — —_—<

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Impairment losses recognised ROEE) BEREE
(reversed) on:
— trade receivables — FEMARR 10,937 26
— contract assets —ANEE (1) (12)
— deposits and other receivables — 71 & KE A FE YR (4,046) 36,886
6,890 36,900
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 6(b). BRARERT A FFIEEH R 6(bD)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

12. FIBBIFAX

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2023 2022
—E=-= T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T N
Current tax: BVEARR IS -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B ERTER 6 -
Deferred tax (Note 35): EIERIE (FFE35) -
Current year REE 31 -
Income tax expense FrSBiF X 37 -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision for
taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the Group’s income
neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the Company and the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The income tax expense for the years can be reconciled to
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as follows:

Loss before tax

BRTLAT B 1R

Income tax at applicable tax rates

Tax effect of expenses not deductible 5t &{EF AT K1 A FI 2
for tax purpose WEwE

Tax effect of income not taxable

for tax purpose Mg E

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K IERT S E BN TG £
A AR ARERRIEREE

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised
Tax effect on tax reduction

FRE#MAX

Income tax expense

RIRE R R H Y PTIS

SRS AR BRAR

BB BRE

FRMNBREWEFE G ERY G
M165%&TH - AR AKEALERNF
BEENEFTRA  TEHEFBRE
TR B -

BREFEMEMSTHE ((REMREHR
ED RPERGBEEEREGN - AQ
RAIERFENBEARRZMEFE 2
R E25% °

Bt B0 4 I 2 2 0 BB H 4 B A
HERITHREE -

RIFBEBZERT  FAMGEHAH

BREIBISIE 2 ¥ BRT ¢
2023 2022
—=E-= =

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
(146,593) (75,824)
(36,617) (18,927)
12,618 17,396
(553) (1,002)
24,747 2,729
(131) (195)
(27) (1

37 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FRERE

164

FABES N

Loss for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

BEx= EELIBITHRAER

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief

2023
—m— =

—_—

RMB’000
AR®T R

2022

=

RMB’000
ARBFT

executives' remuneration (Note 14) B (Mt 14) 1,783 1,794
Other staff cost (excluding directors’  HEMEB THA (T BIEESE
emoluments and supervisors’) e REEME)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — ¥& « TE& REMEF 4,880 5,303
— Contributions to retirement — RIRTEFIET B
benefits schemes 561 894
5,441 6,197
Capitalised in properties RAZEPYENERN
under development (1,057) (1,146)
4,384 5,051
Total staff costs recognised as expense &2 A X M8 Tk K458 6,167 6,845
Depreciation of property, W BERZRETE
plant and equipment 168 165
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREESENE 555 1,135
Total depreciation recognised WRIER X MITERE
as expense 723 1,300
Auditor’s remuneration (including the = EI € (BT EKE A
fee for PRC subsidiaries) MER)
— Audit service — ZEAR T 938 950
— Non-audit service — FERZEURTE - 90
Contract cost recognised as an expense T8 A5 S B & #IRKA - 26,409
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FL 772 & 5 & A AN B9 & Ak A&
contract costs recognised as cost of ERAREE R
sales 68,814 -
Write-down of properties under R T 7R 7 8RB A AN Y
development recognised as cost of B
sales 16,470 -
Gross rental income from wEYENHS WAL
investment properties 1,498 1,468
Less: ¥
— direct operating expenses incurred  — FRELH S WAR
for investment properties that KEMEEED
generate rental income EREERY
during the year (85) (87)
— direct operating expenses incurred — FRKREATH S WAL
for investment properties that KEMEEED
did not generate rental income BEREERY
during the year (382) -
1,031 1,381
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mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF 14.
EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’, supervisors' and chief executive's
emoluments

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive's
remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

EE EE FETHAER
REEBREHESR

Ex ESESRTETHAENM
&

(a)

FARBER LTRAIREER
AGEPIRENES EERTE
TTHBABRIFBMT

Contributions
to retirement
benefits

Salaries and

Fees allowances schemes Total
RINER
e FER2E ATEIER @t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARBTR
For the year ended BZ20235 128318
31 December 2023 ILFE
Executive directors HTES
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) RHH(EE) 100 253 - 353
Huang Chunfeng ERB(1THEH)
(Chief executive officer) 120 292 40 452
Leng Xiao Rong RINE 100 192 32 324
Sub-total gt 320 737 72 1,129

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the

management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXARBITEEMERIENRERA DR RAEBHEEE M HORE

Non-executive directors FHTES

Yin Zong Chen (Note j) FRE (M) 30 - - 30
Chau Ting Yan AEM 120 - - 120
Sub-total Pt 150 - - 150

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company

and its subsidiaries, if applicable.

FXRRERTEEMEREXNRERERRRIREMB AR (WER) ERMMIBRHNRS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF 14. €% Eﬁ% FEITHAE
EXECUTIVE’S AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FEBZBREHER #)
EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s (a) EE EELRITETHASHMH
emoluments (Continued) & (&)
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits
allowances schemes Total
BHRER
it HEREM PRI @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR%ETR ARETR  AR¥TxR
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Guo Lu Jin (Note j) SBE (W) 120 - = 120
Gao Hong Hong (Note ) R (M) 60 - - 60
Luo Zhuo Qiang EEH 120 - - 120
300 - - 300
Sub-total Nt 770 737 72 1,579

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
the Company.
EXRTRBUERITEEME AIEXNRERERRRESARHHORE -

as directors of

Supervisors Ex

Fang Wei Ran HER 10 138 1 159
Wang Xing Ye TEE 15 - - 15
Zhang Yun Feng (Note j REE (W) 10 = = 10
Chen Jun Feng (Note ) ik (fi) 10 - - 10
Zheng Ze Jian (Note j BER () 10 = = 10
Sub-total et 55 138 1 204
Total @t 825 875 83 1,783
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

14. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF 14.
EXECUTIVE’'S AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive's
emoluments (Continued)

EE EE FETHAER

FEEBREHEE &

() EEX ESBRTIETHAENM

% (%)

For the year ended
31 December 2022

Executive directors
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman)
Huang Chunfeng

(Chief executive officer)
Leng Xiao Rong

Sub-total

Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits
Fees allowances schemes
27
we It
RMB'000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
BZ20225 128318
LFE
BTES
KA (LR 100 277 - 377
EEE(THEH)
120 282 40 442
RINR 100 191 35 326
Nt 320 750 75 1,145

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXFTRATEEMEREXNRERAR A RAKENEHERMEHRORS -

Non-executive directors
Yin Zong Chen
Chau Ting Yan

Sub-total

FHTES

FrE 30 - - 30
FEM 120 - - 120
Pt 150 - - 150

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, if applicable.

EXFARIERTEEMEBEINRERERARAREMB AR (MER) EEMEHNR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF 14.
EXECUTIVE’S AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

B EE -FETHRAE
FEBBREHEE &

() EEX ESBSRTIETHAENM
% (%)

Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits

Fees allowances schemes Total
BRI

ik &R ATEIf @it
RMB'000 ‘000 RMB'00 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors

Guo Lu Jin HEE 120 - - 120
Gao Hong Hong BAA 60 - - 60
Luo Zhuo Qiang EEH 120 - - 120
300 - - 300
Sub-total g 770 750 75 1,595

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of

the Company.

EXARBYNTESTHEREXNREFREARRESMIRHAORE -

Supervisors Ex

Fang Wei Ran HER 10 133 11 154
Wang Xing Ye TEE 15 - - 15
Zhang Yun Feng REE 10 - - 10
Chen Jun Feng BRik & 10 - - 10
Zheng Ze Jian sl 10 - - 10
Sub-total et 55 133 11 199
Total s 825 883 86 1,79
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

14. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF 14. % EE - FETHRAER

EXECUTIVE’S AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID KRaZBsHER®

EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s (a) EE EENFTETHRAEHNH
emoluments (Continued) & (&)
There was no arrangement under which a director, a H Z=2023F %2022 12A31H
supervisor or the chief executive waived or agreed to IFFE ITREF EFREE
waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 T B FEE 3k [A) B0 22 {a] B
December 2023 and 2022. No emoluments have been SHLHE - B £ 2023F %2022
paid to the Directors, supervisors or chief executive as F12ANBLEFE HERAE
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as FCESSITETBRAEINE
compensation for loss of office during the years ended e EAMAREE S MA
31 December 2023 and 2022. REFRHREKAERBERAE -
Notes: Htat -
i retired on 30 January 2024. i 202451 A30BEME ©

(b) Five highest paid employees (b) EEEBSHFES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year include three Directors (2022: three Directors),
details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 14(a)
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2022: two) highest paid employee who
are neither a director, a supervisor nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

FRAEEREGERFREERRE
“HREEQORFZZESE)
BRSNS F BN L XHE
14(a) o FA » R TMH (2022 4F ¢
WMAB)IERRBES - BEEkE
ZTBRABNESHEENH
BT

2023 2022

—E_=F —=FE-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARET T
Salaries and allowances e KOERh 799 736

Contributions to retirement RIREFIF 2R

benefits schemes 16 16
815 752
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b)

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023

Five highest paid employees (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are
neither the directors, supervisors nor chief executive of
the Company whose emoluments fell within the
following bands is as follows:

14. EE EE -FETHRAE
FEBBREHEE &

hERGHES (B)

FARAESR EFHTHAR
MRS HEENFMFERT -

Number of employees

BEAH

2023 2022

——— — = — —
= =

Nil to RMB1,000,000

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors, supervisors, chief executive or any of the two
highest paid employees as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors, supervisors, chief
executive and the two highest paid employees has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
each of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
Apart from the Directors, chief executive and
supervisors, the Group has not classified any other
person as chief executives during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

T = AR 1,000,000 7T

H E2023F K2022912 A31H
IEFE XEBBERES &
E ERTBABSIMEESE
EBEEM—AZSMESERNA
HINAREE % 2 ZE) S BERR
8- B £2023F &2022F 12 A
BSTALEFESF HEEE &
T EaTBAEBEMERSE
B 1 B 11 ZE ok [/ = AU EE (F ] BM
& o B E2023F & 2022F 12 A
BNTHIEFE KBREFE &K
AERESN  AEEWEFE
AEMALDEAESITRASR -
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mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

15.

16.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

tatements

15. BREE

ARREE NEESRERNREEE
BTV RA TR & -

2023 2022

—E_=F —=FE-=

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBT T

Loss for the year attributable to owners St ERERK# EFEME
of the Company for the purpose RAFRIHE ANEIEFRERE

of basic and diluted loss per share

(137,159) (73,521)

Number of shares ROEE

Weighted average number of ordinary BEREALEEEIEM S
shares for the purpose of basic and O 5B BN 9
diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share for both years ended 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022 were presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue for both 2023 and 2022.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during 2023, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2022: Nil).

1,469,376 1,469,376

MR E £2023F12 A31H K20224F
12A31BEMEFEYEEEEET
TBAR - AL 2512023 6 ]2 2022
2 GREEREE -

16. RE
202346 A - IR B 8 R R 3 R BT
AREFARARLBBRBE M1 ER

EHRNERNEZZRETAKRE
(20224 - f®) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

17. V¥ - BERERE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

172

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvement  equipment vehicles Total
B RER
HE#E BLERE AE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR%®Tn AR%ETn
cosT KA
At 1 January 2022 R2022E1A18 25 98 840 963
Addition RE - 9 - 9
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318 25 107 840 972
Disposal HE - (32) - (32)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A318 25 75 840 940
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND E:HER Rt HE
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 R202F1A18 25 95 246 366
Provided for the year ERERE - 1 164 165
At 31 December 2022 #2022F12A318 25 96 410 531
Provided for the year FREE - 4 164 168
Disposal HE - (32) - (32)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 25 68 574 667
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A314 - 7 266 273
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318 - 1 430 441

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

A EWE - BFERREBEB TIABELZE

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per B RYEFRARITE -

annum:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the lease MERE R EAZ 25%
term or 25% LABRRS & R

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 8-20% B - KERPEAERE 8-20%

Motor vehicles 25% RE 25%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. PP YE

2023 2022

—ZE_= T

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBT T

Properties under development BRAPME 207,200 175,580

2023 2022
—E== B

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBT T

Amounts comprise: SREBIE
— Construction costs including — BERAR (AR EWETL
staff cost capitalised FX ) 199,099 151,009
— Land costs — AR 24,571 24,571
Less: Write-down of properties R HHORL B 2 R ) %
under developments (16,470) -

207,200 175,580
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. EREEE

Leased
properties

HEME

RMB’000
ARBTR

M2023F12A831H
BREIE 207

As at 31 December 2023
Carrying amount

H2022% 12 A31H
BREE 567

As at 31 December 2022
Carrying amount

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 2023512831 HILFEE
Depreciation charge FERXZ 555

HZE2022F12 A31HILEFE
WEMX 1,135

For the year ended 31 December 2022
Depreciation charge

2023 2022
—_E_-= —E-=

RMB’'000

AREFT

RMB’000
AR®T R

Expense relating to short-term leases ~ £2%58 HAFH E#HEE MG =X 168 157

Expense relating to leases of HEEEEAERERBNHAX
low-value assets 7 7

Total cash outflow for leases HEZRS R AR 748 1,374
Additions to right-of-use assets TRAEEERE 195 772

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its TEMEFEFE  AEEHEZEARAD

operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
1 to 10 years (2022: 1 to 3 years). Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices.
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the portfolio of short-
term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to
which the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

EARLE HEAHNUETHE =
10 (2022F 1 BE3F) 53 - HEIF
ROEEREEER  B58ERA
BEREGESE RETHAS RFETA
BB EER  AEERALY
MERIWETEA L RFIBITHHEIM -

AEBTFHRPBAETFT L EHAMAEL -
R2023F K2022%F 128318 - 28
HEdAeE P HEREHEERAYH
WEIFHEHEA A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out shop units and car parks under
operating lease with rental payable monthly. The lease
typically run for an initial period of 3 to 5 years (2022: 3 to 5
years). These leases contain a minimum annual lease payment
that are fixed.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of
lease term.

RMB’000
ARBTR

20. REYHE

AEERELEEHEREEHEMR
FHEL HeBEBAIN - HE—R
MIEABEA3E 5 F (2022 F : 3E54F) »
ZEMREPSREMNIEFERENK -

HRAEHENREEEREENY
EEBE RAKETEEEER
BEmAZINERR - HESHRER
RRETBEHREERERABRA
BEMENEEE-

Fair value AREE 253,400
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1H
Net decrease in fair value REZANERNAAEE

recognised in profit or loss AR RE (18,200)
At 31 December 2022 72022412 A318 235,200
Net decrease in fair value REBZANERNAREE

recognised in profit or loss A FRE (29,700)
At 31 December 2023 M 2023%F12831H 205,500
Unrealised loss on property FFABEMYEEGHARERERE

revaluation included in profit or loss

(29,700)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20. REWHE &)

176

As at 31 December 2023, the Real Estate Ownership
Certificates of 56 (2022: 88) properties with carrying amount
of approximately RMB39,671,000 (2022: RMB84,886,000)
has not been obtained as the outstanding considerations of
approximately RMB27,661,000 (2022: RMB38,476,000) have
not yet been settled. The Directors are of the opinion that the
Group is entitled to lawfully occupy, use lease and sale of
these properties. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Real Estate Ownership Certificates of 32 properties have
been obtained.

As at 31 December 2022, the Real Estate Ownership
Certificates of 30 properties with carrying amount of
approximately RMB28,981,000 is in the process of obtaining
the Real Estate Ownership Certificates. The Directors are of
the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully occupy, use,
lease and sale of these properties. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Real Estate Ownership Certificates of
these 30 properties have been obtained.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 has been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates
by Graval Consulting Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the
Directors determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements. The Directors work
closely with the qualified external valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the model.

M2023F12 A31 8 AR ARGEE
MREDHAR27,661,0007T (2022
F£: ANR#¥38,476,0007T) @ REEHE B
I NREE39,671,0007C (20224 + AR
84,886,000 7T) MY 5678 (2022 4F : 88
H)MERRRSTHEEREE -ES
RE - AEEERESXLA - -FH A
ERHEZEYE - HE2023F12 A
3THIEFE  BERERNEWENTE
EEREDE -

R2022F12A318 FEEHARE
28,981,000 7T A 30 T8 ¥ % 1F I} IR JE BX
THEERBFE-EERE A&
EEEAENR -FH HERHE
ZEME - HE 202312 A31 B IEE
B BEES30IBWENTEIEERESE -

72023912 431 H 2022512 A31
A AEBREVEHALEER
BASETEBENEISEBIER
EMBEEXERERARNER
AHETM-ERERE -

REEHBEYENLAAEER EF
BEBEA AN EBEMENKBERMNR
BARE EFH{|ERIIEEER
ETAE UEXAENGEERMNR
ER AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

Valuation
techniques

fEE R

Notes to the» Consolidated Financial !

20. BEME @)

REAZEMENIAEBER WX
ZERERREREREBAMAR -

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

Significant
unobservable inputs

FAERBARE

EXTUBRBARE ENREENBE

Shop units located in Guangzhou  Investment
2023: RMB20,400,000 approach
(2022: RMB20,000,000)

MREMEEEEEM 20226 REK
20235+ AR¥20,400,0007C
(2022 + AFE#20,000,0007T)

The higher the term yield, the lower
the fair value, and vice versa.

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the conditions of the building of
2.6% (2022:3.2%)

FHWREER26%(2022F :32%) 1§ FHUREHS  AAEERME -
ZRABLEMENTSTHEERR RZIA
mETHHSEENRR R 1R
BARBEFHRR

The higher the reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value, and vice versa.

Reversionary yield, taking into account of
yield generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with the future
rental of 3.1% (2022: 3.7%)

ERREER3.1% (20225 :37%) - &
ZEAEREMELTHTHERR
MinTHEEESE 2 e X EL
BARBARE S 2 B RR

ERpEZES AAEEBE
RZ IR

A significant increase in the market
unit rate used would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

Market unit rate, taking into account the
recent transaction prices for similar
properties adjusted for nature, location
and conditions of the property, which
ranged from RMB34,492 to RMB47,304
per sg.m. (2022: RMB38,540 to
RMB40,379 per sq.m)

EE RABENETNAR 5B FRAN TS EEANE LAKER
(ERMELE B RARED AABEBELN R2NHR-
AE)NTHEBNTRETHK
ANR#E34,492 TE AR ¥ 47,304 7T
(20225 : BIHARARME3BS540TE
AE#4037970)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation
techniques

20. BEWME #)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

Significant
unobservable inputs
FTABEBASE

EATTREGARE HAREENEER

EERH

Office units located in Beijing Direct
2023: RMB102,200,000 comparison
(2022: RMB120,500,000)

Rt RABFEEN 2023 ERLEZE
£ AR#102,200,0007C
(2022 : NRH
120,500,000 7¢)

A significant increase in the market
unit rate used would result in a
significant increase in fair value,

Market unit rate, taking into account the
recent transaction prices for similar
properties adjusted for nature, location
and conditions of the properties, which
ranged from RMB17,523 to RMB22,691
per sg.m. (2022: RMB17,207 to
RMB28,246 per sq.m)

BARRENZODRHER(ERY  ARBOTHEENRE LHBEHR
AME R IMRELRAR) NS AABEBEEM R2TA -
BENNEIHRARKITSBILEA
RE22,69170 (20225 : GFHARAR
17,200 LEARK 28,246 TT)

and vice versa.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation
techniques

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTUBRBAYE

fEE R

Shop units and car parks located  Investment approachTerm yield, taking into account of yield

in San He 2023: generated by market average selling price
RMB82,900,000 (2022: and the market average rental from
RMB94,700,000) comparable properties and adjustment to

reflect the conditions of the building of
2.2% (2022: 2%)

FHNEER2.2%(2022%F : 2%) * &
BRI EBMENTSTFIERRTS
FHESELNREXTFLBRUAR
BREFRR

R = IMEHELRESE
f12023F : ARE
82,900,0007C (20224 = A
R #94,700,00075)

REZ

Reversionary yield, taking into account of
yield generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental from
comparable properties and adjustment to
reflect the risk associated with the future
rental of 2.7% (2022: 2.5%)

B RA27%(2022F : 2.5%) & 1

%%Tﬁtbé‘%%Zm%I—ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ
STHREESE  WAE Y LA
RMARKME S 2 iR

Market unit rate, taking into account the
recent transaction prices for similar
properties adjusted for nature, location
and conditions of the property, which
ranged from RMB25,000 to RMB38,895
per sg.m. (2022: RMB33,000 to
RMB37,460 per sq.m)

BHARAENELHRHER (EfNE
HE R RARIELEE) OTH5E

BN b‘é%?ﬁMEﬁzzaoooEiAE

#38,8057 (2022 F : B EHRARE
33,0002 AR 37,460 7T)

The fair value measurement is categorised into Level 3 fair
value hierarchy.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

20. BEME @)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FTREGARE
RBAREENEER

The higher the term yield, the lower
the fair value, and vice versa.

LEETEE LR
£ R2IH -

RAEEAE

The higher the reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value, and vice versa.

b

D ES SR

RN

EEBE

=

A significant increase in the market
unit rate used would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

FrER A
7

n

M5 EEAR LA REN
EBEBZLMN R2TFA -

ARBEFEFESF=-AINEE-

RER WEEASEHE=H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

21. GOODWILL 21. BE
Acquisition of
Zhongfong
Chaozhou
W BE
HRERM
RMB’000
ARET R
(Note)
(B =)
COST 22N
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and R2022%1 8418
31 December 2023 2022F12A318 K
2023412 A31H 44,459
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT RFRE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and ~ 7A2022F 1818 »
31 December 2023 2022F12A318 K
202312 A31H 44,459
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2023 7R2023%F 12 A31H -
At 31 December 2022 72022612 A31H -
Impairment test on goodwill BERENR
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out BRAEEASAME M EXHABER
above have been allocated to the cash-generating unit PEEZERSEFLFEN([REELE
("CGU") comprising one subsidiary engaged in the Bl PR HESERRERER
construction of infrastructure and development of properties KMEBRD BOMERR -
segment.

180 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited / Annual Report 2023



Notes to t-e» Consolidated i;inanC|a
FREMBHRRM

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

21. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test on goodwill (Continued)

Note: Construction of infrastructure and development of properties —
Zhongfong Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited*
("Zhongfong Chaozhou”) (“Unit A")

The principal activity of the Unit A is the land development project in
Chaozhou (the “Project”). The Project cover three construction phases
(ie. phase |, phase Il and phase IIl).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the profitability of Unit A
was adversely affected due to the following factors: (1) there are no
acceptance of completion of the constructed land during the year; (2)
the trade receivables are long outstanding and the settlement is slow;
and (3) country government has yet to be entered the procedures of
bidding of phase Il and phase Il of the Project, the timetable for
construction of phase Il and phase Ill of the Project cannot be
determined and the Group was uncertain on the timing of acceptance
schedule of the remaining land area of 624 acres of the Project which
is far beyond the original timeframe.

Under these circumstances, the Directors decided to fully impair the
goodwill arose from the acquisition of Unit A during the year ended 31
December 2017.

22. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Unlisted investments: FELEMIRE
— equity securities (Note) — BB H (K1aE)
Note:

As at 31 December 2023, the unlisted equity investment represents 0.71%
(2022: 0.9%) equity interest in a PRC private limited company which is
principally engaged in banking business in the PRC. The Directors have elected
to designate this investment at FVTOCI as it is the Group's strategy to hold
these investments for long-term purposes.

Details of the disposal of approximately 0.19% of the abovementioned equity
interest are disclosed in Note 23.

21. & (&

AERENE(E

Mfet - ERBHEEIRDEZRR — PEHME
AEREERAR(HERAM) (AEMR))

ABRLZ TREBANMNET LR
HE([EB]) - BEH=HgXR (B—4
“HR=H) -

HE2017F12A318LEFE  BR: (1)
RERTEZECER TR (2) &R
ERERAMAEEREELEEERE  RQ)
BIRBMAEAREABE — Bk = HOREZ
B WELZETEREEE _HR=H1N
BHREASEETHEEE ST T HERE
62481 2 B UL S 2k 2 5 ) (ELiR 6B JR U s
BR)  ABNWHABFENZETRRE -

FEREFEBERT EFRERBBARME
AECZEERBE2017F12A3THIEFE
e B EOR(E -

2. BARBEEFARMEZEER

ANBRATA

2023
o=

— = =

RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARBTIT

19,221 28,169

et :

M2023F 12 A318  FFLEMBRAFEE —HBE
ZRPERERITEFOREMABRRF0.71%
(20224 : 0.9%) KM HE - EFRIBH LB ERT
BEAREBESAHMEZERAGE  REEAN
SENKERBZSRERERRRE -

& Ll #0.19% RIEM BRI F23HE -
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e ®RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

23. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 23. D EAREHEHENEE

2023 2022
== = —

—_—=< —— —

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT

Assets classified as held for sale DERRFHEHENEE 5,100 -
On 14 June 2023, the Group entered into a share transfer R2023F6 140 AEE B H
agreement and the supplemental agreement (collectively =7 (TEFD BN SR &ﬁ
known as the “Share Transfer Agreements”) with an g (REA T ROERGE])
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to dispose of th & ¥ & 7 $R 17 5,000,000 Hxﬂxﬁ
5,000,000 shares of Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank (the (THER®D] EROEERRB S
“Disposed Shares”), representing approximately 0.19% of MEBRTEHTRAREY
the total issued share capital of Chaozhou Rural Commercial 0.19%) - KB = A K% 12,000,000 7T
Bank as at the date of the Share Transfer Agreements, at a (x%1) -

consideration of RMB12,000,000 (the “Transaction”).

The Purchaser has paid an aggregate amount of BZE2023F12A3MBILEFE - BAE
RMB7,300,000 to the Company during the year ended 31 AARAE NG AR 7,300,0007T
December 2023 (Note 32). (ff7E32)

Since the change of shareholder has not yet been completed AR R R E S M R5ep - BB 7K
and the remaining consideration of RMB4,700,000 was still A4 F A E AR % 4,700,000 7T ¢ #
outstanding from the Purchaser, the Transaction was not yet 2023128310 K HEARTK °

completed as at 31 December 2023.

On 14 December 2023, the Group and the Purchaser entered R2023F 12 H148 » REEBEE FE]

into a second supplemental agreement (the “Second VEZhxHZ((E-0@HxH

Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant to which: §§J> gl

(1) agreed to extend the completion deadline to 31 March (1) REBTHKEBRILEZE2024F3 A
2024. The Purchaser shall pay liquidated damages for 318 - B RIREB R B &R E
the late payment in accordance with the Share Transfer REBNRBEXNENS - BHE
Agreements. The liquidated damages shall be calculated # & B2023F 108258 & &F
from 25 October 2023 until the payment is made; and B HEXNABFES/L: &

(2)  the Group shall have the right to terminate the Share (2) EBEEFARBER20245F3 43187
Transfer Agreements if the Purchaser fails to pay the RERNEBRHEMRBRAR
remaining amount of RMB4,700,000 and the 4,700,000 T RAHENELN D -
corresponding liquidated damages in accordance with REBEBRR IR DEEDRZ -

the share transfer agreements before 31 March 2024.

The Transaction is expected to be completed within twelve RGEHRBET—EARNTK M
months and the Disposed Shares have been classified as ERNECOBRFBIFHEEE  T&
assets held for sale and are presented separately in the REMBRRETBELEY -

consolidated statement of financial position.

The disposal was completed on 22 March 2024 ERALEEEEN2024F3A22H%
I3
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A31BEEE

24. DEPOSITS PAID

Deposit paid for acquisition of
Properties | (defined in Note)
Less: Accumulated impairment

XAFHET &
B REHRE

Note:

On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang Investment & Consulting Company
Limited* (“Beijing Shen Shang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Properties Acquisition
Agreement 1) with a vendor (the “Vendor 1”), pursuant to which Vendor |
agreed to sell, and Beijing Shen Shang agreed to acquire a commercial premise
with the construction area of 2,800 square meters (with the right to use 5,000
square meters of car parks at the basement level two, being part of Phase 3 of
the ancillary facility project of Beijing International Zone Convention Center* to
be constructed in Beijing Shunyi District Tianzhu Airport Commercial Zone* (the
"Properties 1”) at the cash consideration of RMB152,800,000. Details of the
acquisition of the Properties | has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 November 2016.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had paid deposit of RMB149,100,000 (2022:
RMB149,100,000) to the Vendor I. The acquisition is expected to be completed
on 30 June 2024.

As housing prices went weak in the PRC for the year ended 31 December
2023, the transactions of similar properties surrounding the Beijing Property
have continued to decline and have not yet stabilized. Therefore, the
management of the Group concluded that there was indication of impairment
and conducted impairment assessment on the deposit paid for acquisition of
the Properties I.

The recoverable amount of the deposit paid for acquisition of the Properties | has
been determined based on fair value less cost of disposal of the Properties I.

The fair value of the Properties | was determined, by reference to the valuation
carried out by Graval Consulting Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer, based on Level 3 hierarchy using market comparable approach that
reflect market unit rate, taking into account the recent transaction prices for
similar properties adjusted for nature, location and conditions of the Properties
| which ranged from RMB30,943 to RMB49,085 per sq.m. (2022: ranged from
RMB40,832 to RMB49,318 per sq.m.). A slight increase in the adjusted price
per square metre used would result in a significant increase in the fair value of
the Properties I, and vice versa.

As at 31 December 2023, based on the result of the assessment, the
recoverable amount of the Properties | is amounted to approximately
RMB122,782,000 (2022: RMB134,584,000) and the management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amount of the deposit paid for
acquisition of Properties | is lower than its carrying amount. An impairment loss
of approximately RMB11,802,000 (2022: RMB11,046,000) has been
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023.

*  For identification purpose only

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. X WET =

2023
—E_=F

2022

RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARBT T

RWREBME (EE LN E)

149,100 149,100
(30,018) (18,216)
119,082 130,884

Bt

MN2016F 11 A58 kBB BREZABTRA
A ([FEE | ARF2ENBAR) BEH (8
FID RIS g e ([ EWEIm =R - &t
B IREEE R ER RS RE BB YE -
MEREEEMK2,80F KT AHEERMTE
Z 85,000 F 5K EES ZEAYE - B RIER
TEEERRLEEFHRGEENI L REREE
BEMBAERBEEIHN—o (WD) - R
&R E A AR 152,800,000 7T © A B UEE ¥ 21
WHBERAAGBEA2016F 11 A15EBM AL
FHE -

M2023F 124318 AEERAEHIZMHET2A
R # 149,100,000 7T (2022 £ : AR 149,100,000
T o TEHAUREE BB 2024 F 6 A30 HFERK °

HREE2023F 12 A3 AL FEEFEEEES
5 b RMERERELMERSHLBEEN
TE - BREE-Ait A4EEEERATR
WENE - W DTS TRE S -

WEMEINENT2N A RESEDERYEI
AR BEREHERNEE

MEINRAABENSEB LG ERSEGENS
EEEBBERQRMMGEE ERE=ZBH
FRARMTESEENTSLEAETE - &5t KA
BME TR SER (CRDEINE - K
MAELTAE) - ZEENREFHKARE 30,943
TLE ANR#49,0857T (20224F : NREF T KA
R#40,832 1 ARM49,3187T) - KABRETF
FOREERAEMISNEEBMEINRABENE
BRIBIE I - RZ IR »

M2023F 12 A31H  ERFFHER - WEINA]
U [El 4 58 49 A AR 122,782,000 7T (20224 A
R 134,584,0007T) - 75 B B 18 fE 7 E LUK EE
MEIDHTEOARESERAEETRSSE - R©
HZE2023F12A31BILFE - BRBERELN
AER# 11,802,000 7T (2022 & = AR¥ 11,046,000
7T e

* EH 5
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mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

25. CONTRACT COSTS 25. S8 WA

2023 2022
—— =

—_——

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Construction costs and expenditure BERARERERE

capitalised 4,112 72,926

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 R2023F K2022F 12 A3 BEERTE
are mainly related to land leveling cost, road facilities and THEHRAETEHB T TEE &
electricity supply, rainwater and wastewater facilities and land BRERHE  WAKSKEREM L
requisition cost. HBAERH -
Contract costs are recognised as part of the cost of sales in BRI ERAEHEIEEB R BAE R
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in REBRRPERRBIHHEHENAR -
which revenue from the related project is recognised. No HZE2023F12A31HILEFETER
capitalised costs recognised in profit or loss during the year BRPEREREKA(2022F : AR
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB26,409,000). The #26,409,0007T) ° FAHB@E XK
impairment in relation to the opening balance capitalised REARN S 4 R B AN B R B B A
costs and the costs capitalised during the year is R ¥ 68,814,000 7T (2022 F : #&) °

RMB68,814,000 (2022: Nil).
26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. EUWERRX

2023 2022
—E-=F — ==

— T A=

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

Trade receivables — contract JEINERES — BFE&X
with customers 13,151 13,151
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (10,963) (26)
2,188 13,125
As at 1 January 2022, there was no trade receivables from R2022F1H1H  BIEBREEFAEY
contracts with customers. Y JE AR 3K -
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mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

27.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivable net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the repurchase
agreement date at the end of the reporting period, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition date:

61-120 days
over 1 year

61-120
HiE—F

The Group has not specified the credit period to the Major
Customer and given that the Group has long-term business
relationship with the Major Customer, the Directors
considered that the balance from the Major Customer has
been past due as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). The
Group does not hold any collateral over the balance.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in Note 6(b).

CONTRACT ASSETS

Retention receivables of BEASNEWREFIE
construction contract
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE

As at 1 January 2022, contract assets amounted to
approximately RMB308,000, net of allowance for credit
losses of approximately RMB13,000.

26. FE WL BR

B AR 21 8 16 o
=2

AR FX (&)

B (5B

S ER B HRE) B BUARR (31
BIEEEERE) OREINT

2023 2022
—_E_-= —=FE-=

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARET T

- 13,125

2,188 -

2,188 13,125

REBUYAETEZELNEZEER
BERINAEBEHETIBEFERGE
AR EERAMN2023F12A31H
FERPEHEEE (2022F &) -
ANEBW B ZEHITATAERS -

& I B
6(b) °

BHEE

2023
—m—=

—

RMB’000
AR®TR

OB (B 7T 5 B ESI R A

2022
—E-_F
RMB’000
ARET T

433

A2022F1 818 -
# 308,000 © Bk
AER#13,000 7T °

BREEDRAR

FEEBREBREEN
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mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

27.

28.

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Retention receivables included in contract assets represent
the Group's right to receive consideration for work performed
and conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customer over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts. The contract asset is transferred to the trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional, which is
typically at the expiry date of the period for the provision of
assurance by the Group on the service quality of the
construction work performed by the Group.

The Group typically agrees to a retention period of 12 months
for 10% of the contract value. This amount is included in
contract assets until the end of the retention period as the
Group's entitlement to this final payment become
unconditional, which is typically at the expiry date of the
period for the provision of assurance by the Group on the
service quality of the construction work.

The Group classifies the contract asset as current because the
Group expects to realise it in its normal operating cycle.

The significant decrease of RMB433,000 in the current year
was because no new service contract has been entered into
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets is set out
in Note 6(b).

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables (Notes)
Prepayment TE IR
Deposits HIEA

B EEBERME

Less: Allowance for credit losses

H b FE YRR (A it

27. BHEE »B)

BESHEKRERARAEERE
BHAREZHEHRAE TK TIER
BMAENEN  HAEPWERBE
ERGM - BRANRBEGERS (BE
REEEREE T THRETRIEH
REEERT ZHREMZE) - BH
EEERERUERR -

AEE-RRABERAHEEN10%4%
TREAHDHREY - ZE2 B AE
WEEEEREHERE (W —RNA
SEHASMRARNBETRENRS
EERHFARBHRNIBE) S R
B R A% B A A SR O B R PR SRR AR A o

AEERKENEESDBRRDEE -
AANEEBEHAELIRZEBRA

AN E KRR A A R # 433,000 7T 5
REBEZ2-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—8L
FEEWEITTIHRBEL -

BERANEE ZHBHNHE6D)

28. Al & R H M EWRIEA

2023 2022
—E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
139,270 165,576
3,133 871
545 201
142,948 166,648
(119,390) (123,436)
23,558 43,212
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

28. DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

At 31 December 2023, other receivables mainly include:

@

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

approximately RMB17,779,000, net of allowance for credit losses of
RMB56,301,000 (2022: approximately RMB29,400,000, net of
allowance for credit losses of RMB68,600,000) represented the
consideration receivable from the Purchaser |, in relation to the disposal
of 66.67% equity interest of Shenzhen He Hui Huang Development
Company Limited (“SHHH Development”) which was completed on
15 November 2020. The balance is unsecured and non-interest bearing.

approximately RMBNil, net of allowance for credit losses of
RMB1,103,000 (2022: approximately RMB1,092,000, net of allowance
for credit losses of RMB11,000) represented a loan to Guangzhou
Leyou Internet Technology Co. Ltd* (“Guangzhou Leyou”), an
independent third party. The unsecured loan bear interest rate at 6%
per annum and was expired in 2021.

approximately RMBNil, net of allowance for credit losses of
RMB3,450,000 (2022: RMB1,725,000, net of allowance for credit
losses of RMB1,725,000) represented the consideration receivable from
a purchaser, in relation to the disposal of the entire equity interest of
Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company
Limited which was completed on 28 June 2019. The balance is
unsecured and non-interest bearing.

approximately RMB1,771,000, net of allowance for credit losses of
RMB58,139,000 (2022: approximately RMB9,210,000, net of allowance
for credit losses of RMB53,100,000) represented the consideration
receivable from the Purchaser Il, in relation to the disposal of 20%
equity interests of Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate Development
Company Limited* (“Guangzhou Hai Yue") at a consideration of
RMB133,000,000, which was completed on 4 March 2019. Receivable
of approximately RMB1,771,000 (2022: RMB9,210,000) was secured
by a property and corporate guarantee of Shanghai Wanbang. The
balance is non-interest bearing.

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other
receivables are set out in Note 6(b).

*

For identification purpose only

7] & K EAth R WK TR (4

s -

M2023F 12 A31 8 - HEYWGRIEEZ0IE -

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

#HANRE17,779,000T - EMBREEEE
B 48 A R #56,301,0007C (20224 : 9 A
F#29,400,0007T - BB EE B IEREE
AR #68,600,0007T) « fEEWE FIHR
& ARB/BER20206F11 A15HZEAN
HERVEGEBEERARAR (DRYIEE
BRRE]) MN66.67%ME - ZEHAEE
REEE -

WARKZ T BENBREEBEREBAR
#1,103,000 T (20224 : HH AR
1,092,000t ' BB EEBERBARE
11,0007T) * B FHLE = 7 BN &EiE
EM@RBARAR ((BMNEE)HE
o EEBEFETILEFR6%:T S
2021 FEIH -

MARBEZT BNBREEBEREEAR
#3,450,0007T (2022 F : AR¥ 1,725,000
7T BB EEEERE AR 1,725,000
7o) EEER—RERORE AEEBER
20194 6 A28 A Ak B &R YT L A Al
BINEERARDAZIRE - ZEHR A
ERERREE -

M AEREE1,771,0007C  EHIBR{EEEIER
% AR 58,139,000 7T (2022 F : H AR
#9,210,0007T - ENBREEFHEREAR
#53,100,0007T) * FEEKE T IR (E -
NA A B A A R #133,000,0007C 2 X &
HEEMNTERHERRERAR (TEM
BE ) 20% AR - ZEE R 2019F3 A
4B 5ERK - #9 AR #1,771,000 7T (2022
& AR#9,210,0007T) B fE KB A +
HEHYMERARERIEER - ZE8E
BE

BRI & R E M EUYGRIR 2 BER (4
BRI E R E6(b) °

*

gl
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/ 2. BERBEEEER SR

188

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and
short-term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s
short-term cash commitments, which carry interest at market
rates range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2022: 0.01% to 1.95%).

As at 31 December 2023, bank balances that are placed in
restricted bank accounts amounting to RMB42,507,000
(2022: RMB41,856,000), such balances can only be applied
for the Project and restricted for settlement of various cost
upon approval by the Major Customer and are included in
cash and cash equivalents. The balances carrying interest at
variable interest rates ranging from 0.20% to 1.35% (2022:
0.25% to 1.75%) per annum.

At 31 December 2023, cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB and kept or deposited in banks in
Mainland China amounted to RMB3,556,000 (2022:
RMB6,362,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through bank authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and
restricted bank balances are set out in Note 6(b).

R 1T & B

RBehkReSHEBEELERREASE
EEBRASEREEMNELNERTER
FEEEFER N F0.01%E035%
BF =8 (20225 :0.01% &
1.95%) °

R2023F 12 8318  HFERZRHIE
TIRFPHIRTTHEHR A AR 42,507,000
JC (20224 + AR #41,856,0007T) -
ZEERETANRZIER RibER
XREINGEEETERFEMA - WiT
ARG RREEEEER - ZFEHIE
7 F0.20% 2= 1.35% &) % B) & F R 5t
B (20224 1 0.25% £ 1.75%) °

MR2023F 128318 AEERS RIR
17 45 8% A R 3,556,000 7T (2022 4F :
AR #6,362,00070) A AREEHE
WARTF S A7 FRAE AL A AR B A A SR 7T ©
ARB T EEERLBKAMER - A
i AR IR A B A KON B IR K ) B
(HEE - -EERNEZTERTE) A%
B 7] 5 B B R R R I TS Y IR 1T
BARBEIBKEMER -

BRARITHER R RGIRITERAOR
B FITER M E6(D) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

30. TRADE PAYABLES 30. FEASBRRX
Trade payables represented construction payables in relation ERNERAHEEZEERAREMIER A
to construction costs and other project-related expenses AR BB RERS - DIRE
which are payable based on project progress measured by AEEFEMNEEEESI N - HER
the Group. The suppliers have not specified the credit period WERTAEEEEEEN -

31.

granted to the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the end VAT AR 3R &5 HA R A9 FE 1 BR ZR 80 AR iR
of the reporting period: DT

2023 2022
== = —

—E-= —E-C

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTIT

Within 180 days 180 HA 44,991 42,480
Over 180 days 180 HIA E 104,834 73,664

149,825 116,144
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. AR

2023 2022

= — e —
—E-= —=F-—

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Current liabilities REBEE
Construction of infrastructure and AR mER L MEER

development of properties - -

As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to MR2022F1AVTA  GHAEBERNAR
approximately RMB10,488,000. # 10,488,000 7T ©

2023FEHE | BELAABRRROBRLF
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HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 31.

The Major Customer made advance payments to the Group
while the acceptance and transfer procedure is still ongoing.
The advance payments result in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the construction and development
period until the completion of the acceptance and transfer
procedure and the Major Customer obtains control of the
completed infrastructure and property.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and
how much relates to performance obligations that were
satisfied in prior periods.

BRNEEBE®

TERPEBRURNEFDELETR
AAREELBENRE - ANRIES
@Zé%@ﬁ%ﬁ@%&iﬁ&&%%ﬂﬂfﬁﬁﬂ
R BEEREXNEFTRRER
%}Eﬁ’é BERTEMRERMENHE
HIRERSLE -

TREJINREEARDREEROA
ERENEERENBENBECET
MENEEHRENEE -

2023 2022

—=—=

— =

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT

Revenue recognised that was included in REFFH A S QB EEHBD
the contract liability balance at the [ m\uﬁlm
beginning of the year

32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32.

— 10,488

HMEARERETEA

2023 2022
—E_=F —=FE-=

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

Other payables and accruals (Notes) BB R ERTE A

(Htat)
Less: non-current portion W FEMEE S
Current portion mENE D

51,028 51,503
(258) (258)
50,770 51,245
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32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Note:

Material balances include in other payables and accruals are as follows:

@

(i)

(iif)

At 31 December 2023, included in other payables amounting to
approximately RMB27,661,000 (2022: RMB38,476,000), represented
the outstanding consideration in relation to the acquisition of 56
properties (2022: 88 properties) which was assumed through the
acquisition of 125 properties through acquisition of subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) during the year ended 31 December 2020. The
consideration payable bear default interest at 0.05% per day (2022:
0.05% per day). The vendor agreed to waive the default interest for
both years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, RMB7,300,000 represent consideration
received in connection with the Disposed Shares (Note 23).

As at 31 December 2023, RMB1,000,000 represent the deposit
received from the supplier of renovation, which has to be repaid upon
completion of acceptance.

33. LEASE LIABILITIES

0 e e o
Inancial Statements

32.

HibtENRBERESFER @)

Hikt -
TR RO RS Ao VB ARBIT -

2023F 12 A31H » st AE Ath JE R 3RIB
SR AR 27,661,000 7T (2022 4 -
AR #38,476,0007T) + fE i S6TE Y %
(20224 : 88IEMIHE) WIAREENRE - HE
F2020F 12 A3 AL FEEBKIEN B
A ([ZSH B AT WHE 1258 Y) &
E-ENRENEHFERAETH005%
(2022%F - §H0.05%) - EHRIZEHRRE
F2023F 2022612 A31 B IEREEE
HEELIF) S ©

(i) 720234127310 AR#7,300,0007C
EREERBHEFEROTE  ARNR
W SERR IR (B -

(i) 2023412 A31H - AR 1,000,0007T
BRRERBHEREROTE  ARR
WsER R B -

33. HE&S®

2023
o=

—_— =

RMB’000
ARBT T

2022

— % — —
=

RMB’000
ARETT

NSNS

TRA TR OEE

Lease liabilities payable:

BfE:
Within one year —FR 42 547
Within a period of more than one year  #B38— FETHBBMF
but not more than two years 16 27
Within a period of more than two years BB FEETBBRFE
but not exceeding five years 56 -
More than five years HBRF 106 -
220 574
Less: Amount due for settlement & 128 A R E|EAE &
within 12 months shown under FE G AERDER)
current liabilities (42) (547)
Amount due for settlement after 12 {6 A & 3 BB /9 5/ I8
12 months shown under non-current (B /A3EREEE)
liabilities 178 27

ERREaBNNETFHESER
M EEBA48%ZT7.37% (20224 : 4.8%
Z55%) °

2023F EWmE | BEARARREROBRATF

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities ranged from 4.8% to 7.37% (2022: 4.8% to
5.5%).
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34. OTHER BORROWINGS

E i

Unsecured

The other borrowings include:

)] RMB3,000,000 received from an independent third
party on 17 September 2022 for 6 months, and bearing
a fixed monthly charge of RMB90,000; and

i) RMB2,000,000 received from the same independent
third party on 5 November 2022 for 6 months, and
bearing a fixed monthly charge of RMB60,000.

Pursuant to a supplemental agreement dated 12 January
2024, the fixed monthly charges shall be calculated up to 31
December 2023 and the aggregate amount for principal and
fixed monthly charges of RMB7,215,000 shall be repayable
before 30 June 2024.

35. DEFERRED TAX

The following is the deferred tax asset recognised and the
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022

Charge to profit or loss (Note 12) SEEE]CS

At 31 December 2023

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
could be carried forward for five years to offset against its
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets relating to
unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

34.

35.

H fth & 5K

2023 2022
—m— = —E——

—_—— —_—

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB’000
ARBT T

7,215 5,415

HERERE

) R2022F9R17HE—RBILE
=H U E| AR 3,000,0007C © A
He@A BEEHRERAARE
90,0007T : &

ii) §A2022¢11HSEIQI:J EX kA

= U E| AR ¥ 2,000,000 7T °

z%,ﬁﬂmlﬂ BESAEAAR
#60,000 7T °

BIEHEAE2024F1 A 12 BT 1H
F BETESABRTEZR2023F12A
3B A REEFAEBRAEGAR
#7,215,0007C * ZEFA2024F 6 A30H

AIEE -
IEFEBLTH
MT#E%*%LLﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁm
AFERBEFENEHIE

ECL provision
RAMREE
BERE

RMB’000
AR® TR

72022491 B1B%2022412 A31 1 31
> (Kat12)

(31

M2023412 A31H =

REBEHBEZRLER  HBEBEN G

BRAFUEHEBROERTOEN -

BERRABRANEBENELEHASE

E-REERAEKEBHERN G

ﬂLM%SZ% EHREEEESIAR
TEER -
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35. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB155,650,000 (2022:
RMB62,973,000) available for offset against future profits in
the PRC. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profits stream.

Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately RMB155,650,000 (2022: RMB62,973,000)
with expiry dates as disclosed in the following table. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

2023 20234
2024 20244
2025 20254
2026 2026 F
2027 2027 F
2028 20284

36. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised, issued and fully paid: EE - BRITREHE:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. IEERIE (#)

RBMEPR AEE A HEHEL R F

Bl /) R 2 0s A B (i EH R B A R IR B 1B

%45 N R ¥ 155,650,000 7T (2022 4 :

AR #62,973,0007T) ° B2 LATER

RICHEF R WAL RE BB EE
RIEEFIBEE o

AERABFEBEREREOARE
155,650,000 7C 8 & 18 (2022 F : AR
#62,973,0007T) F BIHAA A TR - &
85 18 7] PR B A 82 o

2023 2022
—m—=

—_—

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

- 6,307

5,658 5,658
27,856 27,856
12,236 12,236
10,916 10,916
98,984 -
155,650 62,973

36. A

2023
“BC=F
Number of Amount Number of Amount

shares 2.0} shares 8
RGEE RMB'000 L RMB'000
N ARETT

— Domestic shares of RMB1 each —BRABARE1TH
NE K
At 1 January and 31 December P1ATER12A31H 864,000,000 864,000 864,000,000 864,000
— H-shares of RMB1 each —BREABARE1TH
H%
At 1 January and 31 December M1ATHKE12A318 605,376,000 605,376 605,376,000 605,376
Total @t 1,469,376,000 1,469,376  1,469,376,000 1,469,376

2023FEHE | BELAABRRROBRLF
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group maintains various retirement schemes for its
employees. The retirement scheme for employees of the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries is a mandatory central
pension scheme organised by the PRC government, the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions made are based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries and charged as expenses when the
employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contribution. The employer contributions vest fully once they
are made. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Under the
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in fund under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% (2022: 5%) of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, capped at HK$1,500 (2022:
HK$1,500) per month, to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
approximately RMB644,000 (2022: RMB980,000) represents
contributions paid and payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at 31 December
2023, contributions of approximately RMB1,000 (2022:
RMB1,000) due in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023 had not been paid over to the plans. The amounts were
paid subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ®RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

37.

RIKERETE

AREBAEEERITENEKRE -
ARABIREGBENBARAEESR
3 — T8 /P B BT 48 A 2 58 ) M e R
BREFE ZFrE2EERAEE
CEESRAGER - HRDNREERE
BEMzEoLET THREBRE
SHEZHEHI T RGETIER IR -
BERFR—BIEL  BF2HEEME -
REBAEBEE2HAEREER LR
BerrE - REAHETE EERE
BYEREEBBRANSY% EAERBT
BEIHR ESABERALR A
30,0008 L TEIMEEFER — 1@
METAEHNES BAEEEE
PTHEE AEBEAETAYREST
SRR F & A A5% (20224 1 5%)
TER R EFRA1,500/87T (2022 4
1,500 - BAEFEEEHER) -

REBEZNERZATBEHOARE
644,0007T (20224 : A R # 980,000
TL) A S EARBR EVEARTE L X
Mt EFFEIER 2 5K - B 2023 4F
12 H318  BHAH AN AR 1,000
JC (20224 : AR #1,0007T) & & &
AEZE2023F12A318 L FE &
B ZERERREPELERED
KT o
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following capital commitments:

Capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated

Notes to the 7Conso|idated Financial Statements

38. EXEE

RBEYR  AEBEATEAELE

2023 2022

P — o — —
—g_: e e

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

BT SENEFNE
EENINOR=E R R &30

financial statements in respect of: BENEARFT
(iy Capital contribution to subsidiaries () [FIMIEBRAETE 23,735 23,635
(i) Acquisition of Properties | (i) WEEWEE (M E24)
(Note 24) 3,700 3,700
(i) Construction cost of properties (i) FIEERYZERNRERKAR
under development 34,728 18,187
62,163 45,522

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions
and balances with related parties:

(a)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the identified related parties which have transaction
with the Group were as follows:

Name of the Company

EEERE

Beijing Lichuang Future Technology Company Limited
("Beijing Lichuang”)
ERNBIRKB AR AR (TR DAI)

30. BERFRS
BREELGATBRERREHESEI
AREBRFREFEINEALS R
RN
(a) # =2023F 20229 12H31H

IHFE BAEEETIHINE
HBBEESIT

Relationships with the Company
BEARQRHEAR

A shareholder of the Group

REBIR

2023FEHRE | BEARARRROBRATE
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continved)  39. BBER X B (4)

(@) (Continued) (a) (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the balances of ¥R EER - BEFEAEERINT
related parties are as follows:

2023 2022
—_E—-= ==
Name of related party RMB’000 RMB’000
BELEE AR¥T ARBTT
Amount due to a shareholder R — R R R FIE
— Beijing Lichuang (Note) — b= A A (K aE) (66) (511)
Notes: The above balance is non-trade in nature, unsecured, non- Mat: NEEHRBESME  SEF &
interest bearing and repayable on demand. BRARERER -
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEEAEWEH
The key management comprises all the Directors, chief FTEEBAEBREBES 17
executive officer and supervisors, details of their RERRES  BEZHMFE
remuneration are disclosed in Note 14 to the RERE W B mRM 149258 -

consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of Directors and key executives are EERTETHRAEBNHH L
determined by the remuneration committee having ERBARE LT AEBRITME
regard to the performance of individuals and market BgEBF -

trends.
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ate

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

40.1 General information of subsidiaries

ment

40. X AFMB A AFHE

40.1 EREAMIB AT —REHR

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

out below:

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation
o

Name of subsidiaries

Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment PRC NA
Development Company Limited'*
HEANRERERRAT HE TER
Beijing Shen Shang’ PRC NA
IREE ﬁl iR
Shenzhen Zhongya Sports Culture PRC NA
Company Limited? (Formerly known TR
a Shenzhen Juxi investment and
Development Company Limited)
Shenzhen Zhongya Sports Culture
Company Limited? (17 Shenzhen Jud
investment and Development Company
Limited)
Shenzhen Shenxi Investment and PRC NA
Development
MITIEREERERAR ket Byl
Shenzhen Shenhe Chuangi PRC VA
Investrment and Development G TEA
Company Limited"* (Note i)
RIRAEIREERBRAA
(Hétii)
Shenzhen Happiness Zhongya PRC VA
Holdings Company Limited'* i Iyl

(Formerly known as Shenzhen

Tong He Chungjian Investment

Development Company Limited)
Shenzhen Happiness Zhongya Holdings

Company Limited** (4778 Shenzhen Tong

He Chungjian Investment Development

Company Limited)

(lass of
shares h

Paid-up/issued
registered capital

RMB200,000,000
AR 200,00000070

RMB10,000,000
AR%10,0000007T

RMB1,000,000
ARE1,0000007

RMBI 000,000
ARH1,0000007C

RMB5,000,000
AR 5,000,000

RMB10,000,000
AR 10,000,000

Directly
R

2003 200 2023
UBE  ANE  ABE
100% 100% -
100% 100% -
- - 100%
100% 100% -
100% 100% -
100% 100% -

ARRRRBERRER KREERFF
BOMBRARNFBTHINAT

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company

2023FEHE | BELAABRRROBRLF

Irectly
2553

2022

100%

Proportion of voting power
held by the Company

ARAfER

203
ABE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

Property
development

VESE

Investment holding

RARR

Inactive

EEZR

Investment holding
RAER

Inactive

Eaxh

Investment holding

RARR
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set
out below: (Continued)

40.

ARATMERBFE @)

401 ERMBARN-—RER (&)

ARRRRBERRER KREERFF
BB RARMFTHIAT
(&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
”
£ 2] FATHERE
Directly Indirectly
B% 77
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
WBE ANE ABE NE WBE WNE
Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investrent Development G iR ARH1,000,0007 RERR
Company Limited*
RImFAeRREERERRLAT
Shenzhen Ju Sheng Chuang Jian PRC NA RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment and Development Limited
MRS EREERERDA HE AR AR 1,000,000 REBR
Shennongjia™ PRC /A R\MB20,000,000 - - 60% 60% 60% 60%  Property
BERH :p TR A& 20,000,000 development
VESES
Puning Zhongpa Real Estate PRC NA RMB4,000,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100%  Inactive
Development Company Limited* G TR AR 4,000,0007 ERLK
(Note i i)
LETPRESERERRAT
(Wi ki)
Guangzhou Huipu Trading PRC N/A RMB1,000,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100%  Inactive
Company Limited"* (Note fi) G Byl ARE1,000,0007 IRLK
BATEREERRAF *(HLii)
World Ease Investment Limited HK Ordinary HK$1,000 = - 100% 100% 100% 100%  Not commence
EIRRERRRA Bk Lok 1,007 business
gmex

198
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. & RQ T M B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

out below: (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

registration/
Name of subsidiaries ration

Bejing Kanglejia Technology PRC
Company Limited™* (Note / § i) P

Beijing Kanglejia Technology Company
Limited** (732 i)

Beijing Yufeng Chengyou PRC
Technology Company Liited'* EF

PROREEHRERAR

Shenzhen Wanzi Hotel Apartment PRC
Management Cormpany Limited* EF
(Note i)

MIMEZBELEERERA A
(ki)

Beijing Herun Wanwu Technology PRC
Co, Ltd.* (Note i) i
FRUEEIHRERAA (Wit ii)

Beijing Wanxiang Shengrun PRC
Technology Co,, Lid. * (Note i) P
IRERBRARRERAT (W)

Ningyun Runyu Technology PRC
(Beiing) Co, Ltd.”* (Note i) #
REETHE (LR BRAF = (Wetii)

Yueyu Wanrun (Beijing) Culture PRC
Communication Co,, Ltd." (Note i) @
REEBGLR) ULERER AR
(Histii)

Jiao Yanpengda Technology PRC
(Beijing) Co,, Ltd. * (Vote i) H
PEEERROCR)BRAT = (Hatii)

(lass of Paid-up/issued
shares held registered capital
i

/A RMB100,000
MR AR 100,000
A RMB100,000
TER AR%100,0007C
A RMB1,000,000

iR AR#1,000,0007T

VA RMB100,000
iR AR100,00070
VA RMB100,000
Oyl AR 1000007
VA RMB100,000
MER AEE100,0007
VA RMB100,000
iR AR100,00070
VA RMB100,000
iR AR 1000007

401 ERMBARN-—RER (&)

ARRRRBERRER KREERFF
BB RARMFTHIAT

(&

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company

Ll

Directly Indirectly

B#

23 202 23
WBE  ANE 203E

= - 100%

= - 100%

- - 100%

- - 95%

= - 95%

= - 95%

- - 95%

= - 95%

2022
W E

100%

100%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

Proportion of voting power

held by the Company

203
23%

100%

100%

100%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

2002
WNE

100%

100%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

Principal activities

Not commence

business
Ias%

Property
investment

V€

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding
ALK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RARR
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (Continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by ARNRIRRERRERE LEER
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set B8 BH% NAIMFEBEEHIINT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities

ARTHER
Directly Ind\rect\y
BE B
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ABE 0F WBE W E 3% WNE

Bejing Shuying Wanyu Culture PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
Communication Co., Ltd.* (Note i)~ TER ARE100,0007C KA

IRBFAE L ERERAA
(Hiétii)

Miao Ruo Yue Xiu (Bejing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
Cultural Communication EF MER AEE100,0007 RERR

Co., Ltd." (Note i)
PEEA(LR) UL ERERATY

(Hiétii)
Beijing Ronghui Guangyi PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Investment holding
Technology Co., Ltd. " (Note i) # TR ARE 1000007 REER

IRBERRHRERAF (HiLii)

Beijing Senyu Haixiao PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd. " (ote i) e Byl ARE 1000007 investment
YRATRBNRERAA (Witi) MERE
Jingcheng Nuoyun Technology PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (Note i) B TNER ARE100,0007 investment
RHFORR (R BRAF (Wetii) VIESE
Chenlu Yingban (Beiing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co,, Ltd.* (Note fi) i TR ARE 1000007 investment
RETH ORI BERRAR (W) NERE
Beijing Jiangfeng Yucheng PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note i) EF Byl ARE100000T investment
FRIBERBRERAD  (Hiiti) MERE
Beijing Xianyun Qingyan PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd." (Note i) HE el ARE100,0007 investment
FRAZEENRERR A (ki) VESE
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set
out below: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued
Name of subsidiaries ration shares held registered capital
i
Directly
B%
2023
ABE
Yushu Yanxin (Bejing) Culture PRC VA RMB100,000 -
Communication Co,, Ltd.* (Note i)~ NER ARE100,000 7
BERE (LR XL ERARAT
(Aistii)
Xinyu Xiangzhong Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 -
(Beiing) Co., Ltd.* (Note i) G TER ARE 1000007
HERRRR R BRAF (Hiii)
Tianlang Yunging (Beijing) Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 -
Co, Ltd.* (Vote i) e Byl ARE 1000007
RAZE LR HRBRAT = (Hiti)
Beijing JInfeng Yishuang Technology PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Co, Ltd."* (Vote i) Gl TER ARE100,0007
IREBERRRERAD (W)
Beijing Moyu Chenxi PRC NA RMB100,000 -
Technology Co, Ltd. " (Note i) # TER ARE 1000007
TRRPRERRERAD (Hi)
Yubo Yunxiao (Beijing) PRC /A R\B100,000 -
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note i) G Byl ARE 100000
BERR LR BRBRAT = (Hiti)
Beijing Yunxin Xinyi Business PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Consulting o, Ltd." (Note i) G TR AR%100,0007
IRBEMGEEARERAA
(Wétii)
Bejing Xiangche Yunxiao PRC NA RMB100,000 =
Information Consulting Co., Ltd. H MR ARE100,0007
(Note i)
IREREEREABRRAA
(Hiétii)

atement

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company

40. AR T B A BFE @)

401 ERMBARN-—RER (&)

ARRRRBERRER KREERFF
BB RARMFTHIAT

(&

Proportion of voting power

held by the Company ~ Principal activities

LB
Indirectly

202 23 202 223 2002
WME UBE ANE ABE NE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESE]

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property

investment

NERE
- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment
mERE
- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

YESIE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment
NERE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property

investment

VESE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESIE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESE]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ®RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (Continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
”
ARTHERR

Directly
B% 77
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
WBE ANE ABE NE WBE WNE

Chuyisitu (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co, Ltd.* (Note i)~ % Sk AR 100,000 investment

BREE LR U ERERAR NERE
(ki)

Jiaoyan Ningyu (Beijing) Cultural PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co,, Ltd.* (Note i)~ TER AR%100,0007C investment

BRET(LR)ULER NERE

BREMAF (ki)

Beijing Mifu Hu shuo Software PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd.(Note i) EF Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
Beijing Mifu Hu shuo Software Technology ESE)

Co, Ltd.*(Arsin)

Shengmeng (Beijing) Technology PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co., Ltd." (Note i) h Byl ARE 1000007 investment
5 (LR MRER AT (i) MERE
Bejing Zise Meiqui Culture PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co, Ltd."* (Vote i) G TER AR 100,000 investment
IREEIETERR A (ki) VESE
Beijing Huanantianchuang PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Information Consulting # TER AR 100,000 investment
Co, Ltd."* (Vote i) MERE
IRERREIEEARBRAA
(Wiétii)
Beijing Shitong Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co., Ltd.* (Note i) # TR ARE 1000007 investment
TRBBHBERAT (Wit ESE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. & RQ T M B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&

Place of

incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries ration shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
i

; LB
Directly Indirectly
ER W&
2023 2022 2023 2022 PV} 2022

WBE  ANE ABE ME UBE A0EF

Youlin Miaoying Culture PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication (Bejing) H MR ARE100,0007 investment
Co, Ltd.*Note i) mERE

T B (L R) BRAT
(Histii)

Bejing Huguang Shangmei PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Information Consulting G iyl ARE100,000 7 investment
Co, Ltd.*Note i) mERE

IR R RERDERAA
(Histii)

Beijing Luoji Suotu Business PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Management Consulting G AR ARE100,000 7 investment
Co, Ltd.*Note i) mERE

IRAAZEOEERAAERAT
(Aistii)

Caibai (Bejing) Information PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co., Ltd."* (Note i) H MR AR%100,0007 investment

YRR EERABRAF (ki) VIESE

Helv (Beijing) Technology PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co, Ltd."* (Note /i) EF Bycl: ARE 100000 investment

R LR MRERERAR (W2tii) VESE

Beijing Zhengmei Kexin PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note ji) H By clid AR%100,0007 investment

IR ERTERRERAD  (Hiti) VIESE

Yiyue Yunwei (Bejing) PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co,, Ltd." (Note i) # MR ARE100,0007C investment

TGRSR R REERA T (Witii) VIESE
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e ®RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (Continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
”
ARTHERR

Directly
B% 77
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
WBE ANE ABE NE WBE WNE

Qiuyue Xiuzhu (Bejing) PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd. " (Note i) G AR ARE100,000 7 investment
WAAM R RRERA A (Weti) VIESE
Beijing Yifangya Technology PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co,, Ltd." (Note i) G Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
Bejjng Yifangya Technology Co,, Ltd.** VESE
(Hitii)
Hattian Rongyu (Beijing) PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd. " (Vote i) EF Byl ARE 1000007 investment
BRER QLRI BEERAR = (W2tii) NERE
Bejing Xinnuan Angyi Technolofy PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co,, Ltd." (Note i) G TER AR 100,000 investment
Beijing Xinnuan Angyi Technolofy NERE

Development Co, Ltd.**(#22ii)

Bejing Shutong Shucai Technology PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co., Ltd."* (Note ii) H Sk AR 100,000 investment
FRERNH R RERERAA VIESE
(Aistii)
Jiaxin Moran (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd." (Vote i) G TR ARE 1000007 investment
EOEA LR REERA A (Weti) NERE
Yingying Binglv (Beijing) PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd." (Note i) EF Byl ARE100000T investment
BRI (LR REBRA A (H2tii) nERE
Zhiling Actian (Beijing) PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd." (Vote i) b TNEE ARE100,0007 investment
ERBR R RERER AT (Hetii) VESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. & RQ T M B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power

Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
it g5 1

FATERA RS FOTAS
Directly Indirectly

B#

23 202 23 202 223 2002
WBE  ANE ABE ME UBE A0EF

Bejing Haimeng Zeyou Software PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co,, Lid." (Note fi) H MR AR%100,0007C investment

IREFERUNERERDA VIESE
(Aistii)

Beijing Fengyu Ruofei PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd." (ote i) G TER ARE 1000007 investment

TREIERBRERAD  (Hati) NERE

Beijng Zhongauo Feii PRC NA RVB100,000 - - %% %% %% 9% Popery
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note i) EF Byl ARE 1000007 investment

IRRSF-BRERAD (i) VESE)

Beijing Qichi Ranxu Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co., Ltd." (Vote i) G TER ARE100,0007 investment

IREBRIHRERERAT VIESE
(Aistii)

Shengsu Yinghuai (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Cuttural Communication h AR ARE100,000 investment
Co, Ltd.* (ote if) mERE

EREROLR) XL ERER
BIERE (Wtii)

Xunliu Qianying (Beijing) Technology PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co,, Lid." (Note fi) # MR ARE100,0007C investment

ERZRORHEERERAA ESE
(Aistii)

Beijing Yiju Wanli Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co., Ltd.*(Note i) G TER ARE 1000007 investment

PREREEMRERLF (Wi i) ESE)
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e ®RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (Continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by ARNRIRRERRERE LEER
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set B8 BH% NAIMFEBEEHIINT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities

ARTHER
Directly Ind\rect\y
BE B
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ABE 0F WBE W E 3% WNE

Haoyong Kuyi (Bejing) Information PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co., Ltd."* (Note i) hE MR AR%100,0007C investment
FABE LR EERAERAT VIESE
(Aistii)
Miduo (Beijing) Advertising PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Design Co, Ltd.* (Note i) HE TR ARE 1000007 investment
AR BERGTBRAA (W) NERE
Beijing Shende Culture PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Media Co,, Ltd. " (Note i) hE Byl ARE 1000007 investment
YREEULERERAA (Witi) NERE
Beijing Wanwei Tongyuan PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Development G TR ARE100,0007 investment
Co,, Ltd.* (ote fi) VESE
IREERTHEERERLA
(Histii)
Beijing Mingxiangyuan PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note ji) B TNER ARE100,0007 investment
TRAHERRARD A (W i) VIESE
Beijing Siyyuan Information PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co, Ltd." (Vote i) G TR ARE 1000007 investment
Beijing Siyyuan Information Consulting NERE

Co, Ltd.* (Afstii)

Beijing Danding Technology PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co,, Ltd." (Note i) G Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
IRKERRERA A (Wetii) VESE
Beijing Dezhi Yunsheng PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note ji) H By clid ARE100,0007 investment
IREEZERRERAD  (Hiti) ESE
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mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set
out below: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued
Name of subsidiaries ration shares held registered capital
g
Directly
B%
2023
ABE
Bejing Anran Ruoyu PRC NA RMB100,000 =
Technology Co,, Ltd." (Note i) H MR AR%100,0007C
IRRRERERERAD  (Hieti)
Liury Weiyang (Beijing) Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 -
Co, Ltd. 2] (Note i) nE Bycl: ARE 100000
RIAR LR BRBRAT = (HiZii)
Anrong Shuchang (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 -
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note i) H By clid ARE 100000
Anrong Shuchang (Bejing) Technology
Co, Lid ¥ (Aetii)
Weiya Qiaomeng (Beijing) PRC N/A RMB100,000 -
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note ji) G TR AR%100,0007
BT E LR B RRRAR = (L)
Jieyu Sisi (Beijing) Cultural PRC NA RMB100,000 -
Communication Co,, Ltd.”* (Note i)~ TER ARE 1000007
ERBR (AR UL ERERAT
(Htii)
Bing Ruo Hanfeng (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 -
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note i) G Bycl: ARE 1000007
NERE (LR BRBRAT = (HiZii)
Beijing Mulu Shuheng Culture PRC NA RMB100,000 -
Communication Co,, Ltd.* (Note i)~ iR ARE 1000007
PRAESEXERERAT
(Hetii)
Yingmei Qingmei (Bejing) PRC NA RIB100,000 -
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note ji) G el AR%100,0007

DEER LR HERRAT (W)

atement

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company

40. AR T B A BFE @)

401 ERMBARN-—RER (&)

ARRRRBERRER KREERFF
BB RARMFTHIAT

(&

Proportion of voting power

held by the Company ~ Principal activities

LB
Indirectly

202 23 202 223 2002
WME UBE ANE ABE NE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESE]

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESIE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

YESIE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

YESIE

- 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
investment

VESIE
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e ®RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (Continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by ARNRIRRERRERE LEER
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set B8 BH% NAIMFEBEEHIINT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities

ARTHER
Directly Ind\rect\y
BE B
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ABE 0F WBE W E 3% WNE

Beijing Meiya Miaoyi PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co,, Ltd." (Note i) hE MR AR%100,0007C investment
FRABDERRERA A (Weti) VIESE
Yibai lingchen (Beijing) PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd." (Vote i) G Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
RESR (LR BRERAF (W) VESE
Bihai Qingkong (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Techno\ogy Co, Ltd.* (Note i) HE By clid ARE100,0007 investment
EREE (LR RRERAF (Weti) VIESE
Bejing Yueye Qingkehui PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co,, Ltd." (Note i) G oyl AR%100,0007C investment
Beijing Yueye Qingkehui Technology NERE

Co, Ltd.** (Hi&zii)

Beijing Yuan Zhi Ai Culture PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co,, Ltd.* (Voteii) TR ARE 1000007 investment
Beijing Yuan Zhi Ai Culture Communication NERE

Co, Ltd.* (Afsti)

Xueyu Xiongfeng (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd. " (ote i) G Byl ARE 1000007 investment

EGREOLRIBERRAA (Wetii) ESE)

Tiancheng Yongge (Beijing) PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Techno\ogy Co, Ltd.”* (Note i) HE By clid AR%100,0007 investment

RERE LR BEERA A (W2tii) VESE

Yunren Jimu (Bejing) Information PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co., Ltd."* (Note ii) H Sk AR 100,000 investment

ECEROLR) ERABERAA ESE
(Hiétii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

atement

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. & RQ T M B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

out below: (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

registration/
Name of subsidiaries ration

Bejing Bail Tianyi PRC
Technology Co,, Lid.* (Note if) P
YRENFERRERAA (Wetii)

Beijing Shuyi Anyun Culture PRC
Communication Co,, Ltd. (Note i)~
IREERELERER AR

(Witii)
Beijing Yongsheng Junpeng PRC
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note i) EF

IRAABBHBERAT (i)

Beijing Jingmo Ruchu Technology PRC
Development Co,, Lid. * (Note i) B
PRERMIHRERARAT

(Aistii)
Bejing Aiwu Ruohui PRC
Technology Co,, Lid.* (Note if) H

PRUEERMBEROA (Wi i)

Beijing Jinke Xiaoheng PRC
Technology Co,, Ltd. * (Note i) G
IReMBBREERAF (Weti)

Beijing Xiaoruo Wuchen PRC
Technology Co,, Ltd." (Note i) G
PREREENRERLA (Wit i)

Weiai Jinggiu (Beiing) PRC
Technology Co,, Lid.* (Note if) H
Weiai Jinggiu (Bejing) Technology
Co, Ltd ¥ (H i)

(lass of Paid-up/issued
shares held registered capital
i

/A RMB100,000
MR AR 100,000
A RMB100,000
TER AR%100,000
A RMB100,000
TEA AR%100,0007
/A RMB100,000
TR ARE100,0007
/A RMB100,000
MR AR 100,000
A RMB100,000
TER AR%100,000
A RMB100,000
TR ARE100,000T
A RMB100,000
AR AR 100,000

401 ERMBARN-—RER (&)

ARRRRBERRER KREERFF
BB RARMFTHIAT

(&

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company

LB

Directly Indirectly

Ef
23 202 23
WBE  ANE 203E

= - 95%

- - 95%

- - 95%

= - 95%

= - 95%

- - 95%

= - 95%

= - 95%

i
w0
WnE

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

Proportion of voting power

held by the Company

203
23%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

2002
WNE

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

95%

Principal activities

Property
investment

VESE]

Property
investment

VESE

Property
investment

VESE

Property
investment

YESIE

Property
investment

VESE]

Property
investment

VESE

Property
investment

YESIE

Property
investment

VESE]
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e ®RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (Continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of

incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities

f

FRARERE
Directly
B% 77
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
WBE ANE ABE NE WBE WNE

Bejing Mochun Shijing Culture PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co, Ltd. * (Note i)~ % Sk AR 100,000 investment

IREZHELERERAR VIESE
(Aistii)

Beijing Jin Rui Thai Information PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co, Ltd."* (Note i) G TR ARE 1000007 investment

Beijing Jin Rui Thai Information Consulting NERE

Co, Ltd.* (Afstii)

Beijing Xing DingLi Information PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co, Ltd."* (Vote i) # Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
Beijing Xing Dingli Information Consulting ESE)

Co, Ltd.*(Arsin)

Baishifei (Bejing) Software PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co,, Ltd.* (ote fi) # Byl ARE 1000007 investment
BHSECLR) B RRAR  (Witi) nERE
Beijing Suan Ning Meng PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd." (Vote i) B TNER ARE100,0007 investment
FREEEMRARD A (i) VIESE
Tengao (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd." (Vote i) G TR ARE 1000007 investment
B CR) BEERAT  (Hitii) NERE
Beijing Lianbo Sixin Technology PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co,, Ltd." (Vote i) EF Byl ARE100000T investment
IrHRRERRERERAA nERE
(i)
Jieou (Beijing) PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note ji) H By clid ARE100,0007 investment
B LR BRER AT * (i) VIESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. & RQ T M B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&

Place of

incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries ration shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
i

; LB
Directly Indirectly
ER W&
2023 2022 2023 2022 PV} 2022

WBE  ANE ABE ME UBE A0EF

Bejing Hongyu Tianxia Information PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co., Ltd."* (Note ii) H MR AR%100,0007C investment

FREFATEEARBRAA ESE
(Aistii)

Fengxiao Xuanang Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development (Beijing) Co,, Ltd."* G TER ARE 1000007 investment
(Note fi) NELE

BEEAHRER (L) ERAT
(Aistii)

Tengqi Ruyue (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd. " (ote i) # TER ARE 1000007 investment

BEIMA () MRBRAF (W) ESE

Beijing Haoran Chujie Technology PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co,, Ltd.* (ote fi) h Byl ARE 1000007 investment

PRAERERHRERAT (Wit i) ES e

Nuoxiang Anya (Beijing) Business PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Management Consulting G el AR%100,0007 investment
Co., Ltd.* (ote fi) VIESE

RAZROLR) EEREN
BRAT (fizti)

Beijing Fengxing Yusi Culture PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Media Co,, Ltd."* (Note i) G TER AR%100,0007 investment

PREATEXLERARAD ESE
(Wiétii)

Bejing Xian Ming Da Information PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co., Ltd."* (Note ii) H AR ARE100,0007C investment

IRERERSFARRLA (W) ESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (Continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by ARNRIRRERRERE LEER
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set B8 BH% NAIMFEBEEHIINT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities

ARTHER
Directly Ind\rect\y
BE B
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ABE 0F WBE W E 3% WNE

Heng Gao Hui (Beijing) Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co, Ltd.* (Vote i) H Sk AR 100,000 investment
BRE LR HRARD A (Hi i) VIESE
Beijing Jinxi Zhixin PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd."* (Note ji) G Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
KRB L ORBERAF (Weti) VESE
Jinmu Qingteng (Beijing) PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Techno\ogy Co, Ltd.* (Note i) H By clid ARE100,0007 investment
BREE QLR BEERAA (Watii) VIESE
Bejing Chengjia Zhizhen Culture PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co, Ltd. * (Noe i)~ % Sk AR 100,000 investment
YREFEY L ERER AR VIESE
(Aistii)
Beijing Baixue Chenyang PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co., Ltd. " (Vote i) G TR ARE 1000007 investment
YRRERERRERAA A (Weti) NERE
Beian Chuging (Beijing) Culture PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co,, Ltd.* (Noteif) Byl ARE 100000 investment
TEAIE (LR UL EEERAT nERE
(Hietii)
Beijing Jinse Jiangyan PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Culture Co, Ltd. * (ote fi) H By clid ARE 100000 investment
IRERLE X ERAD (i) VIESE
Bejing Xiayou Muchan Culture PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co., Ltd." (Vote ii) H Sk AR 100,000 investment
Beijing Xiayou Muchan Culture VIESE

Communication Co,, Ltd. ** (#/zZii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. & RQ T M B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power

Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
it g5 1

FATERA RS FOTAS
Directly Indirectly

B#

23 202 23 202 223 2002
WBE  ANE ABE ME UBE A0EF

Gubei Qingge (Beijng) Cultra PRC A RMB100,000 = - 95¢% 95¢% 95% 95%  Property
Ciommunication Co,, Ltd.* (Note i) AR ARE100,000 7 investment

BILER UL R) U BRER A ESE
(Aistii)

Beijing Weifeng Chayun Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co., Ltd.* (Note i) G TER ARE 1000007 investment

IREERERRERAD  (Hei) ESES

Beijing Bomu Mianyan Culture PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co,, Ltd.”* (Note i)~ Byl ARE 1000007 investment

IREERE L ERERAA VESE)
(Wtii)

Jingtian Xianheng (Beijing) Technology ~ PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co., Ltd." (Note i) H By clid ARE100,0007 investment

EREELR) HEERERAA VIESE
(Histii)

Zhenlian Meishe (Beijing) Cultural PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co, Ltd.* (Note i) TNER ARE100,0007 investment

ZHRE (LR UL ERERAT VESE
(Hétii)

Bowen Zichen (Befjing) PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Software Co, Ltd. ™ (Note i) G AR ARE100,000 7 investment

BXRR LR R BRAF  (Heti) ESE

Beijing Wannian Changcun PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd."* (Note i) G Byl ARE 1000007 investment

IREERFREERAD  (Hii) VESE)

Beijing Yong Xu Yuan Technology PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co, Ltd." (Vote i) H T#A ARE100,0007 investment

IR ERRBERARDA (Wi VIESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (Continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
”
ARTHERR

Directly
B% 77
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
WBE ANE ABE NE WBE WNE

Tong Tai i Bejjng PRC NA RVB100,000 - - % %% 9% 9% Propery
Technology Co,, Ltd." (Note i) H Sk AR 100,000 investment
BRE LR MBRARD A (Hi i) VIESE
Beijing Taifu Information PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co, Ltd."* (Vote i) # Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
IRARESEABRAD  (Hiti) VESE
Beijing Jienuo Jingran PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note ji) H By clid ARE100,0007 investment
IRZHERABRERAD  (Hiti) VIESE
Bejing Fanke Nimei Culture PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co, Ltd.* (Noteii) % Sk AR 100,000 investment
FRARER UL ERER AR VIESE
(Aistii)
Anlong Qianyu Technology PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (Note /i) G TR ARE 1000007 investment
RRTEMR (R) BRAF *(H2Lii) NERE
Beijing Changwen Zhanran PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note i) EF Byl ARE 100000 investment
IRRRERRRERAD (i) nERE
Beijing Jiangxiu Guangjang PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co, Ltd." (Note ji) b TNEg ARE100,0007 investment
Beijing Jiangxiu Guangjang Technology NERE

Co, Ltd ¥ (Fiziii)

Bejing Jinghua Fumeng PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co,, Ltd." (Note i) H Sk AR 100,000 investment
IREERERRARLE (i) NERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. & RQ T M B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RARRHRENREE REERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set BRI BATKMEFBHEINAT
out below: (Continued) (&

Place of

incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries ration shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
i

; LB
Directly Indirectly
ER W&
2023 2022 2023 2022 PV} 2022

WBE  ANE ABE ME UBE A0EF

Bejing Chunjuan Runci Technology PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co,, Lid." (Note fi) H MR AR%100,0007C investment

IR ERHRERERAA ESE
(Aistii)

Yuyi Fengshuo (Beijing) Cultural PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co,, Ltd.* (Note i)~ TER ARE 1000007 investment

ABEE(ER) UL ERERAT NERE
(i)

Shengyi Lanxin Cultural Communication ~ PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
(Beijing) Co., Ltd."* (Note i) EF Byl ARE 1000007 investment

BRERLER(LR) BRAA ESE)
(Hitii)

Yaoye Runshu (Beijing) Cultural PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co,, Ltd."* (Note i)~ Byl ARE 1000007 investment

ERES LR U ERERRA VESE)
(Wzii)

Beijing Shenjingronman Cultural PRC NA RIB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Communication Co,, Lid. H By clid ARE100,0007 investment

IRRERRNERERLA ESE

Bejing Mingzhe Zifeng Software PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Technology Co,, Ltd. " (Note i) # MR ARE100,0007C investment

IRR AR R RERAA ESE
(Aistii)

Beijing Yuanyi Moju Information PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co, Ltd." (Vote i) G TER ARE 1000007 investment

FRRNRR EEAARRAT ESE)
(Htii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. XX B E A B @)

COMPANY (continued)

40.1 General information of subsidiaries (Continued) 401 EEMIB LR —RER (&)
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by ARNRIRRERRERE LEER
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set B8 Bﬁ% NAIMFEBEEHIINT
out below: (Continued) (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/  Class of Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiaries operation shares held registered capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities

) 2] FATHER
Directly Indirectly
BE B
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ABE 0F WBE W E 3% WNE

Bejing Wejian Yechu Technology PRC VA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Development Co,, Lid." (Note fi) H Sk AR 100,000 investment

IRARERNRERERAA VIESE
(Aistii)

Shaogi Lingyu (Beijing) Information PRC NA RMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co, Ltd."* (Vote i) HE TER ARE 1000007 investment
PESY (LR EEHAERAT NERE
(Hiii)

Huizhi Lanxin (Beijing) Business PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Management Consulting Co, L1d.* Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
(Note i) VESE

EEMLOLR) CRERRY
BRAR (Htii)

Beijing Jidu Information PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Consulting Co, Ltd."(Note /i) i Bycl: ARE 1000007 investment
YRREESFABRAT (Weti) VESE
Beijing Baida Software PRC NA RIMB100,000 - - 95% 95% 95% 95%  Property
Co,, Ltd.* (ote fi) HE By clid ARE 100000 investment
YREEGHERAF (Witi) VIESE
* For identification purpose only * E 37
# Wholly domestic owned enterprise # ENEME
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HZE2023F12A31BILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

40.1

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

All of the above subsidiaries are limited company which
the places of operations are the same as their places of
incorporation.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period or at
any time during the year.

Notes:

(i) It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31 December
2023.

(ii)

It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31 December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. AR T B A BFE @)

40.1

FRMBARN-—RER (&)

ELEMBARER/RBERA
B - L 5 B B AT I A S 4 B
GEICI

19 2 31T AE T 3R 4
SR S84 4F 7O A1 B DR 18 1 0 £
BEH -

orsa

(i) HREZ2023F12A31HILEFE
R I VAL

(i) HABZE202F12A3181LFE

2022. FaE ML o
(iliy  The registered capital has not been paid up at 31 December (i)  F2023F12A318 ' EfMEARH
2023. KRR -
40.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that 402 EEERFEREZNIEZEMW

have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting rights

Place of incorporation and

held by non-controlling

B RS

TR ARKEHEAERNIFER
BB EN B R RNFS

Loss allocated to non-  Accumulated non-controlling

Name of subsidiary principal place of business interests controlling interests interests
R AREHA ZitHE
2023 2022 2023 2023 2022
WBE  200E  wB%F WBE  200F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBT T T ARBTRL . ARBTRn ARETT
Shennongjia PRC 40% 40% (8,461) (1,770) = (10,412) (1,951)
BRR th
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interest (1,010) (533) 558 1,568
BRFBRENENTEERBAA
(9.471) (2,303) (9.854) (383)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

40.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s subsidiary that have material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intra-

group eliminations:

Shennongjia

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interest of
Shennongjia (Note a)

Note:

FRBEE

DERE!

TH

FnBaE

40.

ARRHEAE NEEER

1R R IR AR A A
(Kiita)

(a) Non-controlling interest had unpaid share capital of

RMB8,000,000.

ARATMERBFE @)

4.2 BEERFEZEREZNFEZEN

BARMEE(E)

BERASBEHRAEAFERER
MM E AR MBS E R R E A
WR-ATHBERBEREEE
NARIEE HATA SR

e

2023 2022

—E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
207,740 176,906
267 430
(222,036) (170,214)
(3.617) 9,073
(10,412) (1,951)

Hrat -

(@) FERESZSEABNBRAARYE

8,000,000 7T °
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BE2023F12A31BEEE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40.
COMPANY (continued)

ARATMERBDFE @)

all

4.2 BEERFEREZNFEZEN
BARWEE(E)

40.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (Continued)

1R (1)

Shennongjia (Continued)

2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Revenue Wz - -
Expenses M (21,151) (4,425)
Loss for the year FNBE (21,151) (4,425)
Loss and total comprehensive RARIHEEAEGBER
expense attributable to *HERZBE
owners of the Company (12,690) (2,655)
Loss and total comprehensive BRI E R LR R
expense attributable to the non- & E L 4458
controlling interests of
Shennongjia (8,461) (1,770)
Loss and total comprehensive FHNBEREZEHAZEE
expense for the year (21,151) (4,425)
Dividend paid to non-controlling B4 F 18 2 42 FE4E IR 25
interests of Shennongjia H AR 2 - -
Net cash outflow from KEIRENIR ML
operating activities (13,793) (48,276)
Net cash outflow from WEEEIR M FE
investing activities = -
Net cash inflow from BMEERBREMAFE
financing activities 13,500 48,191
Net cash outflow Remt g5 (293) (85)
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41. LITIGATION

On 19 August 2021, Shennongjia Jinghe Hotel Management
Co., Ltd* (@ ERERBIEEEFBR A F) (“Jinghe
Hotel”), an independent third party, filed an indictment
against Shennongjia to the People’s Court of Shennongjia
Forestry District (the “Court”), regarding the occurrence of a
dangerous landslide on the north side of Jiuhu Hotel in
Dajiuhu Town, Shennongjia Forestry District. Pursuant to
which, Jinghe Hotel claims Shennongjia for losses caused by
the landslide, including i) compensation of approximately
RMB4,349,000 for the inability to operate due to the
landslides from 9 June 2021 till the resumption of operation
(temporarily calculated on the basis of 40 days, RMB108,730
per day); ii) repairment of the bridge which was damaged by
the landslide and undertaking of the responsibility for the
quality and safety after the repairment; iii) compensation for
the landslide damage to the pools, bridge guardrails, river
guardrails, flower beds, power supply and water supply
pipelines, plant foundation roads and site occupation fees
within the hotel site; and iv) the litigation fee, preservation
fee and appraisal fee of this lawsuit.

Jinghe Hotel and Shennongjia reached an agreement on the
repairment of the bridge, and the repairment was completed
before 31 December 2021. As Jinghe Hotel and Shennongjia
did not reach an agreement on the compensation for the
operation losses, Jinghe Hotel applied to the Court for an
appraisal of its operating losses from 9 June 2021 to 19 July
2021 (“Financial Estimation”). The court agreed the
Financial Estimation to be performed by an appraisal agent.
Due to the incomplete appraisal materials, the appraisal
agent requested Jinghe Hotel to provide additional
information.

On 22 April 2022, the Court issued a civil judgment on the
lawsuit, ruling that Shennongjia Hotel should compensate
Jinghe Hotel for the operating losses of approximately
RMB15,000, and replant the green plants in the flower bed
in the center of the bridge. The Court dismissed Jinghe
Hotel's other lawsuit claims (collectively known as “Original
Judgment”). On 12 May 2022, Jinghe Hotel filed an appeal
to the Intermediate People's Court of Yichang City
("Intermediate Court”) for approval of the original lawsuit
claims because Jinghe Hotel was not satisfied with the
judgement of the Court.

On 5 December 2022, Intermediate Court issued a civil
judgment and upheld the Original Judgment.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ®RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

41.

%II_I{
ojp
V

MN2021FE8 A 198 - BIFE=Hm@E
BERBEEEAERAG(BREE])
MR ENRE ARER (GER]) RX
HEMBREZEBFE NABBEHE
ZRBR (R K LA $E N B A 4L A 2R 1L
BIBWRIE - IR ARIA IR Z ke B
BEERSHEEHFEHMBL E
BIE)EE2021F6 AoH B ILEEE T
BYEACENBROARKA434.90
B (ER408EEHE §EARE
10.87387C) ' HE A LARIELE AL
NVSERE L E8B R IBE MBI - WA
BEENEEZE2EMT NVEER L
BB yisE AR5 S B R A KO
TREEEN T EER - e HERK
BE BMEEKEALSWERE  Xiv)
REAENHFAE R2E ETEB-

BARE G SR ERBEER—
BER  BREN2021F12 A31 BHAT
FERASTE o 3R RO JE 63 48 2 48 3 0
LEBANBEERER —BER B
RBIEREIBENE TR Bm i
E2021F6 A9H=E2021%7H19H
HENEEBRETEE (B
) ERR BRI A REETYE
st o BRF B ER T TR - P EE
BB RBEREEINER -

R2022F4 8228 AR B ZFARE
AETREHRE  HhtaBREFHEE
ERRBIELEB LN AR 15000
T WHBRAOIEENGCEDE
THE - ERERTHERBEEEMF
AR (T ATRHER]) - R20224F
5A128  BRAERE T RZER & H
RoOMBESMHRRARER ((REHE
Bt )R E5F - ESRHDERFEFRAFRK ©

HR2022F 12850 FRERHAR
FHHRE  TEFRHAR
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BE2023F12A31BEEE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Other receivables
Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a subsidiary
Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

ERBRE
B AT 5 &
EREHEAE

RBEE

& W Pl 18 2 B3R IR
Ho{h fE U IR
RITHEBR IR

RBAE

H e 3R KR & A
JEAS — R i /88 & B 3R
HRAE

REBEEFE
EEFE
BEXRREE
&N

&

BREs

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board on 25 March 2024 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Jing Ming

R4
Director

EF

2023
e T

—_—

HK$°000
FTEx

42, XD BB AR R R e 5k

2022
= —

=

HK$'000
TAET

53,305 151,810

= 31

53,305 151,841
83,514 87,856
13 3,066

109 "
83,636 91,033
2,702 2,969
56,688 56,688
4,799 4,799
64,189 64,456
19,447 26,577
72,752 178,418
1,469,376 1,469,376
(a) (1,396,624) (1,290,958)
72,752 178,418

AARWMPFBRIER EEFeR
2024 F 3 A5 B AERFEREL - I

HINIESERERRTE

Leng Xiao Rong
RN
Director

o
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HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42, XA BB AR R R ()
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Note: Bt
(a) Reserves (a) i
Share Statutory  Accumulated
premium  surplus reserve losses Total
[ grapin VAR A 25T EE 5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT \E T AREF T ARET T
At 1 January 2022 M2022F1 A1 H 320,476 103,215 (1,602,969) (1,179,278)
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZERZ B
expense for the year - - (111,680) (111,680)
At 31 December 2022 20224128318 320,476 103,215 (1,714,649) (1,290,958)
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREZEMZ B
expense for the year - - (105,666) (105,666)
At 31 December 2023 7A2023F12 8311 320,476 103,215 (1,820,315) (1,396,624)
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mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BILFE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

Notes to the Consolidated Financial S

FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

tatements

The table below details changes in the Groups’ liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2022

Non-cash changes

Finance cost

Settlement of other payable on
behalf of the Group

Addition of right-of-use assets

Changes from cash flow

Repayment to a non-controlling
interest

Repayment to a shareholder

Repayment of leases liabilities

Other borrowings arise

At 31 December 2022

Non-cash changes

Finance cost

Settlement of other payable on
behalf of the Group

Addition of right-of-use assets

Changes from cash flow
Repayment to a shareholder
Repayment of leases liabilities

At 31 December 2023

20221 A1H

FRERE
AR A
RE&EEE
R
EREEERE

e

BeREEH
FERERER
BB 2REZE
BEHEAE

ELHAMER

pild ol
=2
u
iy
T

M2022%12A31H

FRERT
RMERA
RAGEE

R

EREEERNE

HEMEN

REREEH
{BE —ARRNE
EERERE

R2023F12A318

43.

AREIsEE8EMNYHER

TRENAEEAREEHELARE
MEE) (BRERE RIFRESE) F15 -
R agELAEABERREKRS
RAEBGERSREXRVEABME
EBABRERENRERE -

Amount due
Amount to a non-
Other Lease duetoa controlling
borrowings liabilities shareholder interest
EBR—F EBAFER
Hitfd%  HESE KRRWE  EERA
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTRZ ARBTE ARETR

- 949 943 1,621 3,513

415 63 - - 478

- - 15,989 - 15,989

- 772 - - 772

415 835 15,989 - 17,239

- - - (1,621) (1,621)

- - (16,421) - (16,421)

- (1,210) - - (1,210)

5,000 - - - 5,000

5,000 (1,210) (16,421) (1,621) (14,252)

5415 574 511 - 6,500

1,800 24 - - 1,824

- - 10,815 - 10,815

- 195 - - 195

1,800 219 10,815 - 12,834

- - (11,260) - (11,260)

- (573) - - (573)

- (573) (11,260) - (11,833)

7,215 220 66 - 7,501
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme

mEVMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12 A31HILFE

44. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, other payable of
approximately RMB10,815,000 (2022: RMB15,989,000) have
been settled by a shareholder of the Company.

45. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, for enhancing the
relevance of the presentation of the consolidated financial
statements, reclassifications have been made to certain
comparative figures presented in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the prior year to achieve
comparability with the current year’s presentation. As result,
the following line items regarding comparative figures have
been amended and adjusted, together with the related notes
to conform to the current year’s presentations:

Consolidated Statement of Profitor & EHE
Loss

Exchange gain, net ey

Depreciation &

Staff costs BIRA

Other operating expenses g amz

Administrative and operating expenses  {TE R &8 £ 5 %

Note:

Administrative and operating expenses were reclassified from “Exchange gain,
net”, “Depreciation”, “Staff costs” and “Other operating expenses”
respectively.

nts

4. T EFRERFH

HE2023F12A31BILFE  EfufE
R EH AR 10,815,000 7T (2022
£ AR#15,989,0007T) & B AR 7
RS -

EEREBF

HZE2023F12A31HILEE  BiRS
FTEREAVHERENEEE B8
RAVBHREANETBAFE LR
BFETHE UHTERAAFEFERE
WMETFTIEEE -E U THBELR
T ABERMBENFEBIIILSA
B UHEAFER2YAR

45,

Previous
reported

KA2H

As restated
&g
RMB'000
ARETT

Reclassification
EHNNE
RMB'000

AREFT

RMB'000
AEBTT

Note [t &% 17 (17) -

Note fff 7% (1,300) 1,300 -

Note ff &% (6,845) 6,845 -

Note [ &% (5,809) 5,809 -

Note fff 7% - (13,937) (13,937)
B3t -

ARREEREE S RIm [ELYGEOFR] - (8] -
[BTAA] R AR BHHE -
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Financial Summary

MEBERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR SEeEEmR
LOSS

2023 2022 2021 2019
—B-=f C-TF--F CZE-_—F T-FE —ZNF

RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETE

Revenue Yk 1,498 29,427 47,022 7,008 22,023
Cost of sales HERA (85,369) (26,610) (46,336) (6,666) (21,127)
Other income A A 2,175 1,920 2,490 3,006 1316
Impairment losses under expected ~ BHIEEEBEELTH)

credit loss model, net of reversal HEERE  MRED (6.890) (36,900) (5,344) (10,504) (71,111)
Impairment loss recognised in respect §L¥% - BB KRB RRN

of property, plant and equipment R {EEE - - - (36,380) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect ETE] £ ER 2R EFRE

of deposit paid (11,802) (11,046) (7,170) - -
Finance cost BERAK (1,824) (478) (67) (31) (53)
Loss from changes in fair value BRENE DA BEEDN

of investment properties i (29,700) (18,200) (13,900 (428) (730)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net  tHEMB A AIAYEEFE - - 12,381 15,554 1,072
Administrative and other TRREBEERT

operating expenses (14,681) (13,937) (16,697) (9,441) (13,463)
Share of loss of an associate ElE—HEBEREER - - - - (8,548)
Loss before tax BREAER (146,593) (75,824) (27,621) (37,882) (90,621)
Income tax expenses e 37 - (6) (%) (90)
Loss for the year FRER (146,630) (75,824) (27.627) (37,978) (90,711)
Profit (loss) for the year from REBRIEEEKY

discontinued operations EREN(EE) - - 2,553 (10,300) (3,729)
Non-controlling interests IR 9,471 2,303 1,538 8,597 5,391

Loss attributable to owners ANFHEEAEGER
of the Company (137,159) (73,521) (23,536) (39,681) (89,049)
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Financial Summary

MBHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves:
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

FRBEE

RBEE
nBAaE

MEEEHE
REERRDAR
FRBEE

BERE
BARRGE

g

i

ARARB AR
LR S

e MR R

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“E-=f ZZ--F —T--F ZE-FF —EZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR
344,283 395,292 428,740 513,724 451,327
288,406 353,689 454,537 384,406 545,084
209,404 175,345 229,961 213,401 188,634
79,002 178,344 224,576 171,005 356,450
423,285 573,636 653,316 684,729 807,777
436 285 447 - 264
422,849 573,351 652,869 684,729 807,513
1,469,376 1,469,376 1,469,376 1,469,376 1,469,376
(1,036,673) (895,642) (818,427) (791,340) (750,451)
432,703 573,734 650,949 678,036 718,925
(9,854) (383) 1,920 6,693 88,588
422,849 573,351 652,869 684,729 807,513
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In this report (other than the consolidated financial statements),
unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions

RARE BREMBRREIN)  BXERE
Prig - LT RIREABATEE -

shall have the following respective meanings.

2022 Corresponding Period”

[2022 F[RIER)

“2023 Financial Year”
[2023 FRIF & ]
"AGM”"
[RRBEFRE]
“Articles”

[RAEE]

“Beijing Shen Shang”

[HE70E™

"Beijing Yufeng Chengyou”
[ 6 5 40 A2 5% |
“Beijing Zhong Tou”
b

“Board”

[Exg]
“Chaozhou Jinshan”
[EM 1L ]
“Company”

[ FE]
“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Domestic Share(s)”

[ & AL
"EGM”
[IRER%EFRIKE
"Group”
[AR&EE]
"Hong Kong”
(&%)
“H-Share(s)”

[H A

*  For identification purpose only

for the year ended 31 December 2022

BHZE2022F12 A3 HIEFE

for the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F 12 A31HIEFE

annual general meeting of the Company

RRARRRBAFARE

The articles of association of the Company

RAGIABEIZMAE

Beijing Shen Shang Investment & Consulting Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

ERERREBZABERAR  RARIZ2EMNB LA

Beijing Yufeng Chengyou Technology Company Limited*

I REEREREER A A

Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang Zhan Property Limited*

ERPRAREXZARAF

the board of Directors

RRAREFE

Chaozhou Jinshan Investment and Development Company Limited*
MMTmeILREREBRAR

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited

EEARBERRMHBERRAA

the director(s) of the Company

RRAREF

domestic share(s) with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the share capital of the
Company which are subscribed for in RMB

ARRBRAFGREEARE 1 THANER - LARERE

extraordinary general meeting of the Company

RRBBRREFIAE

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRE REME AT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

BB E B R RITTE R

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of
RMB1 each, all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars
RARZREEARBITZRIN ETINELBIR - 2MAEBIER LT R
NEBETRBELEE

* EHRES

2023FEHE | BHARAREROERAE
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Glossary
e — N
E

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

(B E=77]

the independent third party(ies) who is/are, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries,
independent of the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules)

REE—VaBERE REFRHN SRLMEE  BUNAA R LHEEE
AL (EER ETRADOBIE=7

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
[ EmR Al B X PE 2 L AR R

“Model Code” Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
[1R2E<F A | FHBETAEFETESFX IR ETR

“PRC" the People’s Republic of China

[ hE ARAME

“"RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

(AR RENEEEB AR

“SFO" Securities and Futures Ordinance (chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)
(&% MG 1&p ] &5 R EE RN (BB EDIE 571 &)

“Share(s)” H-Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)

[ &1 H A e &

“Shareholder(s)"” holders of the Shares

[ &R AR A

“Shennongjia Hotel” Shennongjia Da Jiu Hu Hotel Company Limited

[ R E R HMERRNHBEARA

"Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[k 32 P ERBERHMERADQE]

“Supervisor(s)” the supervisors of the Company

(B RAFEE

“Supervisory Committee” the supervisory of the Company

[BEFEZ BT RRREEEESG

Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

[ 5= 3 PEMMNEERBERR AT KARIZENEB LA

“Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan  an infrastructure construction project in Jing Nan Industrial Park, in Chaozhou
Industrial Park Project”

[hESMNER TEEER ] RN ER TEENERREERIER

"Zhongfang Chaozhou”

*  For identification purpose only * (g e)
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